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DECLARATION OF CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AFFILIATES

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Taiwan Cement
Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, under the Criteria Governing the
Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements
of Affiliated Enterprises are the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared
in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standard 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”. In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements
is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Taiwan Cement Corporation and

subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Very truly yours,

TAIWAN CEMENT CORPORATION
CHENG-YUN KOO
Chairman

March 30, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Taiwan Cement Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Taiwan Cement Corporation and its
subsidiaries (the “Group™) as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Group’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China.
Those rules and standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its
consolidated operations and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, the International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, interpretation as well as related guidance translated
by Accounting Research and Development Foundation endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of
the Republic of China.

‘We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of Taiwan Cement Corporation as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 on which we have issued an unqualified opinion.

De{ oitfe % 7;“51'2’

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 30, 2016
Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial
position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards,
procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those generally applied in the
Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial
statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the
Republic of China.  If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any
difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language independent auditors’ report and
consolidated financial statements shall prevail.
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TAIWAN CEMENT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 4 and 7)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 4, 8 and 30)
Notes receivable (Notes 4 and 10)
Accounts receivable (Notes 4, 10, 11 and 30)

Notes and accounts receivable from related parties (Notes 4 and 29)

Other receivables (Notes 4 and 24)

Other receivables from related parties (Notes 4 and 29)
Inventories (Notes 4, 12 and 31)

Prepayments (Notes 18 and 30)

Other financial assets (Notes 4, 6 and 30)

Other current assets (Notes 4 and 9)

Total current assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 4, 8 and 30)
Financial assets carried at cost (Note 4)

Investments accounted for using equity method (Notes 4 and 14)

Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 15 and 30)
Investment properties (Notes 4, 16 and 30)

Intangible assets (Notes 4, 17, 26 and 30)

Long-term finance lease receivables (Notes 4, 11 and 30)
Prepayments for investments (Note 26)

Net defined benefit asset (Notes 4 and 21)

Long-term prepayments for leases (Notes 18 and 30)
Other non-current assets (Notes 4, 24 and 30)

Total non-current assets

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term loans (Notes 19 and 30)
Short-term bills payable (Note 19)
Notes and accounts payable
Accounts payable to related parties (Note 29)
Other payables (Notes 20 and 31)
Current income tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 24)
Advance receipts
Long-term loans - current portion (Notes 19 and 30)
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term loans (Notes 19 and 30)
Deferred income tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 24)
Net defined benefit liability (Notes 4 and 21)
Other non-current liabilities (Notes 4 and 31)

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PARENT (Notes 22 and 24)

Share capital
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Others
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Note 22)
Total equity

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

2015 2014

Amount % Amount %
$ 38,977,360 13 $ 30,514,042 11
147,113 - 176,865 -
15,227,906 5 19,615,395 7
12,377,095 4 17,846,977 6
6,850,598 3 8,376,953 3
985,259 1 319,690 -
663,601 - 960,774 -
668,842 - 3,151,864 1
8,941,127 3 10,470,879 4
3,286,150 1 3,833,064 1
2,043,253 1 792,701 -
425.072 - 546.612 -
90.593.376 31 96.605.816 33
3,990,535 1 5,022,536 2
822,609 - 546,028 -
8,013,265 3 7,671,335 3
113,310,134 39 108,445,563 37
5,996,536 2 6,021,296 2
22,607,552 8 19,542,637 7
34,335,409 12 35,061,777 12
- - 2,120,380 1
451,548 - 1,074,673 -
7,698,950 2 6,980,022 2
5.246.441 2 3.651.769 1
202.472.979 69 196.138.016 67
$ 293.066.355 10 $ 292,743,832 100
$ 22,325,389 8 $ 22,975,404 8
6,159,780 2 6,370,508 2
6,943,854 2 7,056,837 3
137,199 - 210,945 -
8,935,660 3 8,406,652 3
1,214,642 - 2,226,142 1
3,119,316 1 2,911,537 1
19,133,616 7 18,347,393 6
114.376 - 126.626 -
68.083.832 23 68.632.044 24
57,986,194 20 50,457,481 17
10,268,560 4 10,078,645 4
287,238 - 294,307 -
956.279 - 1,263.674 -
69,498,271 24 62,094,107 21
137.582.103 47 130,726,151 45
36,921,759 13 36,921,759 13
12,309,615 4 12,225,528 4
45,573,057 16 49,530,227 17
13.238.554 4 19.281.356 6
108,042,985 37 117,958,870 40
47.441.267 16 44,058,811 15
155,484,252 53 162.017.681 55
$ 293,066,355 10 $ 292,743,832 100
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TAIWAN CEMENT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

2015 2014
Amount % Amount %
OPERATING REVENUE (Notes 4, 9 and 29) $ 93,679,076 100 $ 118,325,809 100
OPERATING COSTS (Notes 4, 9, 12, 23 and 29) 79,151,059 85 93,453,214 79
GROSS PROFIT 14,528.017 15 24,872,595 21
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 23 and 29)
Marketing 859,723 1 964,818 1
General and administrative 3,987,700 4 4,011,430 3
Research and development 6.895 - 38.678 -
Total operating expenses 4,854,318 5 5,014,926 4
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 9.673.699 10 19,857,669 17
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures
(Notes 4 and 14) 737,161 1 1,250,088 1
Interest income (Notes 4 and 29) 430,757 1 309,383 -
Dividend income (Note 4) 958,117 1 832,814 1
Government grants 233,545 - 221,457 -
Other income (Note 11) 585,411 1 875,025 1
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,206 - 163,222 -
Finance costs (Notes 4, 9 and 23) (1,873,739) 2) (1,907,215) 2)
Other expenses (Notes 8, 9 and 23) (512,116) ) (205,637) -
Foreign exchange losses, net (1.570,026) (2) (198.086) -
Total non-operating income and expenses (1.007,684) 1) 1,341,051 1
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 8,666,015 9 21,198,720 18
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 24) 1,740,389 2 4,614,844 4
NET INCOME 6,925,626 7 16,583.876 14
(Continued)
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TAIWAN CEMENT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Note
4)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (Notes 21
and 22)
Share of other comprehensive loss of associates
and joint ventures (Note 22)
Income tax benefit related to items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (Note
24)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit

or loss:

Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations (Note 22)

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 22)

Cash flow hedges (Notes 9 and 22)

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures (Note 22)

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year,
net of income tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) FOR
THE YEAR

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

2015 2014

Amount % Amount %

$ (652,832) 1 3 (72,678) -
(1,476) (16,536) -
110,938 - 12,178 -
(543.370) 1) (77,036) -
(1,828,277) 2) 2,106,968 2
(5,141,341) %) 826,077 1
(11,071) - 21,883 -
6015 - 347759 -
(6,974.674) (7) 3,302,687 3
(7.518,044) (8) 3,225,651 3

$ (592,418) a § 19,809,527 17
$ 5,775,989 6 $ 10,828,868 9
1,149,637 1 5,755,008 5

$ 6925626 7 $ 16,583,876 14
$ (806,454) (1) § 13,340,699 11

214,036 - 6,468,828

$  (592418) (1) $ 19.809,527 17
(Continued)
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TAIWAN CEMENT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

2015 2014
Income Attributable to  Income Attributable to
Shareholders of Shareholders of
the Parent the Parent
EARNINGS PER SHARE (NTS, Note 25)
Basic earnings per share $1.56 $2.93
Diluted earnings per share 1.56 2.93
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. (Concluded)
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TAIWAN CEMENT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax $ 8,666,015 $ 21,198,720
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense 7,021,678 6,331,499
Amortization expense 397,480 345,401
Net loss (gain) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 1,114 (34,634)
Finance costs 1,873,739 1,907,215
Interest income (430,757) (309,383)
Dividend income (958,117) (832,814)
Share of profits of associates and joint ventures (737,161) (1,250,088)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 34,307 (148,162)
Gain on disposal of investments, net (499) (130)
Impairment loss on financial assets 51,296 -
Reversal of impairment of financial assets (186,035) -
Impairment loss on non-financial assets 13,105 11,461
Inventory write-down (reversal) (87,164) 313,340
Unrealized loss on foreign exchange, net 994 811 165,809
Others 240,781 212,131
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Financial assets held for trading 30,438 52,761
Notes receivable 5,888,746 (327,064)
Accounts receivable 1,884,936 371,274
Notes and accounts receivable from related parties (643,176) 13,032
Other receivables 630,897 460,476
Other receivables from related parties 846,460 (1,507,176)
Inventories 2,495,379 (1,195,821)
Prepayments 1,028,566 851,554
Other current assets 122,942 34,898
Notes and accounts payable (2,619,517) (1,403,142)
Accounts payable to related parties (81,560) 11,604
Other payables (1,415,824) (1,176,176)
Advance receipts 70,644 213,928
Other current liabilities (105,817) (223,147)
Net defined benefit liability (36,776) (116,139)
Cash generated from operations 24,990,931 23,971,227
Income tax paid (3.227.539) (4.066,554)
Net cash generated from operating activities 21,763,392 19,904,673
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (10,087) (15,000)
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets 14,842 17,001
Purchase of financial assets carried at cost (1) €))
(Continued)
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INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

TAIWAN CEMENT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2015 2014
Proceeds from sale of financial assets carried at cost $ - $ 140
Proceeds from the return of capital upon investees’ capital reduction on
financial assets carried at cost 9,461 33,696
Increase in prepayments for investments - (2,120,380)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries (6,721,329) -
Payments for property, plant and equipment (2,726,976) (3,701,188)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 98,761 320,043
Payments for intangible assets (379,647) (1,379)
Payments for investment properties - (238)
Decrease in long-term finance lease receivables 726,368 596,158
Decrease (increase) in other financial assets (691,123) 50,523
Decrease in other non-current assets 208,091 52,986
Increase in prepayments for leases (125,947) (151,652)
Interest received 406,803 329,504
Dividends received 1,357,381 1,574,022
Net cash used in investing activities (7.833.403) (3.015,765)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in short-term loans (3,539,971) 3,825,866
Increase in long-term loans 29,252,473 36,204,200
Repayment of long-term loans (22,574,692) (39,756,097)
Increase (decrease) in short-term bills payable (210,728) 1,268,225
Decrease in other non-current liabilities (324,608) (52,231)
Cash dividends paid (11,963,228) (11,411,828)
Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries - (1,645)
Interest paid (1,708,559) (1,810,314)
Changes in non-controlling interests 6.022.723 3.050
Net cash used in financing activities (5.046.590) (11,730,774)
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (420,081) (355,157)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 8,463,318 4,802,977
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR 30,514,042 25,711,065
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR $ 38,977,360 $ 30,514,042
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. (Concluded)
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TAIWAN CEMENT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Taiwan Cement Corporation (the “Corporation”) was incorporated in 1946 and restructured as a
corporation in 1951, which was jointly operated by the Ministry of Economics Resource Committee and the
Taiwan Provincial Government. In 1954, the Corporation privatized as a result of the Taiwan
government’s land reform program, land-to-the-tiller policy. The Corporation engages in the manufacture
and marketing of cement, cement-related products and ready-mixed concrete. The Corporation’s shares
have been listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since February 1962.

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the
“Group”, are presented in New Taiwan dollars, the functional currency of the Corporation.

2. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Corporation’s board of directors on March 30,
2016.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW, AMENDED AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

a. Initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports
by Securities Issuers and the 2013 version of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
International Accounting Standards (IAS), Interpretations of IFRS (IFRIC), and Interpretations of IAS
(SIC) endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC)

Rule No. 1030029342 and Rule No. 1030010325 issued by the FSC stipulated that the Group should
apply the 2013 version of IFRS, TAS, IFRIC and SIC (collectively, the “IFRSs”) endorsed by the FSC
and the related amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers starting from January 1, 2015.

Except for the following, whenever applied, the initial application of the amendments to the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the 2013 version of the IFRSs
would not have any material impact on the Group’s accounting policies:

1) IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in [FRS 12 are more extensive than in the current standards.

2) Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income”

The amendments to IAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into those
items that (1) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (2) may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss. Income taxes on related items of other comprehensive income are
grouped on the same basis. Under IAS 1 prior to these amendments, there were no such
requirements.

-10 -
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The Group retrospectively applied the aforementioned amendments starting from January 1, 2015.
The item that is not expected to be reclassified to profit or loss is the remeasurement of the defined
benefit plan. Items that are expected to be reclassified to profit or loss are the exchange
differences on translating foreign operations, the unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale
financial assets, cash flow hedges, and the share of the other comprehensive income (except for the
share of the remeasurement of the defined benefit plan) of associates and joint ventures accounted
for by using the equity method. However, the application of the aforesaid amendments did not
result in any impact on the net profit for the year, other comprehensive income for the year (net of
income tax), and total comprehensive income for the year.

b. New IFRSs in issue but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The Group has not applied the following New IFRSs issued by the IASB but not yet endorsed by the
FSC.

On March 10, 2016, the FSC announced the scope of the IFRSs to be endorsed and will take effect from
January 1, 2017. Within this scope are all of the IFRSs that had been issued by the IASB before
January 1, 2016 and have effective dates on or before January 1, 2017, and outside of this scope are
those IFRSs that are not yet effective as of January 1, 2017, such as IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” and those with undetermined effective dates. In
addition, the FSC announced that application of IFRS 15 should start from January 1, 2018. As of the
date the consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue, the FSC had not yet announced the
effective dates of other new, amended and revised standards and interpretations.

Effective Date

New IFRSs

Announced by IASB (Note 1)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 “Mandatory Effective Date of
IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures”

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 “Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation Exception”

Amendment to IFRS 11 “Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations”

IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

IFRS 16 “Leases”

Amendment to IAS 1 “Disclosure Initiative”

Amendment to IAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

Amendments to IAS 12 “Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealized Losses”

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 “Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization”
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 “Agriculture:

Amendment to IAS 19 “Defined Benefit Plans:
Contributions”

Amendment to IAS 27 “Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements”

Bearer Plants”
Employee
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July 1, 2014 (Note 2)

July 1, 2014

January 1, 2016 (Note 3)

January 1, 2018
January 1, 2018

To be determined by IASB

January 1, 2016
January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2017
January 1, 2017

January 1, 2016

January 1, 2016
July 1,2014

January 1, 2016
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Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB (Note 1)

Amendment to TAS 36 “Impairment of Assets: Recoverable Amount January 1, 2014
Disclosures for Non-financial Assets”
Amendment to IAS 39 “Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of ~ January 1, 2014
Hedge Accounting”
IFRIC 21 “Levies” January 1, 2014
(Concluded)

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above New IFRSs are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: The amendment to IFRS 2 applies to share-based payment transactions with grant dates on or
after July 1, 2014; the amendment to IFRS 3 applies to business combinations with acquisition
dates on or after July 1, 2014; the amendment to IFRS 13 is effective immediately; the
remaining amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.

Note 3: The amendment to IFRS 5 is applied prospectively to changes in methods of disposal that
occur in annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016; the remaining amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

The initial application of the above New IFRSs, whenever applied, would not have any material impact
on the Group’s accounting policies, except for the following:

1) IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

Recognition and measurement of financial assets

With regard to financial assets, all recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” are subsequently measured at amortized
cost or fair value. Under IFRS 9, the requirement for the classification of financial assets is stated
below.

For the Group’s debt instruments that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, their classification and measurement are
as follows:

a) For debt instruments, if they are held within a business model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows, the financial assets are measured at amortized cost and are assessed for
impairment continuously with impairment loss recognized in profit or loss, if any. Interest
revenue is recognized in profit or loss by using the effective interest method,

b) For debt instruments, if they are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and the sale of financial assets, the financial assets
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and are assessed for
impairment. Interest revenue is recognized in profit or loss by using the effective interest
method, and other gains or losses shall be recognized in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses. When the debt instruments
are derecognized or reclassified, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
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2)

Except for the above, all other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
However, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognized in profit or loss. No subsequent impairment
assessment is required, and the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income cannot be reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 requires that impairment loss on financial assets be recognized by using the expected credit
loss model. A credit loss allowance is required for financial assets measured at amortized cost,
compulsory financial assets, lease receivables, as well as the contractual assets or loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts arising from IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
A loss allowance for 12-month expected credit losses is required for a financial asset if its credit
risk has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. A loss allowance for full lifetime
expected credit losses is required for a financial asset if its credit risk has increased significantly
since its initial recognition and is not low. However, a loss allowance for full lifetime expected
credit losses is required for trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Group takes into account the
expected credit losses on initial recognition in calculating the credit-adjusted effective interest rate.
Subsequently, any changes in expected losses are recognized as a loss allowance with a
corresponding gain or loss recognized in profit or loss.

Hedge accounting

The main changes in hedge accounting amended the application requirements for hedge accounting
to better reflect the entity’s risk management activities. Compared with IAS 39, the main changes
include: (1) enhancing types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the risks eligible for hedge accounting of non-financial items; (2) changing the way hedging
derivative instruments are accounted for to reduce profit or loss volatility; and (3) replacing the
retrospective effectiveness assessment with the principle of an economic relationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged item.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 sets out the accounting standards for leases that will supersede IAS 17 and a number of
related interpretations.

Under IFRS 16, if the Group is a lessee, it shall recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
all leases on the consolidated balance sheets except for low-value and short-term leases. The
Group may elect to apply the accounting method similar to the accounting for operating leases
under IAS 17 to the low-value and short-term leases. On the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, the Group should present the depreciation expense charged on right-of-use
assets separately from the interest expense accrued on lease liabilities; interest is computed by using
the effective interest method. On the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities and cash payments for the relevant interest are classified within
financing activities.

The application of IFRS 16 is not expected to have a material impact on the accounting of the
Group as lessor.

When IFRS 16 becomes effective, the Group may elect to apply this standard either retrospectively

to each prior reporting period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of the initial
application of this standard recognized at the date of initial application.
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Except for the above impact, as of the date the consolidated financial statements were authorized for
issue, the Group continues assessing the possible impact that the application of other standards and
interpretations will have on the Group’s financial position and financial performance and will disclose
the relevant impact when the assessment is completed.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs endorsed and issued
into effect by the FSC.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
financial instruments which are measured at fair value.

The fair value measurements, which are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 on the basis of the degree to which
the fair value measurement inputs are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, are described as follows:

1) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

2) Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

3) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs on an asset or liability.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

Current assets include:

1) Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;

2) Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period; and

3) Cash and cash equivalents, unless an asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Current liabilities include:
1) Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading;
2) Liabilities due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; and

3) Liabilities for which the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
12 months after the reporting period.

Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are classified as non-current.
The Group engages in the construction business, which has an operating cycle of over 1 year. The

normal operating cycle applies when considering the classification of the Group’s construction-related
assets and liabilities.
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d. Basis of consolidation

Principles for preparing consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Corporation and the
entities controlled by the Corporation.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisitions or up to the effective dates of disposals, as appropriate.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by the Corporation.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full upon consolidation.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Corporation and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in its relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Corporation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value at the date when control is lost and (ii)
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities and any non-controlling interests of the former
subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost. The Group accounts for all
amounts recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

See Note 13 for more information on subsidiaries (including the percentages of ownership and main
businesses).

e. Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for by using the acquisition method. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognized in profit or loss as they are incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed.

For each business combination, the Corporation measures the non-controlling interests at either fair
value or the share in the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Non-controlling
interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets, in the event of liquidation, may be initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
the measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value.
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When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in an
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date, and the resulting gain or loss is recognized
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognized in other comprehensive income are recognized on the same basis as would
be required if those interests were directly disposed of by the Group.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period or additional assets or liabilities are recognized to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognized as of that date.

f. Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other
than the entity’s functional currency (i.e. foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Exchange differences on monetary items arising from settlement or
translation are recognized in profit or loss in the period except for exchange differences on transactions
entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences arising
from the retranslation of non-monetary items are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising from the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognized directly in other comprehensive income, and in which case, the exchange
differences are also recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the functional currencies of the
Corporation and the group entities (including subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in other
countries that use currencies that are different from the currency of the Corporation) are translated into
the presentation currency, the New Taiwan dollar, as follows: assets and liabilities are translated at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period; income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. The resulting currency translation differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income (attributed to the owners of the Corporation and
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Corporation’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving the loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation are reclassified to profit or loss.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Corporation losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is re-attributed to
non-controlling interests of the subsidiary and is not recognized in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals, the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities acquired arising from the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognized in other comprehensive income.

g. Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, supplies, finished goods and work in process and are stated at the
lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventory write-downs are made by item, except where it may be
appropriate to group similar or related items. The net realizable value is the estimated selling price of
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Inventories are
recorded at the weighted-average cost on the end of reporting period.

h. Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group uses the equity method to account for its investments in associates and joint ventures.

Under the equity method, investments in an associate and joint venture are initially recognized at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate and joint venture. The Group also recognizes the changes in the Group’s share
of the equity of associates and joint ventures.

Any excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of an associate or a joint venture at the date of acquisition is recognized as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortized. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the acquisition, after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When the Corporation subscribes for additional new shares of an associate and joint venture at a
percentage different from its existing ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amount of the
investment differs from the amount of the Group’s proportionate interest in that associate and joint
venture. The Group records such a difference as an adjustment to investments, with the corresponding
amount charged or credited to capital surplus - changes in the Group’s share of equity of associates and
joint ventures. If the Group’s ownership interest is reduced due to its additional subscription of the
new shares of the associate and joint venture, the proportionate amount of the gains or losses previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate and joint venture is reclassified
to profit or loss on the same basis as would be required if the investee had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. When the adjustment should be debited to capital surplus, but the capital
surplus recognized from investments accounted for by using the equity method is insufficient, the
shortage is debited to retained earnings.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate and a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in
that associate and joint venture (which includes any carrying amount of the investment accounted for by
using the equity method and long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate and joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. Additional losses and liabilities are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal obligations, or constructive obligations, or made payments on behalf of that associate and joint
venture.
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The entire carrying amount of an investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognized
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognized to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date on which its investment ceases to be
an associate and a joint venture. Any retained investment is measured at fair value at that date, and the
fair value is regarded as the investment’s fair value on its initial recognition as a financial asset. The
difference between the previous carrying amount of the associate and joint venture attributable to the
retained interest and its fair value is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate and the joint venture. The Group accounts for all amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate and joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate, the Group continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

When a group entity transacts with its associate and joint venture, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate and joint venture are recognized in the Group’ consolidated financial
statements only to the extent that interests in the associate and the joint venture are not related to the
Group.

i.  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment loss.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction are carried at cost less any recognized
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.
Such assets are depreciated and classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for their intended use.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (including assets held under finance leases) is
recognized using the straight-line method. Each significant part is depreciated separately. If a lease
term is shorter than the assets’ useful lives, such assets are depreciated over the lease term. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in the estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

On derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.

j- Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and land held for a
currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment loss. Depreciation is recognized using the straight-line method.

On derecognition of an investment property, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is included in profit or loss.
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k. Goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of the
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment loss.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units (referred to as “cash-generating units”) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired by comparing its carrying amount,
including the attributed goodwill, with its recoverable amount. However, if the goodwill allocated to a
cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating units was acquired in a business combination during
the current annual period, that unit shall be tested for impairment before the end of the current annual
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating units is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss is recognized directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

If goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and the entity disposes of an operation within
that unit, the goodwill associated with the operation that is disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal and is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

. Intangible assets
1) Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss.
Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives, residual values,
and amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in the estimates accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives that are acquired separately are measured at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

When the Group has a right to charge for usage of concession infrastructure (as a consideration for
providing construction services in a service concession arrangement), it recognizes this as an
intangible asset at fair value upon initial recognition. The intangible asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment loss.
2) Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognized separately from goodwill are
initially recognized at their fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are measured on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

3) Derecognition of intangible assets

On derecognition of an intangible asset, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.
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m. Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets, excluding goodwill, to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Corporate assets are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units on a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If the recoverable
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount, with the resulting
impairment loss recognized in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent of the carrying
amount (less amortization expenses or depreciation expenses) that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

n. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. To meet the criteria for the sale being highly probable, the appropriate level of
management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within 1 year from the date of classification.

When a sale plan would result in a loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling
interest in that subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving the disposal of an investment or a portion of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture, only the investment or the portion of the investment that
will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the classification criteria are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale.
Any retained portion of an investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not been classified as
held for sale continues to be accounted for by using the equity method. If the Group ceases to have
significant influence or joint control over the investment after the disposal takes place, the Group
accounts for any retained interest that has not been classified as held for sale in accordance with the
accounting policies for financial instruments.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Recognition of depreciation of those assets would cease.

When a subsidiary, joint venture, associate, or a portion of an interest in a joint venture or an associate
previously classified as held for sale no longer meets the criteria to be so classified, it is measured at the
carrying amount that would have been recognized had such interests not been classified as held for sale.
Financial statements for the periods since classification as held for sale are amended accordingly.

0. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

1) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis.

a) Measurement category

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets, and loans and receivables.

ii.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when a financial asset is
held for trading.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on their remeasurement recognized in profit or loss.  Fair value is determined
in the manner described in Note 28.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments
or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in the carrying
amounts of available-for-sale monetary financial assets (relating to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments) are recognized in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in other
comprehensive income and will be reclassified to profit or loss when the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any
identified impairment loss at the end of each reporting period and are presented in a separate
line item as financial assets carried at cost. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of the
financial assets can be reliably measured, the financial assets are remeasured at fair value.
The difference between carrying amount and fair value is recognized in other
comprehensive income on financial assets. Any impairment losses are recognized in profit
and loss.
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iii. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including cash equivalents) are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment, except for short-term receivables when the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

Cash equivalents include time deposits and repurchase agreements collateralized by bonds
with original maturities within three months from the date of acquisition, which are highly
liquid, readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. These cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments.

b) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost are assessed for impairment on a collective basis even
if they were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on receivables.

For a financial asset carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognized is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognized.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, impairment loss previously recognized in profit
or loss is not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive income. In respect of available-for-sale
debt securities, impairment loss is subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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¢)

The carrying amount of a financial asset is reduced by its impairment loss directly for all
financial assets, with the exception of accounts receivable, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When accounts receivable are considered
uncollectable, they are written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit or loss except for
uncollectable accounts receivable that are written off against the allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

2) Equity instruments

3)

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

The repurchase of the Corporation’s own equity instruments is recognized in and deducted directly
from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issuance or
cancellation of the Corporation’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

a)

Subsequent measurement

Except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, all financial liabilities are
carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when any such financial
liability is either held for trading or is designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in Note 28.

A financial liability may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition when doing so results in more relevant information and if:

i. Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

ii. The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and has performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
the Corporation’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

-23-



APPENDIX X INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

iii. The contract contains one or more embedded derivatives so that the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) can be designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

For a financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of changes
in fair value attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented in other
comprehensive income and will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. The
remaining amount of changes in the fair value of that liability is presented in profit or loss.
The gain or loss accumulated in other comprehensive income will be transferred to retained
earnings when the financial liabilities are derecognized. If this accounting treatment related to
credit risk would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch, all changes in fair value of the
liability are presented in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner described in
Note 28.

b) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognized in profit or loss.

4) Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange
rate risks, interest rates, and material prices, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest
swaps and commodity price contracts.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, and in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or
loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. When the fair value of a derivative financial
instrument is positive, the derivative is recognized as a financial asset; when the fair value of a
derivative financial instrument is negative, the derivative is recognized as a financial liability.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when they
meet the definition of a derivative; their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of
the host contracts; and the contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

p. Hedge accounting

The effects of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognized in other comprehensive income. The gains or losses relating to the ineffective
portion is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The associated gains or losses that were recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the line item relating to the hedged item
in the same period when the hedged item affects profit or loss. If a hedge of a forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the associated
gains and losses that were recognized in other comprehensive income are removed from equity and are
included in the initial cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the Group revokes the designated hedging
relationship, or when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting. The cumulative gains or losses on the hedging
instrument that has been previously recognized in other comprehensive income from the period when
the hedge was effective remains separately in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. When a

-4 -



APPENDIX X INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gains or losses accumulated in equity are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

q. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced
for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. Allowances for sales returns and
liabilities for returns are recognized at the time of sale based on the seller’s reliable estimate of future
returns and based on past experience and other relevant factors.

1)

2)

3)

4)

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied:

a) The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

b) The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

¢) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

d) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group;
and

e) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Revenue from the sale of property in the course of ordinary activities is recognized when the
construction is completed and the property is transferred to the buyer. Until such revenue is
recognized, deposits and installment payments received from sales of properties are carried in the
consolidated balance sheets under current liabilities.

Rendering of services

Service income including that from operating services provided under service concession
arrangements is recognized when services are provided.

Freight revenue is recognized by reference to the proportion of the voyage period.

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract or when services are provided.

Sale of electric power

Revenue from electric power is calculated according to the volume of electric power sold and the
energy rate.

Dividend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is recognized when a shareholder’s right to receive payment has

been established provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably.
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Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicable effective
interest rate.

r. Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of a lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The lease
component of all electric power selling contracts identified in accordance with IFRIC 4 “Determining
Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease” is classified as a finance lease.

1) The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

2) The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets of the Group at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation.

Finance expenses implicit in lease payments for each period are recognized immediately in profit or
loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, and in which case they are capitalized.

Operating lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the related lease
terms.

s. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Other than the above-stated, all other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

t. Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

-26 -



APPENDIX X INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

u. Employee benefits

1)

2)

3)

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related services.

Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit costs (including service costs, net interest and remeasurement) under the defined
contribution retirement benefit plans are determined using the projected unit credit method.
Service costs and net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) are recognized as an
employee benefits expense in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which it occurs. Remeasurement recognized in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss.

The net defined benefit liability (asset) represents the actual deficit (surplus) in the Group’s defined
benefit plan. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits are accounted for in the same way as the accounting required for
a defined benefit plan except that remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss.

v. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

1)

2)

Current tax

According to the Income Tax Law of the Republic of China, an additional tax at 10% of
unappropriated earnings is provided for as income tax in the year the shareholders approve to retain
earnings.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or deducted from the current year’s tax
provision.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the consolidated financial statement
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, unused loss
carryforwards and unused tax credits for research and development expenditures to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. For deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and equity, the interests are only recognized to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered. A previously unrecognized deferred tax asset is also
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and recognized to the to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liabilities are settled or the assets are realized, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3) Current and deferred taxes for the year

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, and in which case, the current and
deferred taxes are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered relevant.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

a. Income taxes

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of deferred income tax assets in relation to
unused tax losses was $696,684 thousand and $301,878 thousand, respectively. As of December 31,
2015, no deferred income tax assets have been recognized on the tax losses of $8,531,617 thousand.
The realizability of deferred income tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient future profit or
taxable temporary differences will be available. In cases where the actual future profit generated is
less than expected, a material reversal of deferred income tax assets may arise, which would be
recognized in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place.
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b. Finance lease receivables

The Group estimates its future cash flows and a suitable discount rate when calculating the present
value when measuring finance lease receivables and the related revenue. Related assumptions include
expected operating performance ratios, economic service lines and recoverable residual values. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

c. Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on receivables, the Group takes into consideration
the estimated future cash flows of such receivables. The amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the present value of its estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

d. Write-down of inventory

The net realizable value of inventory is its estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The estimation
of the net realizable value is based on current market conditions and historical experience of selling
products of a similar nature. Changes in market conditions may have a material impact on the
estimation of the net realizable value.

e. Impairment of investments in associates

The Group immediately recognizes impairment losses on its net investments in associates when there is
any indication that such investments may be impaired and the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
The Group’s management evaluates such impairment based on the estimated future cash flow expected
to be generated by an associate. The Group also takes into consideration the market conditions and
industry development when evaluating the appropriateness of the related assumptions.

f.  Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods of property,
plant and equipment at each balance sheet date. If there are significant changes in the estimations or
depreciation methods, the recognition of depreciation expenses will be affected.

g. Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

When performing an impairment test on an asset, the Group determines the cash flow, useful life and
future gains and losses expected to arise from the asset in accordance with its pattern of utilization and
the nature of the industry, depending on the Group’s subjective judgment. Any change in such
estimations due to economic conditions or the Group’s strategies may result in significant impairment
in the future.
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6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

2015 2014
Cash on hand $ 9,726 $ 10,898
Checking accounts and demand deposits 29,098,037 19,937,876
Cash equivalents
Time deposits with original maturities of less than 3 months 9,099,749 10,103,031
Bonds with repurchase agreements 769,848 462,237

$ 38,977.360 $ 30,514,042

The market rate intervals of cash in the bank and bonds with repurchase agreements at the end of the
reporting period were as follows:

December 31
2015 2014
Cash in bank 0.01-2.73% 0.01-2.95%
Bonds with repurchase agreements 0.37-0.58% 0.58-0.60%

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, time deposits with original maturities of more than 3 months were
$1,638,054 thousand and $685,755 thousand, respectively, which were classified to other financial assets.

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

December 31

2015 2014
Financial assets held for trading
Non-derivative financial assets
Mutual funds $ 147,113 $ 176,865

8. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

December 31

2015 2014
Domestic investments
Listed shares $ 6,460,049 $ 8,126,330
Emerging market shares 546,719 745,668
Mutual funds 14,353 19,227
7,021,121 8,891,225
Foreign investments
Listed shares
12,197,320 15,746,706

§ 19,218,441 $ 24,637,931

Current $ 15,227,906 $ 19,615,395
Non-current 3,990,535 5,022,536

§ 19,218,441 $ 24,637,931
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The Group assessed the future recoverable value of emerging market shares in March 2015 and recognized
impairment losses amounting to $51,296 thousand (included in non-operating income and expenses - other
expenses)

Refer to Note 30 for information relating to available-for-sale financial assets pledged as collateral for
credit accommodations.

9. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FOR HEDGING

December 31
2015 2014
Derivative financial assets under hedge accounting
Cash flow hedges - foreign exchange forward contracts (included in
other current assets) $ 9,145 $ 20,216

The terms of the foreign exchange forward contracts were negotiated to match the terms of the respective
designated hedged items. The Group has entered into raw material purchase contracts with foreign coal
suppliers and entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to avoid exchange rate exposure to its
forecasted purchases. These foreign exchange forward contracts were designated as cash flow hedges.
When forecasted purchases actually take place, the carrying amounts of the non-financial hedged items will
be adjusted accordingly.

The outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

Notional Amount

Currency Maturity Date (In Thousands)
December 31, 2015
Buy NTD/USD 2016.1-2016.4 NTD697,319/USD21,500
December 31, 2014
Buy NTD/USD 2015.1-2015.2 NTD340,279/USD11,385

Gains and losses of hedging instruments reclassified from equity to profit or loss were included in the
following line items in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Operating revenue $ 433 $ 2,110
Operating costs 2,826 13,382
Finance costs - 2,340
Loss on financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(included in other expenses) - 9.864
$ 3259 $ 27,696
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10. NOTES AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 31

2015 2014
Notes receivable $ 12,388,583 $ 17,858,493
Accounts receivable 7,062,444 8,590,527
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (223,334) (225.090)

$ 19,227,693 $ 26,223,930

Receivables past due but not impaired $ 71.632 $ 40,700

In determining the recoverability of notes and accounts receivable, the Group considered any change in the
credit quality of the notes and accounts receivable since the date credit was initially granted to the end of
the reporting period. The Group recognized an allowance for impairment loss of 100% against receivables
when there was indication that the receivable was impaired, and the allowance for impairment loss was
recognized against the rest of the past due receivables based on the estimated irrecoverable amounts
determined by reference to the past default experience with the counterparties and an analysis of their
current financial positions.

For the accounts receivable balances that were past due at the end of the reporting period, the Group did not
recognize an allowance for impairment loss, because there was no significant change in the credit quality,

and the amounts were still considered recoverable.

The Group had a wide range of unrelated customers, hence the concentration in credit risk is relatively
limited.

The aging analysis of receivables was as follows:

December 31
2015 2014
Up to 90 days $ 14,479,679 $ 18,665,484
91-180 days 4,647,089 7,400,347
181-365 days 27,440 114,981
Over 365 days 73,485 43,118

$ 19,227,693 $ 26,223,930

The above aging schedule was based on the number of days past due from the invoice date.
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11.

The movements of the allowance for doubtful notes and accounts receivable were as follows:

Individually Collectively

Assessed for Assessed for

Impairment Impairment Total
Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 176,937 $ 38,556 $ 215,493
(Reversals of) provisions 60,409 (2,271) 58,138
Write-offs (50,750) (2,328) (53,078)
Effects of exchange rate changes 4,537 - 4.537
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 191,133 $ 33957 $ 225,090
Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 191,133 $ 33,957 $ 225,090
(Reversals of) provisions (47) 3,856 3,809
Write-offs (2,977) - (2,977)
Effects of exchange rate changes (2,588) - (2,588)
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 185,521 $ 37813 $ 223,334

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

December 31

2015 2014

Not later than 1 year $ 4,600,806 $ 4,559,535
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 19,581,183 19,075,691
Later than 5 years 44,066,915 49,421,192
68,248,904 73,056,418

Less: Unearned finance income 33,155,937 37,164,570
Less: Accumulated impairment 47.878 233913
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 35,045,089 § 35,657,935
Current (included in accounts receivable) $ 709,680 $ 596,158
Non-current 34.335.409 35.061.777
$ 35,045,089 $ 35,657,935

After transitioning to IFRSs, the Group’s electric power selling contracts with guaranteed power generation
periods fall under IFRIC 4 “Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease” and IAS 17 “Leases”.
The lease was denominated in New Taiwan dollars, and the term entered into was 25 years.

The interest rate inherent in the lease was fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term. The interest
rate inherent in the finance lease was approximately 11.18%.

When the Group evaluated finance lease receivables and recognized related revenue in 2015, the present
value of future cash flows was recalculated based on modified assumption, and there was a reversal of
impairment of $186,035 thousand recognized (included in other income under non-operating income and
expenses).

Refer to Note 30 for information relating to financial lease receivables pledged as collateral for bank
borrowings, which were recorded under property, plant and equipment before transitioning to IFRSs.
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12. INVENTORIES

Finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials

Buildings and land held for sale

December 31

2015 2014
§ 2,163,043 $ 3,400,150
1,605,119 1,377,872
5,028,394 5,548,286
144.571 144,571
$ 8,941,127 $ 10,470,879

The cost of inventories recognized as cost of goods sold for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
was $73,322,098 thousand and $86,075,574 thousand, respectively.

The cost of goods sold for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 included reversals of inventory
write-downs of $87,164 thousand and inventory write-downs of $313,340 thousand, respectively.
Previous write-downs were reversed because related inventories were sold.

Refer to Note 31 for information relating to bills of lading pledged as collateral for bank borrowings.

13. SUBSIDIARIES

a. Subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements include subsidiaries which are as follows:

Investor

Taiwan Cement
Corporation

Investee

Taiwan Transport & Storage
Corporation

TCC Investment Corporation

Kuan-Ho Refractories Industry
Corporation

Kuan-Ho Construction &
Development Corporation

Hong Kong Cement
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(“HKCMCL”)

Ta-Ho Maritime Corporation

Taiwan Cement Engineering
Corporation

Tunwoo Company Limited

TCC Chemical Corporation

TCC Information Systems
Corporation

Taiwan Prosperity Chemical
Corporation

Tung Chen Mineral Corporation

Jin Chang Minerals Corporation

Hoping Industrial Port
Corporation

TCC International Ltd. (“TCCI”)

Ho-Ping Power Company

Ta-Ho Onyx Taitung
Environment Co., Ltd.

HPC Power Service Corporation

E.G.C. Cement Corporation

Main Business

Warehousing, transportation, and
sale of sand and gravel

Investment

Production and sale of refractory
materials

Construction and lease services

Investment holding

Marine transportation
Engineering services

Warehousing and sale of cement

Processing and sale of chemical
material

Information software design

Processing and sale of chemical
material

Afforestation and sale of limestone

Afforestation and sale of limestone

Hoping Industrial Port management

Investment holding
Thermal power generation
Waste collection and treatment

Business consulting
Sale of cement
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Proportion of Ownership

(%)

December 31

2015

83.9

100.0
95.3

84.7

64.8
99.0

100.0
100.0

99.5
100.0
100.0

100.0
59.5
100.0

60.0
50.6

2014

83.9

100.0
95.3

92.9

84.7

64.8

99.0

100.0
100.0

99.5
100.0
100.0

100.0
59.5
100.0

60.0
50.6

Remark
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Investor

Taiwan Transport &
Storage Corporation

TCC Investment
Corporation

HKCMCL

TCC Development
Holdings Ltd.
Ta-Ho Maritime
Corporation
Taiwan Cement
Engineering
Corporation
TCC Information
Systems
Corporation
Hoping Industrial Port
Corporation
TCCI

Feng Sheng Enterprise
Company

TPMC

Union Cement Traders
Inc.

Ta-Ho Maritime
Holdings Ltd.

TCEC Corporation

Taicem Information
(Samoa) Pte., Ltd.

Ta-Ho Maritime
(Hong Kong)
Limited

Da Tong (Guigang)
International
Logistics Co., Ltd.

TCCIH

Upper Value
Investment Limited

Investee

Feng Sheng Enterprise Company

Trans Philippines Mineral
Corporation

Taicorn Minerals Corporation

Ta-Ho Onyx RSEA Environment
Co., Ltd.

Ho Sheng Mining Co., Ltd.

E.G.C. Cement Corporation

Ho Swen Construction Material
Co., Ltd.

Ta-Ho Maritime Corporation

Union Cement Traders Inc.

Ho-Ping Power Company

Taiwan Prosperity Chemical
Corporation

Ta-Ho Maritime Corporation

TCC Development Holdings Ltd.

TCC Development Ltd.

TCC Development Ltd.

Ta-Ho Maritime Holdings Ltd.

TCEC Corporation

Taicem Information (Samoa) Pte.,
Ltd.

Taiwan Prosperity Chemical
Corporation

TCC International Holdings Ltd.
(“TCCIH™)

Ho Swen Construction Material
Co., Ltd.

T™MC

Taiwan Transport & Storage
Corporation

Ta-Ho Maritime (Hong Kong)
Limited.

THC International S.A.

Chi Ho Maritime S.A.

Sheng Ho Maritime S.A.

Ta-Ho Maritime (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd.

TCEC (Yingde) Machine Co.,
Ltd.

Fuzhou TCC Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

Da Tong (Guigang) International
Logistics Co., Ltd.

Da Tong (Ying De) Logistics Co.,
Ltd.

Guigang Da-Ho Shipping Co.,
Ltd.

Chia Hsin Cement Greater China
Holding Corporation

Upper Value Investment Limited

Upper Value Investments Ltd.
(“UPPV™)

TCC Hong Kong Cement (BVI)
Holdings Ltd.

Ulexite Investments Ltd.

Prime York Ltd.

Prosperity Minerals
(International) Ltd.

Main Business

Sale of ready-mixed concrete
Mining excavation

Mining excavation
Waste collection and treatment

Mining excavation
Sale of cement
Sand and gravel filtering and sale

Marine transportation

Import and export trading

Thermal power generation

Processing and sale of chemical
material

Marine transportation

Investment holding

Property leasing

Property leasing

Investment

Investment

Investment

Processing and sale of chemical
material
Investment holding

Sand and gravel filtering and sale

Mining excavation
Warehousing, transportation, and

sale of sand and gravel
Marine transportation

Marine transportation
Marine transportation
Marine transportation
Marine transportation

Production and sale of cement
machinery and assembly work

Software product and equipment
maintenance

Logistics and transportation

Logistics and transportation

Marine transportation

Investment holding

Investment holding
Investment holding

Investment holding
Investment holding

Investment holding
Investment holding
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Proportion of Ownership

(%)

December 31

2015

45.4
40.0

72.7
66.6

100.0
44.4
51.0
275

100.0

0.5
0.5

100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0

23

100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0

2014

45.4
40.0

72.7
66.6

100.0
44.4
51.0
275

100.0

0.5
0.5

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0

23

9.0

18.2
0.7

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0

Remark

n
i

4)

2)

(Continued)
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Investor
TCC Hong Kong

Cement (BVI)
Holdings Ltd.

TCC Hong Kong

Cement (QHC) Ltd.

Chiefolk Co., Ltd.

TCC International
(Liuzhou) Ltd.

TCC Liuzhou Co.,
Ltd.

TCC Hong Kong

Cement (HKC) Ltd.

TCC Hong Kong
Cement Trading
Ltd.

TCC Hong Kong
Cement
(Philippines) Ltd

TCC Hong Kong
Cement
(International) Ltd.

TCCI (HK)

Jiangsu TCC
Investment Co.,
Ltd.

Jingyang Industrial
Limited

TCC International
(Guangxi) Ltd.

TCC (Gui Gang)
Cement Ltd.

Investee

TCC Hong Kong Cement
Development Limited

TCC Hong Kong Cement (QHC)
Ltd.

TCC Hong Kong Cement
(Yargoon) Ltd.

TCC Hong Kong Cement (HKC)
Ltd.

TCC Hong Kong Cement Trading
Ltd.

TCC Hong Kong Cement
(Philippines) Ltd.

TCC Hong Kong Cement
(International) Ltd.

Hong Kong Cement Company
Limited (“HKCCL”)

Chiefolk Co., Ltd.

TCC International (Liuzhou) Ltd.
TCC Liuzhou Co., Ltd.

TCC Liuzhou Construction
Materials Company Limited
Koning Concrete Ltd.

Hong Kong Cement Company
Limited (HKCCL)

TCC Cement Corporation
Dragon Pride International Ltd.

TCC International (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd. (“TCCI (HK)”)

TCC Guigang Mining Industrial
Company Limited

Jiangsu TCC Investment Co., Ltd.

Jingyang Industrial Limited

TCC International (Guangxi) Ltd.

TCC Shaoguan Cement Co., Ltd.

TCC Yingde Mining Industrial
Company Limited

TCC Yingde Cement Co., Ltd.

TCC Jiangsu Mining Industrial
Company Limited

TCC Fuzhou Yangyu Port Co.,
Ltd.

TCC (Dong Guan) Cement Co.,
Ltd.

TCC Fuzhou Cement Co., Ltd.

TCC Huaihua Cement Company
Limited

Anhui King Bridge Cement Co.,
Ltd.

Jurong TCC Cement Co., Ltd.

Jurong TCC Cement Co., Ltd.

TCC (Gui Gang) Cement Ltd.

TCC Huaying Cement Company
Limited

TCC Guigang Mining Industrial
Company Limited

Main Business
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Sale of cement
Investment holding

Investment holding
Investment holding

Manufacturing and sale of slag
powder

Investment holding

Sale of cement

Cement processing services

Cement processing services

Investment holding

Mining excavation
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Manufacturing and sale of cement
Mining excavation

Manufacturing and sale of cement
Mining excavation

Service of port facility
Manufacturing and sale of cement

Manufacturing and sale of cement
Manufacturing and sale of cement

Manufacturing and sale of cement

Manufacturing and sale of cement

Manufacturing and sale of cement
Manufacturing and sale of cement
Manufacturing and sale of cement

Mining excavation
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Proportion of Ownership

(%)

December 31

2015

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

70.0

100.0
100.0

60.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

52.5
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

489

100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0

60.0

77.6

100.0

100.0

47.5

2014

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

70.0

100.0
100.0

60.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

52.5
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

489

100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

77.6

100.0

475

Remark

2)

2)

D

3)

3)

(Continued)
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Investor

TCC Yingde Cement
Co., Ltd.

TCC Jiangsu Mining
Industrial Company
Limited

TCC Huaihua Cement
Company Limited

Ulexite Investments
Ltd.
UPPV

Wayly Holdings Ltd.

TCC International
(China) Co., Ltd.

Kong On Cement
Holdings Ltd.
Mega East Ltd.

Sure Kit Ltd.

Hensford Ltd.

Kiton Ltd.

Prosperity Cement
Investment Ltd.

TCC Anshun Cement

Company Limited
Scitus Holdings

Investee

TCC Yingde Mining Industrial
Company Limited

Scitus Luzhou Concrete Co., Ltd.

Scitus Luzhou Cement Co., Ltd.

Scitus Naxi Cement Co., Ltd.

Scitus Hejiang Cement Co., Ltd.

TCC Yingde Mining Industrial
Company Limited

TCC Jingzhou Cement Company
Limited

TCC Huaihua Concrete Company
Limited

HKC Investments Limited

Wayly Holdings Ltd.

TCC International (China) Co.,
Ltd.

Kong On Cement Holdings Ltd.

Mega East Ltd.

Prosperity Minerals (China) Ltd.

Sure Kit Ltd.

Hensford Ltd.

Kiton Ltd.

Way Zone Ltd.

Prosperity Minerals
(International) Ltd.

Prosperity Cement Investment
Ltd.

Scitus Cement (China) Holdings
Ltd. (“Scitus Holdings™)

Guizhou Kaili Rui An Jian Cai
Co., Ltd.

TCC New (Hangzhou)
Management Company
Limited

Guizhou Kong On Cement
Company Limited

TCC Guangan Cement Company
Limited

TCC Chongging Cement
Company Limited

TCC Anshun Cement Company
Limited

TCC Liaoning Cement Company
Limited

Yingde Dragon Mountain Cement
Co, Ltd.

Anshun Xin Tai Construction
Materials Company Limited

Scitus Cement (China) Operating
Co., Ltd.

Hexagon XIV Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon XIII Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon IX Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon VIII Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon V Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon IV Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon III Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon II Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon VII Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon XI Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon XV Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon XVI Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon XVII Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon XX Holdings Ltd.

Main Business
Mining excavation

Sales of ready-mixed concrete
Manufacturing and sale of cement
Manufacturing and sale of cement
Manufacturing and sale of cement
Mining excavation

Manufacturing and sale of cement
Sale of ready-mixed concrete
Investment holding

Investment holding
Investment holding

Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding

Investment holding
Investment holding
Manufacturing and sale of cement

Operation management

Manufacturing and sale of cement
Manufacturing and sale of cement
Manufacturing and sale of cement
Manufacturing and sale of cement
Manufacturing and sale of cement
Manufacturing and sale of cement

Filtering of sand and gravel and sale
of ready-mixed concrete
Investment holding

Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
Investment holding
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Proportion of Ownership

(%)

December 31

2015
34.8
25.0
10.0
10.0
10.0
16.3
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0

65.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

2014
34.8
25.0
10.0
10.0

10.0
16.3

100.0

100.0
100.0

65.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

Remark

3)

3)

1
2)

(Continued)
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Proportion of Ownership
(%)
December 31

Investor Investee Main Business 2015 2014 Remark
Hexagon IX Holdings  Scitus Hejiang Cement Co., Ltd. Manufacturing and sale of cement 90.0 90.0
Ltd.
Hexagon IV Holdings  Scitus Luzhou Cement Co., Ltd. Manufacturing and sale of cement 90.0 90.0
Ltd.
Hexagon Il Holdings  Scitus Naxi Cement Co., Ltd. Manufacturing and sale of cement 90.0 90.0
Ltd.
Hexagon XIV Scitus Luzhou Concrete Co., Ltd.  Sales of ready-mixed concrete 75.0 75.0
Holdings Ltd.
(Concluded)
Remarks:
1) For the purpose of streamlining investment structure, the following entities were dissolved during

2)

3)

4)

the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015

Hexagon XV Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon XVI Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon XVII Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon XI Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon VII Holdings Ltd.

Hexagon XX Holdings Ltd.

Way Zone Ltd.

TCC Development Holdings Ltd. (after dissolution of the entity, HKCMCL holds 100% of the
shares of TCC Development Ltd.)

Dragon Pride International Ltd.

3o}

1

I

Bright Win Holdings Ltd.
Hexagon X Holdings Ltd.
Hexagon XII Holdings Ltd.
Hexagon XVIII Holdings Ltd.
Hexagon XIX Holdings Ltd.

The Group adjusted its investment structure in December 2015. Before the adjustment, HKCCL
was jointly held by Prosperity Minerals (International) Ltd., which was held by UPPV, and TCC
Hong Kong Cement Trading Ltd. After the adjustment, HKCCL was jointly held by Upper Value
Investment Limited and TCC Hong Kong Cement (BVI) Holdings Ltd.

The acquisition processes on interests in TCC Huaying Cement Company Limited and TCC
Huaihua Cement Company Limited and its subsidiaries were completed in January and May 2015,
respectively. See Note 26 for the information on the acquisitions.

TCCIH issued ordinary shares for cash in July 2015, and TCCI subscribed for the new shares at a

percentage different from its prior ownership percentage. Therefore, the ownership percentage in
TCCIH increased by 0.4% and became 56.9%.
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b. Details of subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

Name of Subsidiary

TCCIH
Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation
Ho-Ping Power Company

Proportion of Ownership and
Voting Rights Held by
Non-controlling Interests

December 31

2015

43.1%
47.2%
40.0%

2014

43.5%
47.2%
40.0%

See Table 7 following the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the information on the places

of incorporation and principal businesses.

The summarized financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

TCCIH and TCCIH’s subsidiaries

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Equity
Equity attributable to:
Owners of TCCIH

Non-controlling interests of TCCIH
Non-controlling interests of TCCIH’s subsidiaries

Operating revenue

Profit (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Profit (loss) attributable to:
Owners of TCCIH

Non-controlling interests of TCCIH
Non-controlling interests of TCCIH’s subsidiaries

-39 -

December 31

2015 2014

$ 45,131,475 $ 47,366,696

102,351,224 93,724,247
(36,253,694) (38,006,859)
(29.580,393) (31.052,501)

$ 81,648,612 $ 72,031,583

$ 50,294,953 $ 44,351,592

30,310,451 26,558,867

1,043,208 1,121,124

$ 81,648,612 $ 72,031,583
For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014

$ 44,669,914 $ 53,746,187

$  (955,013) $ 8,112,709

(1,601,697) 2,123,879

$ (2,556,710) $ 10,236,588

$ (394,939 $ 4,703,211

(573,295) 3,333,774

13.221 75.724

$  (955,013) $ 8,112,709
(Continued)
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For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:
Owners of TCCIH $ (1,123,386) $ 6,129,051
Non-controlling interests of TCCIH (1,422,641) 4,062,715
Non-controlling interests of TCCIH’s subsidiaries (10,683) 44,822

§ (2,556,710) $ 10,236,588

Net cash inflow (outflow) from:

Operating activities $ 6,146,402 $ 12,070,723

Investing activities (7,081,079) (4,628,766)

Financing activities 3,824,717 (1,354.213)
Net cash inflow $ 2.890,040 $ 6,087,744

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of:

TCCIH $ 763,119 $ 812,500
TCCIH’s subsidiaries $ 67,232 $ 46,896
(Concluded)
Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation
December 31
2015 2014

Current assets $ 3,098,972 $ 4,975,399
Non-current assets 8,553,906 8,958,032
Current liabilities (3,359,246) (3,827,314)
Non-current liabilities (4,553,571) (4,392.,758)
Equity $ 3,740,061 $ 5,713,359
Equity attributable to:

Owners of Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation $ 1,974,658 $ 3,016,551

Non-controlling interests of Taiwan Prosperity Chemical

Corporation 1,765,403 2.696.808

$§ 3,740,061 § 5,713,359
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For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014

Operating revenue $ 11,741,599 $ 23,106,926
Loss for the year $ (1,862,972) §  (575,764)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (110,326) (26,381)
Total comprehensive loss for the year $ (1,973,298) $§  (602,145)
Loss attributable to:

Owners of Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation $  (983,642) $  (304,010)

Non-controlling interests of Taiwan Prosperity Chemical

Corporation (879.330) (271.754)

$ (1.862972) §  (575.764)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:

Owners of Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation $ (1,041,893) $§  (317,933)
Non-controlling interests of Taiwan Prosperity Chemical
Corporation (931.405) (284.212)

$ (1,973,298) §  (602,145)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from:

Operating activities $ 676,252 $  (647,793)

Investing activities (369,752) (316,626)

Financing activities (130.,538) 256,303
Net cash inflow (outflow) $ 175,962 $ (708,116)

Ho-Ping Power Company

December 31
2015 2014

Current assets $ 9,775,108 $ 9,306,221
Non-current assets 34,605,610 35,400,645
Current liabilities (3,830,137) (3,867,969)
Non-current liabilities (7.905.824) (9.893.947)
Equity $ 32,644,757 $ 30,944,950
Equity attributable to:

Owners of Ho-Ping Power Company $ 19,583,389 $ 18,563,503

Non-controlling interests of Ho-Ping Power Company 13,061,368 12,381,447

$ 32,644,757 $ 30,944,950
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Operating revenue

Profit for the year

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014

$ 12,645,730 $ 14,264,927

$ 6,147,579 § 6,225,159

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year (11,594) 22,173

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit attributable to:

Owners of Ho-Ping Power Company

$ 6.135.985 $ 6247332

$ 3,088,549 § 3,735,096

Non-controlling interests of Ho-Ping Power Company 2.459.030 2,490,063

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of Ho-Ping Power Company

$ 6,147,579 § 6,225,159

$ 3,681,592 $ 3,748,400

Non-controlling interests of Ho-Ping Power Company 2,454,393 2,498,932

Net cash inflow (outflow) from:

Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

Net cash inflow

$§ 6,135,985 $ 6,247,332

$ 6,809,480 $ 6,409,348
7,980 721,303
(6.419.908) (5.654.817)

$ 397,552 § 1,475,834

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of Ho-Ping Power

Company

$ 1,774,472 $ 1,971,007

14. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR BY USING EQUITY METHOD

Investments in associates
Investments in joint ventures

December 31

2015 2014

$ 7,968,261 $ 7,620,335
45,004 51,000

§ 8,013,265 $ 7,671,335
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a. Investments in associates

December 31

2015 2014

Material associates

Prosperity Conch Cement Company Limited $ 3,489,126 $ 3,268,974
Individually immaterial associates

Yunnan Kungang & K. Wah Cement Construction Materials

Co., Ltd. 1,639,841 1,728,692
Baoshan Kungang & K. Wah Cement Construction Materials

Co., Ltd. 763,876 763,438
CCC USA Corporation 693,430 619,533
ONYX Ta-Ho Environmental Services Co., Ltd. 430,104 405,222
Quon Hing Concrete Co., Ltd. 367,114 199,949
Chia Huan Tung Cement Corporation 233,457 262,153
Shih Hsin S&T Co., Ltd. 179,120 213,093
Hong Kong Concrete Co., Ltd. 162,077 113,727
Synpac Ltd. 10,116 9,870
Sichuan Taichang Building Material Group Company Limited - 35.684

$ 7,968,261 $ 7,620,335

1) Material associates

Proportion of Ownership

December 31

2015 2014
Prosperity Conch Cement Company Limited 25.0% 25.0%

Refer to Table 8 “Information on Investments in Mainland China” following the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for the nature of activities, principal place of business and
country of incorporation of Prosperity Conch Cement Company Limited. The investment
accounted for by using the equity method and the share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the investment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was based on the
associate’s financial statements audited by the auditors for the same years.

Summarized financial information in respect of Prosperity Conch Cement Company Limited were

as follows:
December 31

2015 2014
Current assets $ 7,889,163 $ 8,159,869
Non-current assets 8,228,713 8,307,335
Current liabilities (1,405,425) (2,626,310)
Non-current liabilities (755.948) (765.000)
Equity $ 13,956,503 $ 13,075.894
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 25% 25%
Carrying amount $§ 3.489,126 $ 3268974
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For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Operating revenue $ 6,112,815 $ 10,271,655
Net income for the year $ 948,705 $ 2,408,791
Other comprehensive income (loss) (68,096) 690,704
Total comprehensive income for the year $ 880,609 $ 3.099.495

2) Aggregate information of individually immaterial associates

Proportion of Ownership

December 31
2015 2014

Yunnan Kungang & K. Wah Cement Construction Materials

Co., Ltd. 30.0% 30.0%
Baoshan Kungang & K. Wah Cement Construction Materials

Co., Ltd. 30.0% 30.0%
CCC USA Corporation 33.3% 33.3%
ONYX Ta-Ho Environmental Services Co., Ltd. 50.0% 50.0%
Quon Hing Concrete Co., Ltd. 50.0% 50.0%
Chia Huan Tung Cement Corporation 33.8% 32.3%
Shih Hsin S&T Co., Ltd. 18.9% 18.9%
Hong Kong Concrete Co., Ltd. 31.5% 31.5%
Synpac Ltd. 25.0% 25.0%
Sichuan Taichang Building Material Group Company

Limited 30.0% 30.0%

For the Year Ended December 31
2015 2014

The Group’s share of:

Net income for the year $ 505,403 $ 647,890

Other comprehensive income 22.141 156,737

Total comprehensive income for the year $ 527,544 $ 804,627

The Group’s percentage of ownership in Shih Hsin S&T Co., Ltd. is less than 20%, but the Group
has significant influence and accounts for the investment by using the equity method.

The investments accounted for by using the equity method and the share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of those investments for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were
based on the associates’ audited financial statements for the same years except Yunnan Kungang &
K. Wah Cement Construction Materials Co., Ltd. and Baoshan Kungang & K. Wah Cement
Construction Materials Co., Ltd. The Group considered that there would be no significant
adjustments if such financial statements were to be audited.
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b. Investments in joint ventures

Investment in joint ventures of the Group were as follows:

December 31
2015 2014
Unlisted shares
Guangan Xin Tai Construction Materials Company Limited $ 45,004 $ 51,000

The Group holds 50% of the issued share capital of Guangan Xin Tai Construction Materials Company
Limited and the voting rights.

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
The Group’s share of:
Net loss for the year $ (5,418) $ -
Other comprehensive income (loss) (578) 1,810
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year $ (5,996) $ 1810

The investment accounted for by using the equity method and the share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the investment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were based
on the joint ventures audited financial statements for the same years.

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

M 'y and Miscell Property in
Land Buildi Eq t Equip Construction Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 20,792,683 $ 46,186,657 $ 95,680,282 $ 11,766,739 $ 5,362,648 $ 179,789,009
Additions - 89,283 373,072 241,392 2,377,433 3,081,180
Disposals - (80,584) (209,617) (365,353) (20,014) (675,568)
Reclassification - 1,094,963 1,474,297 97,166 (2,843,622) (177,196)
Effects of exchange rate changes - 1.064.035 1,932,208 242,695 76,697 3.315.635
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 20,792,683 $ 48,354,354 $ 99,250,242 $ 11,982,639 4 142 1 060
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment
Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 279,917 $ 10,699,506 $ 50,492,355 $ 8,927,552 $ 20,008 $ 70,419,338
Disposals - (79,966) (166,685) (358,300) (20,014) (624,965)
Depreciation expenses - 1,276,951 4,413,466 615,123 - 6,305,540
Impairment losses - - 11,461 - - 11,461
Reclassification - 2,044 (115,294) 3,274 - (109,976)
Effects of exchange rate changes - 163.518 601.890 120,685 6 886.099
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 279917 $  12.062.053 $ 55237.193 $ 9,308,334 $ - $  76,887.497
Carrying amounts at December 31, 2014 $ 20,512,766 $ 36,292,301 $ 44,013,049 $ 2,674,305 S 4953,142 108,44
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 20,792,683 $ 48,354,354 $ 99,250,242 $ 11,982,639 $ 4,953,142 $ 185,333,060
Additions - 21,033 211,168 376,508 1,417,295 2,026,004
Disposals (26,309) (30,352) (844,170) (98,659) (668) (1,000,158)
Acquisitions through business

combinations - 5,545,981 4,560,306 192,994 319,168 10,618,449
Reclassification - 683,862 1,422,358 (270,462) (1,814,237) 21,521
Effects of exchange rate changes - (383.289) (694.133) 74.472 (25.213) (1,028.163)
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 20,766,374 $ 54,191,589 $ 103.905.771 $ 12,257,492 $  4.849.487 $ 195,970,713

(Continued)
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16.

Machinery and Miscellaneous Property in
Land Buildi Equi Equip t Construction Total
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 279,917 $ 12,062,053 $ 55,237,193 $ 9,308,334 $ $ 76,887,497
Disposals (5,729) (9,212) (759,073) (93,076) (867,090)
Depreciation expenses - 1,494,052 4,816,175 685,908 6,996,135
Impairment losses - 13,105 - 13,105
Reclassification (134) 128,995 (128,861) -
Effects of exchange rate changes (106.108) (308.092) 45,132 (369.068)
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 274,188 $ 13,440,651 $ 59,128,303 $ 9817437 $ $ 82,660,579
Carrying amounts at December 31, 2015 $ 20.492.186 $ 40.750.938 $ 44.777.468 $ 2,440,055 S 4.849.487 $ 113.310.134

(Concluded)

The above items of property, plant and equipment were depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

estimated useful life of the asset:

Buildings

Main buildings

Main plants

Storage units

Others
Machinery and equipment
Miscellaneous equipment

30-60 years
16-50 years
10-50 years
20-50 years
2-28 years
2-20 years

Property, plant and equipment pledged as collateral for bank borrowings are set out in Note 30.

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment included non-cash items and were reconciled as follows:

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
Increase (decrease) in prepayments for equipment
Decrease (increase) in payables for equipment

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Cost

Balance at January 1, 2014

Land

$ 6,362,434

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
$ 2,026,004 $ 3,081,180
1,490,333 (13,927)
(789,361) 633,935
$ 2,726,976 $ 3.701,188
Buildings Total

$ 1,652,915

$ 8,015,349

Additions - 238 238
Disposals - (255,701) (255,701)
Effects of exchange rate changes - 1.615 1,615
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 6,362,434 $ 1,399,067 $ 7,761,501
(Continued)
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Land Buildings Total
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 1,066,380 $ 903,481 $ 1,969,861
Depreciation expenses - 25,959 25,959
Disposals - (255,701) (255,701)
Effects of exchange rate changes - 86 86
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 1,066,380 $ 673,825 $ 1,740,205
Carrying amounts at December 31, 2014 $ 5,296,054 § 725242 $ 6,021,296
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 6,362,434 $ 1,399,067 $ 7,761,501
Reclassification (25,478) - (25,478)
Effects of exchange rate changes - 1,057 1,057
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 6,336,956 $ 1,400,124 $ 7,737,080
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 1,066,380 $ 673,825 $ 1,740,205
Depreciation expenses - 25,543 25,543
Reclassification (25,478) - (25,478)
Effects of exchange rate changes - 274 274
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 1,040,902 $ 699,642 $ 1,740,544
Carrying amounts at December 31, 2015 $ 5,296,054 $ 700,482 $ 5,996.536

(Concluded)

The buildings of the investment properties were depreciated over their estimated useful lives of 50 years,
using the straight-line method.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the fair values of the investment properties owned by the Group were
$7,699,757 thousand and $7,689,367 thousand, respectively. Except for the fair values determined by
independent qualified professional valuers, the remaining fair values were determined by the Group’s
management using market price of similar properties.

The investment properties pledged as collateral for bank borrowings are set out in Note 30.
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17.

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

Balance at January 1, 2014
Additions

Decreases

Reclassification

Effects of exchange rate changes

Balance at December 31, 2014

Accumulated amortization and impairment

Balance at January 1, 2014
Amortization expenses
Decreases

Reclassification

Effects of exchange rate changes

Balance at December 31, 2014

Carrying amounts at December 31, 2014
Cost

Balance at January 1, 2015

Additions

Acquisitions through business combinations
Reclassification

Effects of exchange rate changes

Balance at December 31, 2015

Accumulated amortization and impairment

Balance at January 1, 2015
Amortization expenses
Reclassification

Effects of exchange rate changes

Balance at December 31, 2015

Carrying amounts at December 31, 2015

Operational
Goodwill Concession Mining Rights Others Total

$ 10,216,925 $ 7,686,289 $ 2,340,282 $ 861,187 $ 21,104,683
- - - 1,379 1,379
- - (4,228) - (4,228)

- (2,438) 19,279 - 16,841

316,201 - 78,003 13,897 408,101

$ 10,533,126 $ 7683851 $ 2433336 $ 876,463 $ 21,526,776
$ - $ 302,412 $ 620,033 $ 686,307 $ 1,608,752
- 151,194 150,130 44,077 345,401
_ R (4,228) - (4,228)
- (132) - - (132)

- - 20,452 13.894 34,346

$ - $ 453.474 $ 786.387 $ 744,278 $ 1,984,139
$ 10,533,126 $ 7230377 $ 1,646,949 $ 132,185 $ 19,542,637
$ 10,533,126 $ 7,683,851 $ 2433336 $ 876,463 $ 21,526,776
- - 375,872 3,775 379,647

2,705,060 - 39,033 335,472 3,079,565

- - 171,856 - 171,856
(103.250) - (28,095) 14,294 (117.051)

$ 13,134,936 $ 7,683,851 $ 2,992,002 $ 1,230,004 $ 25,040,793
$ - $ 453,474 $ 786,387 $ 744,278 $ 1,984,139
- 151,157 168,875 77,448 397,480

- - 51,645 - 51,645
R _ (7.910) 7.887 (23)

S - S 604,631 $ 998.997 $ 829.613 $ 2433241
$ 13,134,936 $ 7,079,220 $ 1,993,005 $ 400,391 $ 22,607,552

The above items of intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their

useful lives as follows:

Operational concession
Mining rights
Others

50 years

30-50 years
3-17 years

Intangible assets pledged as collateral for bank borrowings (including the operational concession, which
was recorded under property, plant and equipment before transitioning to IFRSs) are set out in Note 30.

PREPAYMENTS FOR LEASES

Current (included in prepayments)

Non-current
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The above prepayments for leases are land use rights in China.
collateral for bank borrowings are set out in Note 30.

Prepayments for leases pledged as

19. BORROWINGS

a. Short-term loans

December 31
2015 2014
Secured borrowings
Bank loans $ 12,295,167 $ 15,410,555
Unsecured borrowings
Bank loans - unsecured 9,897,573 7,265,944
Bank loans - letters of credit 132,649 298.905
10,030,222 7.564.849
$ 22325389 $ 22,975,404
Interest rate 0.74-8.10% 0.79-6.00%
Short-term bills payable
December 31
2015 2014
Commercial paper $ 6,167,000 $ 6,380,000
Less: Unamortized discount on bills payable 7,220 9,492
$ 6,159,780 $ 6,370,508
Interest rate 1.06-1.50% 1.12-1.50%
Long-term loans
December 31
2015 2014
Secured borrowings $ 59,604,442 $ 51,891,530
Unsecured borrowings 17.515.368 16,913,344
77,119,810 68,804,874
Less: Current portions 19.133.616 18,347,393
$§ 57,986,194 $ 50,457,481
Interest rate 1.23-2.71% 0.97-6.65%

Long-term loans consist of unsecured borrowings, secured borrowings and earmarked loans. The
principals of long-term unsecured and secured borrowings are due in June 2020, and the interests are
paid monthly. The principals of earmarked loans are due in February 2019, and the interests are paid

monthly, quarterly, or semiannually.
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20. OTHER PAYABLES

December 31

2015 2014
Payables for equipment $ 3,105,593 $ 2,225,901
Salaries and bonuses payable 978,788 1,065,279
Deposits and retention money 742,946 437,878
Taxes payable 450,604 649,425
Payables for electricity 381,238 372,373
Freight payables 324,360 560,163
Fines payable 264,000 264,000
Others 2.688.131 2.831.633

$ 8,935,660 $ 8,406,652

21. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

a.

Defined contribution plans

The Corporation and its subsidiaries in the Republic of China adopted a pension plan under the Labor
Pension Act (the “LPA”), which is a state-managed defined contribution plan. Under the LPA, an
entity makes monthly contributions to employees’ individual pension accounts at 6% of monthly
salaries and wages.

The employees of the Corporation’s subsidiaries in China are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit plan operated by the government of China. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The defined benefit plan adopted by the Corporation and its subsidiaries in the Republic of China,
which is in accordance with the Labor Standards Law, is operated by the government. Pension
benefits are calculated on the basis of the length of service and average monthly salaries of the 6
months before retirement. The Group contributes amounts equal to a specified percentage of total
monthly salaries and wages to a pension fund administered by the pension fund monitoring committee.
Pension contributions are deposited in the Bank of Taiwan in the committee’s name. The pension
fund is managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor (“the Bureau”); the Group has no
right to influence the investment policy and strategy.

The amounts included in the consolidated balance sheets in respect of the Group’s defined benefit plan
were as follows:

December 31
2015 2014
Present value of defined benefit obligation $ (1,383,405) $ (1,487,223)
Fair value of plan assets 1,547.715 2,267,589

$ 164310 $§ 780,366

Net defined benefit asset $ 451,548 $ 1,074,673
Net defined benefit liability § 287238 $§ 294307
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Movements in net defined benefit asset were as follows:

Present Value

of Defined
Benefit Fair Value of Net Defined
Obligation the Plan Assets  Benefit Asset
Balance at January 1, 2014 $ (1.575.111) $ 2312016 $  736.905
Service costs
Current service costs (22,512) - (22,512)
Net interest income (expense) (28.118) 48,484 20,366
Recognized in profit or loss (50,630) 48.484 (2.146)
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) - (46,996) (46,996)
Actuarial loss - changes in demographic
assumptions (6,459) - (6,459)
Actuarial gain - changes in financial
assumptions 749 - 749
Actuarial loss - experience adjustments (19,972) - (19,972)
Recognized in other comprehensive income (25.682) (46.996) (72.678)
Contributions from the employer - 107,494 107,494
Benefits paid 164.200 (153.409) 10,791
Balance at December 31, 2014 (1,487,223) 2,267,589 780,366
Service costs
Current service costs (17,091) - (17,091)
Net interest income (expense) (26.301) 40,347 14.046
Recognized in profit or loss (43.392) 40,347 (3.045)
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) - (588,635) (588,635)
Actuarial loss - changes in demographic
assumptions (11,635) - (11,635)
Actuarial loss - changes in financial
assumptions (42,337) - (42,337)
Actuarial loss - experience adjustments (10.,225) - (10.,225)
Recognized in other comprehensive income (64.197) (588.635) (652.832)
Contributions from the employer - 30,034 30,034
Benefits paid 211,407 (201,620) 9.787

Balance at December 31, 2015 $ (1,383.405) $ 1,547,715 $ 164,310

Through the defined benefit plan under the Labor Standards Law, the Group is exposed to the following
risks:

1) Investment risk: The plan assets are invested in domestic and foreign equity and debt securities,
bank deposits, etc. The investment is conducted at the discretion of the Bureau or under the
mandated management. However, in accordance with relevant regulations, the return generated by
plan assets should not be below the interest rate for a 2-year time deposit with local banks.

2) Interestrisk: A decrease in the government bond interest rate will increase the present value of the

defined benefit obligation; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the
plan’s debt investments.
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3) Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the
future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
increase the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

The actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out by
qualified actuaries. The significant assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were

as follows:
December 31
2015 2014
Discount rates 1.25-2.00% 1.63-2.00%
Long-term average rates of salary increase 1.50-2.25% 1.50-2.25%

If possible reasonable change in each of the significant actuarial assumptions will occur and all other
assumptions will remain constant, the present value of the defined benefit obligation would increase
(decrease) as follows:

December 31,
2015

Discount rates

0.25% increase $ (28,946)

0.25% decrease $ 30,007
Expected rates of salary increase

0.25% increase $ 29,229

0.25% decrease $ (28.340)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual changes in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the changes in assumptions would occur in
isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

December 31
2015 2014
The expected contributions to the plan for the next year $ 19,090 $ 100,319
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation 7.2-18 years 7-19 years
22. EQUITY
a. Ordinary shares
December 31
2015 2014
Number of shares authorized (in thousands) 6,000,000 6,000,000
Shares authorized $ 60,000,000 $ 60,000,000
Number of shares issued and fully paid (in thousands) 3,692,176 3,692,176
Shares issued $ 36,921,759 § 36,921,759

A holder of issued ordinary shares with par value of NT$10 is entitled to the proportional rights to vote
and to dividends.
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b. Capital surplus

December 31
2015 2014

May be used to offset a deficit, distributed as cash dividends, or

transferred to share capital (1)
Issuance of shares $ 10,435,775 $ 10,435,775
Conversion of bonds 1,520,632 1,520,632
Treasury share transactions 194,598 194,598
Donations 31,537 31,537
May only be used to offset a deficit (2)
Changes in percentage of ownership interests in subsidiaries 116,238 32,231
Forfeited share options 10,315 10,315
May not be used for any purpose
Changes in interests in associates accounted for by using the

equity method 520 440

$ 12,309,615 § 12,225,528

1) Such capital surplus may be used to offset a deficit; in addition, when the Corporation has no
deficit, such capital surplus may be distributed as cash dividends or transferred to share capital
(limited to a certain percentage of the Corporation’s capital surplus and once a year).

2) Such capital surplus arises from the effect of changes in ownership interest in a subsidiary resulting
from equity transactions, other than actual disposals or acquisitions, or from changes in capital
surplus of subsidiaries accounted for by using the equity method.

c. Retained earnings and dividend policy

Under the dividend policy as set forth in the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, where the
Corporation made profit in a fiscal year, the profit shall be first utilized for paying taxes, offsetting
losses of previous years, setting aside as a legal reserve 10% of the remaining profit, setting aside or
reversing a special reserve in accordance with the laws and regulations, and then any remaining profit
together with any undistributed retained earnings shall be used by the Corporation’s board of directors
as the basis for proposing a distribution plan, which should be resolved in the shareholders’ general
meeting for the distribution of dividends and bonuses to shareholders.

In addition to the capital-intensive, mature and stable production and marketing of cement and
cement-related products, the Corporation aggressively pursues diversification. For the development of
diversified investments or other important capital budgeting plans, the Corporation decided that the
payout ratio of cash dividend is to be at least 20% of the total dividends to be distributed to ordinary
shareholders; the rest will be paid in share dividends.

In accordance with the amendments to the Company Act in May 2015, the recipients of dividends and
bonuses are limited to shareholders and do not include employees. The consequential amendments to
the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation were proposed by the Corporation’s board of directors in
November 2015 and are subject to resolution by the shareholders in their meeting to be held in June
2016. For information about the accrual basis of the employees’ compensation and remuneration of
directors and the actual appropriations, refer to Note 23b. “Employee benefits expense”.
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Items referred to under Rule No. 1010012865, Rule No. 1011047490 and Rule No. 1030006415 issued
by the FSC and the directive titled “Questions and Answers for Special Reserves Appropriated
Following Adoption of IFRSs” should be appropriated to or reversed from a special reserve by the
Corporation.

An appropriation of earnings to the legal reserve shall be made until the legal reserve equals the
Corporation’s share capital. The legal reserve may be used to offset deficits. If the Corporation has
no deficit and the legal reserve has exceeded 25% of the Corporation’s share capital, the excess may be
transferred to capital or distributed in cash.

Except for non-ROC resident shareholders, all shareholders receiving dividends are allowed a tax credit
equal to their proportionate share of the income tax paid by the Corporation.

The appropriations of earnings for 2014 and 2013 approved in the shareholders’ general meetings in
June 2015 and June 2014, respectively, were as follows:

Dividends Per Share
Appropriation of Earnings (NTS)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2014 2013 2014 2013
Legal reserve $ 1,082,887 $ 1,002,673
Cash dividends 9,193,518 8,492,005 $§ 249 $§ 230

The appropriation of earnings for 2015 were proposed by the Corporation’s board of directors on March
30,2016. The appropriations and dividends per share were as follows:

Appropriation  Dividends Per
of Earnings Share (NTS)

Legal reserve § 577,599

Cash dividends 4,910,594 $1.33

The appropriation of earnings for 2015 is subject to the resolution of the shareholders’ general meeting
to be held in June 2016.

d. Special reserve

The Corporation appropriated to special reserve the amounts that were the same as the unrealized
revaluation increment and cumulative translation adjustments transferred to retained earnings at the
first-time adoption of IFRSs, which were $10,454,422 thousand and $2,709,369 thousand, respectively.

The special reserve appropriated at the first-time adoption of IFRSs relating to investment in properties
other than land may be reversed according to the period of use. The special reserve relating to land
may be reversed upon disposal or reclassification, and such special reserve of $159 thousand and $539
thousand were reversed for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The special
reserve appropriated, due to currency translation adjustments for financial statements of foreign
operations (including subsidiaries), shall be reversed based on the Corporation’s disposal percentage,
and all of the special reserve shall be reversed when the Corporation loses significant influence. There
was no such reversal during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.
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e. Other equity items

1) Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign operations

2)

3)

Balance at January 1

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

Share of exchange differences of associates and joint
ventures accounted for by using the equity method

Balance at December 31

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets

Balance at January 1

Unrealized gain (loss) arising on revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets

Reclassification of impairment arising from
available-for-sale financial assets

Cumulative gain reclassified to profit on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets

Share of unrealized gain on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets of associates accounted for by using the
equity method

Balance at December 31

Cash flow hedges

Balance at January 1

Changes in fair value of hedging instruments - foreign
exchange forward contracts

Reclassified loss from expiration of hedging instruments -
foreign exchange forward contracts
interest swaps

Balance at December 31
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For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
$ 3,226,509 $ 1,496,348
(1,002,059) 1,518,034
14,643 212,127
§ 2,239,093 § 3,226,509

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
$ 16,042,717  $ 15,202,029
(5,099,994) 840,633
51,296 -

(137) (89)

92 144

$ 10,993,974  $ 16,042,717

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
$ 12.130 $ (1.000)
(8.598) (3.487)
1,955 9,295
- 7322
1.955 16.617
§ 5487 $ 12,130
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f. Non-controlling interests

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Balance at January 1 $ 44,058,811 $ 40,540,632
Attributable to non-controlling interests:
Share of profit for the year 1,149,637 5,755,008
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign
operations (826,218) 588,934
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale financial assets (92,506) (14,467)
Changes in cash flow hedges (4,428) 8,753
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of associates and
joint ventures accounted for by using the equity method (8,720) 135,488
Adjustments relating to changes in capital surplus of associates
and joint ventures accounted for by using the equity method (586) -
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (3,729) (4,888)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries - (1,645)
Dividends paid by subsidiaries (2,769,710) (2,919,823)
Capital increase in cash to subsidiaries 6,022,723 -
Changes in proportionate ownership in subsidiaries (84,007) (32,231)
Others - 3,050
Balance at December 31 $ 47,441,267 $ 44,058,811

23. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE AND FINANCE
COSTS

Net income includes the following items:
a. Depreciation and amortization

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Property, plant and equipment $ 6,996,135 $ 6,305,540
Investment properties 25,543 25,959
Intangible assets 397.480 345,401

$ 7,419,158 $ 6,676,900

An analysis of depreciation by function

Operating costs $ 6,610,339 $ 6,040,573
Operating expenses 405,207 284,533
Non-operating expenses 6.132 6.393

§ 7,021,678 $ 6,331,499

An analysis of amortization by function
Operating costs $ 363,831 $ 344,592
Operating expenses 33.649 809

$  397.480 $  345.401
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b. Employee benefits expense

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Retirement benefit plans
Defined contribution plans $ 367,496 $ 320,469
Defined benefit plan 3,045 2,146
370,541 322,615
Other employee benefits 4,924,945 5,057,224
Total employee benefits expense $ 5,295,486 $ 5,379,839
An analysis of employee benefits expense by function
Operating costs $ 3,700,217 $ 3,601,738
Operating expenses 1.595.269 1,778,101

§ 5,295.486 $ 5,379,839

In compliance with the Company Act as amended in May 2015 and the proposed amended Articles of
Incorporation of the Corporation, which was approved by the Corporation’s board of directors in
November 2015, the Corporation accrued employees’ compensation and remuneration of directors at
the rates of 0.01%-3% and no higher than 1%, respectively, of net profit before income tax, employees’
compensation, and remuneration of directors. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the employees’
compensation and the remuneration of directors were $28,834 thousand and $50,517 thousand,
respectively. The employees’ compensation and remuneration of directors in cash for the year ended
December 31, 2015 were approved by the Corporation’s board of directors in March 2016 and are
subject to the resolution on the amendments to the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation for adoption
by the shareholders in their general meeting to be held in June 2016, and in addition, thereto a report of
such distributions shall be submitted in the shareholders’ general meeting.

Material differences between such estimated amounts and the amounts proposed by the board of
directors on or before the date that the annual consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue
are adjusted in the year that the bonuses and remuneration were recognized. If there is a change in the
proposed amounts after the annual consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue, the
differences are recorded as a change in the accounting estimate.

The bonuses to employees and remuneration of directors and supervisors for 2014 and 2013, which
were approved in the shareholders’ general meetings in June 2015 and 2014, respectively, were as

follows:
For the Year Ended December 31
2014 2013
Remuneration of Remuneration of
Directors and Directors and
Bonus to Employees Supervisors Bonus to Employees Supervisors
$58.612 $93.456 $60,140 $86,385

There was no difference between the amounts of the bonuses to employees and the remuneration of
directors and supervisors approved in the shareholders’ general meetings and the amounts recognized in
the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.
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Information on the appropriation of earnings, the employees’ compensation and remuneration of
directors proposed by the Corporation’s board of directors in 2016 and the appropriation of earnings,
bonuses to employees and remuneration of directors and supervisors resolved in the shareholders’
general meeting in 2015 and 2014 are available on the Market Observation Post System website of the

Taiwan Stock Exchange.

c. Finance costs

Interest on bank borrowings

Interest on corporate bonds

Loss arising on derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
cash flow hedge accounting relationships reclassified from
equity to profit or loss

Other finance costs

Information about capitalized interest was as follows:

Capitalization amount of interest

Capitalization rate of interest

24. INCOME TAX

a. Major components of tax expense recognized in profit or loss

Current tax
In respect of the current year
Income tax on unappropriated earnings
Adjustments for prior years

Deferred tax

Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss
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For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
$ 1,710,690 $ 1,680,110
- 69,904
- 2,340
163.049 154,861

$ 1.873.739 $ 1,907.215

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
$ 12,255 $ 20914
1.58-1.97% 1.53-1.96%

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014

$ 2,150,308 $ 4,013,338

52,956 89,657
(186.367) 186.816
2,016,897 4,289,811
(276.508) 325.033

$ 1,740,389 $ 4,614,844
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A reconciliation of income before income tax and income tax expense recognized in profit or loss was

as follows:
For the Year Ended December 31
2015 2014

Income before tax $ 8,666,015 $ 21,198,720
Income tax expense at the statutory rate $ 1,473,222 $ 3,603,782
Non-deductible expenses in determining taxable income 239,538 22,424
Tax-exempt income (523,097) (299,714)
Unrecognized loss carryforwards and deductible temporary

differences 508,821 148,826
Loss carryforwards utilized in the current year (28,203) (21,041)
Effects of different tax rate of subsidiaries operating in other

jurisdictions 31,785 787,942
Land value increment tax (118,566) -
Income tax on unappropriated earnings 52,956 89,657
Adjustments for prior years (186,367) 186,964
Others 290,300 96,004
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $ 1,740,389 $ 4,614,844

b. Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Deferred tax in the current year
Remeasurement on defined benefit plan $ (110,938) $ (12,178)
c. Current tax assets and liabilities
December 31
2015 2014
Current tax assets
Tax refund receivable (included in other receivables) $§ 235,090 $ 62,620
Current tax liabilities
Current income tax liabilities $ 1,214,642 $ 2,226,142
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d. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

The movements of deferred income tax assets (included in other non-current assets) and deferred
income tax liabilities were as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Recognized in

Other
Opening Recognized in Comprehensive Exchange
Balance Profit or Loss Income Others Differences Closing Balance
Deferred income tax assets
Loss carryforwards $ 301,878 $ 396,776 $ - - $ (1,970) $ 696,684
Allowance for impaired receivables 153,579 (13,017) - 28,807 (1,311) 168,058
Defined benefit plan 63,081 (3.476) 3,590 - - 63,195
Inventories 36,801 30,920 - - - 67,721
Others 140,997 (52.435) - - (446) 88.116
$ 696,336 $ 358,768 $ 3,590 $ 28,807 $ (3.727) $ 1,083,774
Deferred income tax liabilities
Land value increment tax $ 5,223,856 $  (118,566) $ - $ (12,317) $ - $ 5,092,973
Finance leases 2,418,074 147,583 - - - 2,565,657
Property, plant and equipment 1,226,835 (34,555) - 364,713 2,118 1,559,111
Retained earnings from foreign
subsidiaries 1,037,543 85,441 - (139,604) 177 983,557
Defined benefit plan 163,221 1383 (107,348) - - 57,256
Others 9.116 974 - - (84) 10.006
$ 10,078,645 $ 82,260 $  (107,348) $ 212,792 $ 2,211 $ 10,268,560
For the year ended December 31, 2014
Recognized in
Other
Opening Recognized in  Comprehensive Exchange Closing
Balance Profit or Loss Income Differences Balance
Deferred income tax assets
Loss carryforwards $ 273,770 $ 28,108 S - $ - $ 301,878
Allowance for impaired receivables 111,948 36,193 - 5,438 153,579
Defined benefit plan 63,827 (13,163) 12,417 - 63,081
Inventories 47,345 (10,544) - - 36,801
Others 113.320 26.300 - 1.377 140.997
$ 610,210 $ 66,894 S 12,417 $ 6,815 $ 696,336
Deferred income tax liabilities
Land value increment tax $ 5223856 $ - $ - $ - $ 5,223,856
Finance leases 2,152,013 266,061 - - 2,418,074
Property, plant and equipment 1,065,852 122,080 - 38,903 1,226,835
Retained earnings from foreign subsidiaries 924,340 137,216 - (24,013) 1,037,543
Defined benefit plan 157,658 5,324 239 - 163,221
Others 155.904 (138.754) - (8,034) 9.116
$ 9,679,623 $ 391,927 $ 239 S 6,856 $ 10,078,645
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c.

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets in respect of loss carryforwards

December 31
2015 2014
Loss carryforwards
Expire in 2015 $ - $ 91,363
Expire in 2016 110,010 112,886
Expire in 2017 212,143 221,039
Expire in 2018 621,564 646,540
Expire in 2019 1,642,094 1,670,609
Expire in 2020 2,875,648 242,150
Expire in 2021 253,691 286,053
Expire in 2022 506,272 520,721
Expire in 2023 225,401 242,138
Expire in 2024 101,399 101,399
Expire in 2025 1,983,395 -
$ 8,531,617 $ 4,134,898
Deductible temporary differences $ - $ 226,246
f.  Unused loss carryforwards information
As of December 31, 2015, there were no unused investment credits.
Loss carryforwards as of December 31, 2015 were comprised of:
Unused Amount Expiry Year
$ 180,072 2016
212,143 2017
741,518 2018
1,690,780 2019
4,572,755 2020
283,334 2021
734,794 2022
915,452 2023
567,457 2024
2,016,654 2025
$ 11,914,959

g. Unrecognized deferred income tax liabilities in respect of investments
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the taxable temporary differences in respect of investments in

subsidiaries and associates for which no deferred income tax liabilities have been recognized were
$48,943,047 thousand and $49,789,665 thousand, respectively.
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h. Integrated income tax information

December 31
2015 2014
Unappropriated earnings
Generated before January 1, 1998 $ 38,366 $ 38,366
Generated on and after January 1, 1998 19,672,531 24,712,429

$ 19,710,897 § 24,750,795

Shareholder-imputed credit accounts $ 1.391,805 $ 1.339.699

The estimated and actual creditable ratio for the distributions of 2015 and 2014 were 7.07% and 8.55%,

respectively.

i. Income tax assessments

The information of income tax assessments for the Group is as follows:

Year

Name of Group Entity

2014

2013

2012
2011

TCC Investment Corporation, Kuan-Ho Construction & Development Corporation,
Ta-Ho Onyx RSEA Environment Co., Ltd., Union Cement Traders Inc., Ho
Sheng Mining Co., Ltd.

Taiwan Cement Corporation, Tung Chen Mineral Corporation, Jin Chang Minerals
Corporation, Hoping Industrial Port Corporation, Ho-Ping Power Company,
HPC Power Service Corporation, Kuan-Ho Refractories Industry Corporation,
Ta-Ho Onyx Taitung Environment Co., Ltd., Ho Swen Construction Material
Co., Ltd., Tunwoo Company Limited, E.G.C. Cement Corporation, Taiwan
Transport & Storage Corporation, Taiwan Cement Engineering Corporation,
TCC Chemical Corporation, TCC Information Systems Corporation, Feng Sheng
Enterprise Company

Ta-Ho Maritime Corporation

Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation

Ho-Ping Power Company disagreed with the tax authorities’ assessment of its 2007 tax returns and
applied for an administrative remedy. Nevertheless, to be conservative, the Group provided for the

income tax assessed

by the tax authorities.

25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Unit: NTS$ Per Share

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Basic earnings per share 1.56 $ 293
Diluted earnings per share 1.56 $ 293
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The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding in the computation of earnings

per share were as follows:

Profit for the period attributable to owners of the Corporation

Number of shares (in thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in computation of

basic earnings per share

Effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares:

Employees’ compensation

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
computation of diluted earnings per share

2015 2014
§ 5,775,989 $ 10,828,868
3,692,176 3,692,176
1,829 2,016
3,694,005 3,694,192

If the Corporation offered to settle compensation paid to employees in cash or shares, the Corporation
assumed the entire amount of the compensation or bonus will be settled in shares, and the resulting
potential shares were included in the weighted average number of shares outstanding used in the

computation of diluted earnings per share, as the effect is dilutive.

Such dilutive effect of the potential

shares is included in the computation of diluted earnings per share until the number of shares to be
distributed to employees is resolved in the following year.

26. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

a. Subsidiaries acquired

TCC Huaying Cement
Company Limited
TCC Huaihua Cement

Company Limited and

its subsidiaries

Principle Activity

Cement manufacture and
sale

Cement manufacture and
sale of ready-mixed
concrete

Proportion
of Interest
Date of Acquired Consideration
Acquisition (%) Transferred
2015.1 100 $ 3,266,627
2015.5 100 5,801,051
$ 9,067,678

In order to expand the cement and clinker business in China, the Group acquired the interests of TCC
Huaying Cement Company Limited (formerly called Sichuan Railway Group Cement Company
Limited) and TCC Huaihua Cement Company Limited (formerly called Hunan Jindadi Materials
Company Limited) and its subsidiaries (TCC Jingzhou Cement Company Limited (formerly called
Jingzhou Jindadi Cement Company Limited) and TCC Huaihua Concrete Company Limited (formerly
called Huaihua Jindadi Concrete Company Limited)) and completed the acquisition in January and May

2015, respectively.
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b. Consideration transferred

Cash

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the dates of acquisitions

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Accounts and other receivables
Prepayments
Other financial assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Mining rights
Intangible assets

Long-term prepayments for leases

Deferred income tax assets

Other non-current assets
Current liabilities

Bank borrowings

Accounts payable

Other payables

Other current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Goodwill arising on acquisitions

Consideration transferred

Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets

acquired

Goodwill recognized on acquisition

TCC Huaihua
TCC Huaying Cement
Cement Company
Company Limited and
Limited Subsidiaries Total
§ 3,266,627 $ 5,801,051 $ 9,067,678
TCC Huaihua
TCC Huaying Cement
Cement Company
Company Limited and
Limited Subsidiaries Total
$ 69,289 $ 178,019 $ 247,308
171,582 536,445 708,027
112,099 284,995 397,094
194,773 196,066 390,839
- 544,777 544,777
3,981,022 6,637,427 10,618,449
5,122 33,911 39,033
- 335,472 335,472
236,762 822,094 1,058,856
- 28,807 28,807
1,774 8,186 9,960
(1,453,397) (984,058) (2,437,455)
(131,785) (2,241,335) (2,373,120)
(119,344) (2,356,686) (2,476,030)
(22,699) (159,824) (182,523)
- (98,950) (98,950)
(44,501) (320,212) (364,713)
- (83,213) (83,213)
$ 3,000,697 $ 3,361,921 $ 6,362,618
TCC Huaihua
TCC Huaying Cement
Cement Company
Company Limited and
Limited Subsidiaries Total
$ 3,266,627 $ 5,801,051 $ 9,067,678
(3.000,697) (3.361.921) (6.362,618)
$ 265930 $ 2,439.130 $ 2,705,060
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c.

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of the aforementioned entities because the cost of the combinations
included a control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the combinations effectively
included amounts in relation to the benefits of expected synergies, revenue growth and future market
development. These benefits are not recognized separately from goodwill because they do not meet
the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. The total amount of acquisition goodwill was
not deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on acquisitions of subsidiaries

TCC Huaihua
TCC Huaying Cement
Cement Company
Company Limited and
Limited Subsidiaries Total
Cash consideration $ 3,266,627 $ 5,801,051 $ 9,067,678
Less:
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (69,289) (178,019) (247,308)
Prepayments for investments (1,406,757) (713,623) (2,120,380)
Add: Effects of exchange rate changes - 21,339 21.339

$ 1,790,581 $ 4,930,748 $ 6,721,329

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group

The results of the acquirees since the acquisition dates included in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income were as follows:

TCC Huaihua
TCC Huaying Cement
Cement Company
Company Limited and
Limited Subsidiaries Total
Operating revenue $ 1,226,741 $ 1,923,767 § 3,150,508
Loss for the period $ (251.951) $ (183.386) $ (435337)

27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group needs to maintain sufficient capital to fulfill the Group’s requirements of business expansion
and construction. Therefore, the capital management of the Group shall focus on a comprehensive
operational plan to ensure sound profitability and financial structure so as to fulfill the mid- and long-term
demand of working capital, capital expenditures, debts repayment and dividend distributions.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of financial instruments that are not measured at fair value

The consolidated financial statements included holdings in unlisted shares. The fair values of those
unlisted shares estimated through valuation techniques would fluctuate with high volatility, and the
management believes that their fair values cannot be reliably measured. Therefore, such investments
were measured at cost less accumulated impairment.
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b. Fair value of financial instruments that are measured at fair value
1) Fair value hierarchy

December 31, 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Mutual funds S 147,113 $ - $ - $ 147,113
Available-for-sale financial assets
Domestic listed shares $ 6,460,049 $ - $ - $ 6,460,049
Foreign listed shares 12,197,320 - - 12,197,320
Domestic emerging market shares 546,719 - - 546,719
Mutual funds 14,353 - - 14,353
$ 19.218.441 $ - $ - $ 19,218,441
Derivative financial assets for
hedging
Foreign exchange forward
contracts S - $ 9.145 $ - $ 9.145
December 31, 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Mutual funds $ 176,865 $ - $ - $ 176,865
Available-for-sale financial assets
Domestic listed shares $ 8,126,330 $ - $ - $ 8,126,330
Foreign listed shares 15,746,706 - - 15,746,706
Domestic emerging market shares 745,668 - - 745,668
Mutual funds 19,227 - - 19,227
$ 24,637,931 $ - $ - $ 24,637,931
Derivative financial assets for
hedging
Foreign exchange forward
contracts S - $ 20,216 $ - $ 20,216

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the current and prior periods.

2) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial liabilities

2015 2014
Balance at January 1 $ - $ 22,213
Recognized in profit - (22,213)
Balance at December 31 $ - $ -
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3) Valuation techniques and inputs applied for the purpose of Level 2 fair value measurement

4)

Financial Instruments Valuation Techniques and Inputs

Derivatives - foreign currency Discounted cash flow.
forward contracts
Future cash flows are estimated based on observable forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period and contract
forward rates discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk
of various counterparties.

Valuation techniques and inputs applied for the purpose of Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair values of options were determined by using the Black-Scholes Model, and the inputs used
were as follows:

December 31,

2014
Measurement date share price HK$3.01
Expected volatility 42.18%
Expected life (years) 0.02
Expected dividend yield 2.45%
Risk-free interest rate 0.04%
c. Categories of financial instruments
December 31
2015 2014
Financial assets
FVTPL $ 147,113 $ 176,865
Derivative financial instruments in designated hedge accounting
relationships 9,145 20,216
Loans and receivables (1) 96,901,417 97,024,778
Available-for-sale (2) 20,041,050 25,183,959
Financial liabilities
Amortized cost (3) 121,621,692 113,825,220
1) The balances include loans and receivables measured at amortized cost, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivables, other receivables, other financial assets and
long-term finance lease receivables.
2) The balances include the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets measured at cost.
3) The balances include financial liabilities measured at amortized cost, which comprise short-term

loans, short-term bills payable, notes and accounts payables, other payables and long-term loans
(including current portion).
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d. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The risk control and hedging strategy performed by the Group were affected by operation
environments, and the Group adopted appropriate risk controls and hedging strategies according to its
nature of business and risk diversification principles. These risks include market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The Group sought to minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to
hedge risk exposures. The Group did not enter into or trade financial instruments for speculation.

1) Market risk

The Group’s financial instruments were mainly comprised of mutual funds and listed shares, and
these investments were subject to fluctuations in market prices. The Group has periodically
evaluated the investment’s performance, and no significant market risk was anticipated.

The Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts and interest swap contracts to manage
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and interest rates, including foreign currency risks of
foreign-currency assets and liabilities and price fluctuation risks of forecasted transactions. Since
the gain or loss generated due to fluctuations in exchange rates and interest rates was mostly offset
by the gains or losses of hedged items, the market price risk is expected to be insignificant.

a) Foreign currency risk

The foreign financial assets and liabilities were exposed to risk of foreign currency fluctuations.
To lower foreign currency risk, the Group has established control mechanisms to immediately
monitor its foreign currency position and exchange rate fluctuations.

To maximize the hedging effectiveness, the Group matched up the conditions of derivative
instruments with those in the contracts of hedged items.

The carrying amounts of the significant monetary assets and liabilities not denominated in
functional currency (including those eliminated on consolidation) at the end of the reporting
period are set out in Note 32.

The Group was mainly exposed to the USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the
functional currency against the relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis included
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 1% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in after-tax profit or equity associated with NTD/RMB/HKD
strengthening 1% against the relevant currency.

USD Impact HKD Impact
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2015 2014 2015 2014
NTD $ (3,106) $ 659 $ - $ -
RMB $ 409,528 $ 286,294 $ 42304 $ 138,904
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b) Interest rate risk

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities with exposure to
interest rates at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

December 31
2015 2014
Cash flow interest rate risk
Financial assets $ 29,098,037 $ 19,937,876
Financial liabilities 99,445,199 91,780,278

The interest risk was evaluated based on the position of financial assets and liabilities. The
sensitivity analysis below was determined based on the Group’s floating interest rate financial
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period, and a 50 basis point increase or decrease
was used, representing management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in interest
rates. The fair values of fixed interest rate financial assets and liabilities will change due to
variances in market interest rates; the future cash flows of floating interest rate financial assets
and financial liabilities will change due to variances in effective interest rates, which vary with
market interest rates.

For the Group’s position of floating interest rate financial assets, if interest rates had been 50
basis points higher/lower, the cash inflows from floating interest rate financial assets for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 would increase/decrease by $120,757 thousand and
$82,742 thousand, respectively.

For the Group’s position of floating interest rate financial liabilities, if interest rates had been 50
basis points higher/lower, the cash outflows from floating interest rate financial liabilities for
the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 would increase/decrease by $412,698 thousand
and $380,888 thousand, respectively.

Other price risk

The Group was exposed to equity price risk through its investments in listed shares and
emerging market shares. Equity investments are held for strategic rather than trading
purposes. The Group does not actively trade these investments. Sensitivity analyses were
used for evaluating the exposure to equity price risks.

The sensitivity analyses were based on the exposure of listed shares and emerging market shares
at the end of the reporting period. If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower, other
comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 would
increase/decrease by $960,204 thousand and $1,230,935 thousand, respectively.

2) Credit risk

Potential impacts on financial assets would occur if the Group’s counterparties breach financial
instrument contracts, including impacts to the concentration of credit risk, components contractual
amounts and other receivables.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk, which would
cause a financial loss to the Group due to the failure of counterparties to discharge an obligation,
could arise from the carrying amounts of the respective recognized financial assets as stated in the
balance sheets.
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3)

The Group transacted with a large number of customers from various industries and geographical
locations. The Group continuously assesses the operations and financial positions of customers
and monitors the collectability of accounts receivable. The Group also required credit
enhancements by bank guarantees or collateral for certain customers or in certain geographical
locations.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivatives was limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings which were assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring and maintaining a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. In addition, management monitors the utilization of bank facilities and
ensures compliance with loan covenants. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the amount of
unused financing facilities was $71,492,660 thousand and $80,414,363 thousand, respectively.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities from the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table included both interest and principal cash outflows. Specifically, bank
loans with a repayment on demand clause were included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities were based on the agreed upon repayment dates.

December 31, 2015
On Demand or

Less than 3 Months to

1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5+ Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing $ 361,770 $ 13,983,943 $ 4,250,939 $ 698,348 $ 41,141
Variable interest rate liabilities 2,472,751 15,344,623 24,947,039 59,954,978 -
Fixed interest rate liabilities 100,000 5.887.000 180,000 - -

$ 2934521 $ 35,215,566 $ 29,377,978 $ 60,653,326 $ 41,141

December 31, 2014
On Demand or

Less than 3 Months to

1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5+ Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing $ 606,651 $ 12,583,931 $ 3,595,560 $ 1,056,341 $ 41,337
Variable interest rate liabilities 1,032,181 19,695,989 21,558,293 52,037,272 -
Fixed interest rate liabilities 200,000 6.000.000 180,000 - -

$ 1838832 $ 38,279,920 $ 25,333,853 $ 53.093.613 $ 41,337
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29. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Balances and transactions between the Corporation and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Corporation, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of

transactions between the Group and other related parties are as follows:

a. Operating transactions

For the Year Ended December 31

Sales

Management personnel in substance

Associates

Investors with significant influence over the Group
Entities over which the Group has significant influence
Entities with same key management personnel

Purchases of goods and operating expenses

Entities over which the Group has significant influence
Entities with same key management personnel
Associates

Management personnel in substance

Investors with significant influence over the Group

2015 2014
$ 1,332,490 $ 640,563
710,313 751,554
309,909 137,619
176,066 210,596
165.842 173,574
$ 2,694,620 $ 1,913,906
$ 703,366 $ 796,514
184,975 391,899
119,866 144,346
61,643 7,839
51,244 8,662
§ 1,121,094 $ 1,349,260

Notes receivable and accounts receivable from related parties as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 were

as follows:

Management personnel in substance

Associates

Entities over which the Group has significant influence
Investors with significant influence over the Group
Entities with same key management personnel

December 31
2015 2014

$ 759,002 $ 117,215
136,232 113,298
41,240 38,854
36,997 28,789
11,788 21,534

$ 985,259 $ 319,690

Accounts payables from related parties as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Entities over which the Group has significant influence
Entities with same key management personnel
Others
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The price and terms of the above transactions were similar to those for third parties. Rentals of lease
contracts with related parties were based on market prices and the payment terms were determined at
arm’s length.

b. Loans to related parties (included in other receivables from related parties)

December 31

2015 2014
Management personnel in substance $ 524475 $ 1,934,960
Joint ventures 26,723 27,242

$ 551,198 $ 1,962,202

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the loans to related parties mentioned above were
unsecured loans.

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014

Interest income $ 47,154 $ 17,199

c. Other receivables from related parties

December 31

2015 2014
Associates $ 86,742 $ 1,185,169
Management personnel in substance 21,411 -
Others 9.491 4,493

§ 117,644 $ 1,189,662

Other receivables from related parties included dividend receivables and interest receivables.
d. Compensation of key management personnel

The compensation to directors and other key management personnel for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014 were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014
Short-term employee benefits $ 234316 $ 284,812
Post-employment benefits 3,188 3,019

§ 237,504 § 287,831
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c.

Endorsements and guarantees

Endorsements and guarantees provided by the Group to related parties and actually drawn as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

December 31
2015 2014

Associates $ 524475 $ 611,040

30. ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL OR FOR SECURITY

The following assets were pledged or mortgaged as collateral for certain short-term loans, long-term loans,
performance bonds and other credit accommodations:

December 31

2015 2014

Available-for-sale financial assets (including current and non-current

portion) $ 274,487 $ 306,109
Property, plant and equipment 5,551,998 4,114,482
Investment properties 956,585 959,605
Operational concession (included in intangible assets) - 81,875
Finance lease receivables (including current and non-current portion) 18,924,695 20,367,599
Prepayments for leases (including current and non-current portion) 266,219 364,246
Pledged bank deposits

- current (included in other financial assets) 405,199 106,946

- non-current (included in other non-current assets) 266.854 342.596

§ 26,646,037 $ 26,643,458

31. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS

a.

b.

The balances of the letters of credit for purchase of raw material and equipment were as follows:
December 31
Name 2015 2014
The Corporation $ 111,054 $ 74,064
Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation 902,819 1,207,072
Ho-Ping Power Company 467,759 553,929

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Corporation has issued bills of lading for finished goods in the
amount of 286,000 tons and 657,000 tons, respectively, as collateral for its credit facilities with
financial institutions.
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C.

The amounts of letters of guarantee issued by the banks for the Group are as follows:

December 31
Name 2015 2014
The Corporation $ 43,747 $ 45,933
Ho-Ping Power Company 1,148,000 1,148,000
Taiwan Prosperity Chemical Corporation 103,000 258,166
TCCI (Group) 89,924 89,038
Feng Sheng Enterprise Company 53,414 59,982
Taiwan Transport & Storage Corporation 28,650 28,650

Based on the “Build-Own-Operate Agreement for Waste Incineration Plant” (the “BOO Agreement”)
entered into by and between Ta-Ho Onyx RSEA Environment Co., Ltd. (“Ta-Ho RSEA”) and Yunlin
County Government (the “YCG”), Ta-Ho RSEA is permitted to build, operate and own an incineration
plant, and the YCG shall engage Ta-Ho RSEA to conduct waste incineration within Yunlin County.

Since the YCG delayed in issuing its license and terminated the BOO Agreement unilaterally on August
9, 2006, Ta-Ho RSEA filed a petition for arbitration in December 2006. Ta-Ho RSEA received the
arbitration award dated October 1, 2008, which decided that the YCG shall pay Ta-Ho RSEA $1.5
billion before November 30, 2008 as a Phase I payment, any delay of which shall incur interest of 5%
per annum; the remainder as a Phase II payment in the aggregate amount of $1,387,052 thousand,
US$1,706 thousand and JPY307 thousand shall be paid concurrently when Ta-Ho RSEA transferred the
assets under the BOO Agreement to the YCG before June 30, 2009, any delay of which shall incur
interest of 5% per annum; the arbitration expenses in the amounts of $14,629 thousand shall be borne
by the YCG.

After obtaining the ruling permitting compulsory enforcement of the arbitration award from the Taiwan
Yunlin District Court, Ta-Ho RSEA applied to the Civil Execution Department of the Taiwan Yunlin
District Court for compulsory enforcement for the Phase I payment of $1.5 billion; in January 2013, 3
parcels of land of the YCG were sold by auction as executed by the Civil Execution Department of
Taiwan Yunlin District Court in the amount of $221,485 thousand. As of December 31, 2015, Ta-Ho
RSEA received the principal and the interest in the total amount of $1,702,326 thousand (after tax).
Ta-Ho RSEA also applied for compulsory enforcement for the Phase Il payment, but was denied by the
Civil Execution Department of Taiwan Yunlin District Court as the contents of Ta-Ho RSEA’s
performance under the arbitration award was not clear and it was hard to determine whether Ta-Ho
RSEA performed its obligations. Ta-Ho RSEA appealed with the Taiwan High Court Tainan Branch
Court but was dismissed. Ta-Ho RSEA then further appealed with the Supreme Court, who vacated
the Taiwan High Court Tainan Branch Court’s ruling on October 22, 2014 and remanded the case to the
Taiwan High Court Tainan Branch Court. On August 19, 2015, the Taiwan High Court Tainan Branch
Court vacated the ruling of the Civil Execution Department of Taiwan Yunlin District Court which
revoked the petition of Ta-Ho RSEA (i.e. Ta-Ho RSEA’s petition for Phase II payment shall be
granted). The YCG further appealed with the Supreme Court, but the case was dismissed on October
29, 2015, in which event, Ta-Ho RSEA’s petition of compulsory enforcement for Phase II payment was
finalized. As to the compulsory enforcement petition made by Ta-Ho RSEA, the seizure and appraisal
of some assets of the YCG were undertaken, and Ta-Ho RSEA would be entitled to partial proceeds
derived from the auction.

Ho-Ping Power Company received an administrative sanction from the Hualien County Government in
the end of June 2012 (the “Sanction”) for its overuse of bituminous coal in 2009 and 2010 which
violated the Air Pollution Control Act and the Regulations Governing Sales or Use Permits of
Bituminous Coal, Petroleum Coke or Other Substances Prone to Cause Air Pollution. In this situation,
the Hualien County Government imposed an enhanced fine of $441,930 thousand pursuant to Article 18
of the Administrative Penalty Act.  Although the attorney retained by Ho-Ping Power Company was of
the opinion that the Sanction was controversial, Ho-Ping Power Company estimated and recorded
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relevant losses in 2012 and fully paid said fine by the end of 2014 based on the accounting
conservatism principle.

From the attorney’s view, the aspects of the Sanction which were controversial comprised its
procedures, substance and calculation amount. Ho-Ping Power Company therefore filed an
administrative action with the Taipei High Administrative Court for the Sanction in December 2012,
and the Taipei High Administrative Court revoked the Sanction in December 2013. The Hualien
County Government then filed an appeal in January 2014, and the Supreme Administrative Court
vacated the judgment made by the Taipei High Administrative Court and remanded the case to the
Taipei High Administrative Court. The Taipei High Administrative Court then revoked the amount of
the fine in the portion exceeding $436,017 thousand under the Sanction and dismissed the other claims
raised by Ho-Ping Power Company. Ho-Ping Power Company appealed the case to the Supreme
Administrative Court in January 2016.

f. Ho-Ping Power Company received a disposition from the Fair Trade Commission (the “FTC”) stating
that Ho-Ping Power Company and 8 other independent power producers (collectively, the “IPPs”) had
taken concerted action to achieve a common understanding not to adjust the power purchase price rate
with Taiwan Power Company (“TPC”) which violated Paragraph 1, Article 14 of the Fair Trade Act and
resulted in an impact on the supply and demanded function of the electricity market. The FTC
imposed an administrative fine of $1,350,000 thousand (the “First Disposition”) on Ho-Ping Power
Company pursuant to Paragraph 2, Article 41 of Fair Trade Act as amended and effective on November
23,2011. Ho-Ping Power Company argued against the First Disposition and, after consulting with its
attorney, appealed to revoke the First Disposition in accordance with relevant administrative
proceedings on the following grounds:

1) The electricity market in Taiwan is still of vertically integrated monopoly and not liberal, with only
the one exception that the IPPs are permitted to conduct power production business. However, the
IPPs can only sell power to TPC at a contractual fixed price under the power purchase agreement
entered into with TPC, and TPC maintains its monopoly over the power transmission and
distribution market. The power purchase price between the respective IPPs and TPC is fixed, and
the guaranteed power production is specified in the power purchase agreement leaving no room for
competition, which is different from the FTC’s claim that the IPPs can be classified in the same
power production market with TPC.

2) Assuming that the IPPs are all in the same production and/or marketing stage, it does not
necessarily give rise to horizontal competition for the following reasons. First, there is no price
competition among the IPPs. In the power purchase agreement, the selling prices include both
capacity charges and energy charges. Energy charges reflect variable costs with an adjustment
formula, while capacity charges reflect fixed costs of investing in building power plants without an
adjustment formula. It suggested that, when TPC drafted the agreement, it intended to have the
IPPs bear all fluctuations and risks of the financing and operating costs during the 25-year term.
Furthermore, the IPPs make their financial plan of amortized costs of loans based on the capacity
rate during the contract term. Hence, it is impossible to change capacity charges, and the IPPs’
capacity charge prices have been fixed since the signing of the agreement. There is no competition
among the IPPs. Secondly, there is no quantity competition among the IPPs. The IPPs’
electricity supply during the contract term is a “guaranteed capacity” plus an “adjusted capacity as
requested by TPC”, which may not be increased or decreased at the IPPs’ discretion but is subject to
TPC’s instruction.  Therefore, there is no quantity competition among the IPPs.

3) The FTC determined that the IPPs reached a common understanding by attending a meeting and
jointly refused to adjust the capacity rate under the agreement with TPC. However, the IPPs were
responding to TPC’s request to have a joint negotiation. In TPC’s meeting notice, the IPPs were
requested to attend the same meeting and were deemed as a consortium, and, in the meeting, the
IPPs were to discuss TPC’s proposal for amending the selling rate which shall be in conformity
with the purpose of the power purchase agreement. This shall be distinguished from a concerted
action restricting business activities. The FTC’s decision was obviously inaccurate.
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4)

5)

The IPPs have no obligation to adjust the capacity rate under the power purchase agreement. The
IPPs explicitly expressed, at the beginning of the negotiation which was requested by TPC, that it
was hard for them to agree on amending the power purchase agreement. On the contrary, TPC has
a significant share of the power production market, reaching 80% or more, and has absolute
dispatch power over the IPPs’ power production under the power purchase agreement. As the
decision-maker for the supply and demand of the electricity market, TPC would be likely to be
involved in the misuse of its market power by forcing the IPPs to negotiate amending the agreement
with its dominant position.

While the FTC deemed that the IPPs engaged in a concerted action in 2008, it imposed the fine on
Ho-Ping Power Company pursuant to Paragraph 2, Article 41 of the Fair Trade Act as amended on
November 23, 2011 and the Regulations for Calculation of Administrative Fines for Serious
Violations of Articles 10 and 14 of the Fair Trade Act promulgated on April 5, 2012. This is
clearly contradictory to the non-retroactive principle.

According to the attorney of Ho-Ping Power Company, the FTC had a wrong finding of facts and
application of the law. That is, Ho-Ping Power Company has neither competed with nor taken
concerted action with the other IPPs, and the First Disposition, which imposed a significant fine on
Ho-Ping Power Company pursuant to the new Fair Trade Act, was contradictory to the
non-retroactive principle. Ho-Ping Power Company appealed against the First Disposition with
the Petition and Appeals Committee of the Executive Yuan (the “P&A Committee”) in April 2013,
who made its administrative appeal decision in September 2013 sustaining the First Disposition in
part affirming Ho-Ping Power Company’s violation of prohibited concerted action but in part
revoking the fine. Accordingly, the FTC made a second administrative disposition in November
2013 with the fine of $1,320,000 thousand on Ho-Ping Power Company (the “Second Disposition™).

Ho-Ping Power Company filed an action with the Taipei High Administrative Court in November
2013, requesting the Court to revoke the First Disposition and the part of the administrative appeal
decision unfavorable to Ho-Ping Power Company, which was granted by the Taipei High
Administrative Court in November 2014. The FTC appealed this in December 2014, and in June
2015, the Supreme Administrative Court vacated the Taipei High Administrative Court’s judgment
and remanded the case to the Taipei High Administrative Court to render another judgment. In
August 2015, Ho-Ping Power Company received an order from the Taipei High Administrative
Court requesting Ho-Ping Power Company to file a supplementary statement based on the remand
of the Supreme Administrative Court’s judgment (Ref. No. 104-Pan-Zi-339 and Ref. No.
104-Su-Gan-Yi-Zi-68). The case is currently under review by the Taipei High Administrative
Court.

Ho-Ping Power Company separately appealed to the P&A Committee in December 2013 for
revocation of the Second Disposition. The P&A Committee made its administrative appeal
decision in May 2014, which revoked the Second Disposition, returned the fine to Ho-Ping Power
Company, and requested the FTC to render another appropriate administrative disposition in two
months. Nonetheless, the FTC rendered the third administrative disposition in July 2014 (the
“Third Disposition”) with the same fine of $1,320,000 thousand. Ho-Ping Power Company
appealed the Third Disposition in August 2014 and received a letter from the P&A Committee in
December 2014 notifying it that the administrative appeal procedures shall be suspended until the
Supreme Administrative Court rendered a final and binding judgment with respect to the First
Disposition and the part of the administrative appeal decisions which were unfavorable to Ho-Ping
Power Company. In July 2014, Ho-Ping Power Company applied for the payment of said fine in
60 installments with the FTC.
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In accordance with the accounting conservatism principle, Ho-Ping Power Company recognized
relevant losses in 2012 and has paid a fine of $396,000 thousand as of December 31, 2015. The
outstanding fine was recorded by Ho-Ping Power Company under (i) other payables of $264,000
thousand and other non-current liabilities of $660,000 thousand as of December 31, 2015 and (ii)
other payables of $264,000 thousand and other non-current liabilities of $924,000 thousand as of
December 31, 2014.

g. In September 2015, Ho-Ping Power Company received a complaint of administrative litigation raised
by TPC to the Taipei High Administrative Court, where TPC alleged that Ho-Ping Power Company and
other 8 IPPs conspired to set up an association to refuse the adjustment of capacity rate for TPC who
then suffered an unreasonably high electricity purchase rate for a long period of time and filed a claim
against Ho-Ping Power Company for its losses of at least $5.5 billion plus interest of 5% per annum
from June 1, 2008 to the repayment date, with a reserve of its right to amend the claim scope (the “First
Litigation”). In October 2015, the Taipei High Administrative Court ruled to suspend the judiciary
proceedings of the First Litigation until the closure of the 104-Su-Gan-Yi-Zi-68 administrative
litigation.

In November 2015, Ho-Ping Power Company received a complaint of civil litigation raised by TPC to
the Taiwan Taipei District Court, based on the same ground of the aforementioned administrative
litigation with a claim of damage for at least $5.2 billion plus interest of 5% per annum from June 1,
2008 to the repayment date, with a reserve of its right to amend the claim scope and request a public
apology made in the newspaper (the “Second Litigation”).

Based on the opinion of the attorney of Ho-Ping Power Company, the facts of the claim under the
Second Litigation are pending the review of the Taiwan Taipei High Administrative Court. Pursuant
to Article 32 of the Fair Trade Act, the right to claim damages thereunder shall be void if not exercised
within two years from the date that the claimant is aware of the act and the person liable for the
damages. As the FTC started investigation on whether the IPPs were engaging in the concerted action
since November and December 2012, TPC shall have known the act and the person liable for the
damages since then and its right to claim damages shall have be void at the application of the statute of
limitation. Thus, Ho-Ping Power Company considered the chance of the Second Litigation remote and
therefore did not recognize relevant losses.

32. SIGNIFICANT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The following information was aggregated by the foreign currencies other than functional currencies of the
group entities and the exchange rates between foreign currencies and respective functional currencies were

disclosed. The significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies were as follows:

December 31, 2015

Foreign Carrying
Currencies Exchange Rate Amount
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD $ 50,766 32.825 (USD:NTD) § 1,666,394
USD 189,797 6.513 (USD:RMB) 6,229,375
HKD 921,950 0.840 (HKD:RMB) 3.904.458
$ 11,800,227
(Continued)
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Foreign Carrying
Currencies Exchange Rate Amount
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD $ 39,366 32.825 (USD:NTD)  $§ 1,292,186
USD 1,693,113 6.513 (USD:RMB) 55,570,101
HKD 2,125,460 0.840 (HKD:RMB) 9.001,324
65,863,611
(Concluded)
December 31, 2014
Foreign Carrying
Currencies Exchange Rate Amount
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD $ 59,585 31.650 (USD:NTD) $ 1,885,865
USD 169,828 6.200 (USD:RMB) 5,369,961
HKD 343,918 0.800 (HKD:RMB) 1,403,185
$ 8,659,011
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD 62,093 31.650 (USD:NTD)  $§ 1,965,244
USD 1,260,695 6.200 (USD:HKD) 39,863,168
HKD 4,445,724 0.800 (HKD:RMB) 18,138,555
$ 59,966,967

The realized and unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses were net losses of $1,570,026 thousand and
$198,086 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. It is impractical to
disclose net foreign exchange gains (losses) by each significant foreign currency due to the variety of
foreign currency transactions and functional currencies of the group entities.
33. SEPARATELY DISCLOSED ITEMS
a. Information about significant transactions and investees
1) Financing provided to others (Table 1)

2) Endorsements/guarantees provided (Table 2)

3) Marketable securities held (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
(Table 3)

4) Marketable securities acquired and disposed of at costs or prices of at least NT$300 million or 20%
of the share capital (Table 4)
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5) Acquisition of individual real estate at costs of at least NT$300 million or 20% of the share capital
(None)

6) Disposal of individual real estate at prices of at least NT$300 million or 20% of the share capital
(None)

7) Total purchases from or sales to related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the
share capital (Table 5)

8) Receivables from related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the share capital
(Table 6)

9) Trading in derivative instruments (Notes 7 and 9)
10) Intercompany relationships and significant intercompany transactions (Table 9)
11) Information on investees (Table 7)
b. Information on investments in mainland China (Table 8)

1) Information on any investee company in mainland China, showing the name, principal business
activities, paid-in capital, method of investment, inward and outward remittance of funds,
ownership percentage, net income of investees, investment income or loss, carrying amount of the
investment at the end of the period, repatriations of investment income, and limit on the amount of
investment in the mainland China area

2) Any of the following significant transactions with investee companies in mainland China, either
directly or indirectly through a third party, and their prices, payment terms, and unrealized gains or

losses:

a) The amount and percentage of purchases and the balance and percentage of the related payables
at the end of the period.

b) The amount and percentage of sales and the balance and percentage of the related receivables at
the end of the period.

¢) The amount of property transactions and the amount of the resultant gains or losses.

d) The balance of negotiable instrument endorsements or guarantees or pledges of collateral at the
end of the period and the purposes.

e) The highest balance, the end of period balance, the interest rate range, and total current period
interest with respect to financing of funds.

f) Other transactions that have a material effect on the profit or loss for the period or on the
financial position, such as the rendering or receipt of services.
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34. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance focuses on the types of segment.

segments were as follows:

a.

b.

Cement segment - production, processing and sale of cement goods.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable

Chemical engineering segment - production, processing and sale of chemical raw materials.

Electricity segment - thermal power generation.

Other segments - land and marine transportation.
- production and sale of refractory materials.

- others

The Corporation uses the profit from operations as the measure for segment income and the basis of

performance assessment.

operating segments and the accounting policies described in Note 4.

a.

Segments revenue and results

Cement segment

Chemical engineering
segment

Electricity segment

Other segments

Adjustments and
eliminations

Share of profits of
associates and joint
ventures

Dividend income

Other income and
expense, net

Interest income

Government grants

Gain on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment, net

Administrative costs and
director’s remuneration

Finance costs

Foreign exchange losses,
net

Income before income tax

Segment Revenue

There was no material difference between the accounting policies of the

Segment Income

For the Year Ended December 31

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014 2015 2014
$ 68,265,022 § 78490919 $ 2487671 $ 11,862,759
11,877,169 23,254,463 (1,620,047) (547,776)
12,645,730 14,264,927 8,468,844 8,322,179
10,315,984 11,986,601 387,748 313,963
(9.424.829) (9.671.101) - -
$ 93,679,076  $ 118,325,809 9,724,216 19,951,125
737,161 1,250,088
958,117 832,814
73,295 669,388
430,757 309,383
233,545 221,457
3,206 163,222
(50,517) (93,456)
(1,873,739) (1,907,215)
(1,570.026) (198,086)
$ 8666015 $ 21,198.720

Segment income represented profit before tax earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, director’s remuneration, share of profits of associates and joint ventures, dividend
income, interest income, government grants, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net,
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finance costs, foreign exchange gains and losses and income tax expense.
b. Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of operations and information about its
non-current assets by location of assets are detailed below.

Revenue from External

Customers Non-current Assets
For the Year Ended December 31 December 31
2015 2014 2015 2014
Taiwan $ 48,986,363 $ 64,539,286 $ 58,805,082 $ 58,409,016
Asia 44,692,713 53,786,523 94,970,757 85,193,339

$§ 93,679,076  § 118,325,809 $ 153,775,839  § 143,602,355

Non-current assets exclude financial instruments, deferred income tax assets, and net defined benefit
asset.

c. Information about major customers
The only single customer who contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue was as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2015 2014

Taiwan Power Company $ 12,645,730 $ 14,264,927

-81 -



INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

(panunuo))

-78-

Suueuy sanaed pajejor pajuwry
LETO1L9 LETO1L'9 - R - [endes Sunesado| - WL} }0yS 10§ Padu Y - - - 67997 sax - sojqeatooat | Aueduwo) Juown) tuif uensauoy
Sutoueuyy sonued pojejor
808°01T°191 $0¥'509°08 - - - [endes Sunendo)| - ULI2)-310hs I0] paou oY, - - - TLO'LIL SIA - S9[qEAIAIIDYIO (T 210N) (3IH) 1DDL
Suroueury sanaed pajefar (z210N)
808°01Z°191 $O¥'S09°08 - - - [ended Sunesedo)| - ULId)-HOYS 10J padu Y - - 005°661 009°L1S SOA - SA[qEAI2021 1OYIO | “PIT 0D Judwd) (uenn uo) DOL
Suueuy sanuaed pajejor (T 20N)
80801191 | +0K'509'08 - - - [ended Sunesado)| - WI}-10yS 10f Paau Ay - - 000'666 002°S£0°1 sax - S9IqRAIRO21 110 PIT 700 W) UNySUY DL
Sutoueuy sonued pojejor (Z 910N) porwiry
808°01Z°191 $0¥'509°08 - - - [endes Sunenndo)| - WIO}-HI0YS 10] P AY L 88°€ SIL'PET 0SL6¥T 008°8ST $OK - So[qeAPOAI Y| Auedwio) yuawa) noyzBuir D)L
Suueuy sanaed pajejar (Z20N)
808°01T191 PO¥'S09°08 - - - [ended Sunesado| - WLI2)-110YS 10) Padu AL 89°¢ 86'16€ ¥86°16€ 881°90% S0 - S[qEAI2021 IYI|  PIT 0D AW uenForys DL
Suueuy sanaed pajejor (z 20N) panwry
80801191 | 0450908 - - - fended Sunesado| - WI}-10yS 10] Paau Ay 88°€ £9L°95L 0ST'6YL 00¥'9LL sax - saIquAROL 0| Aurduio)) Juawa) eNYIEE DL
Suouvuyy soned pojejor (2 210N) pr1
808012191 ¥0¥509°08 - - - [ended Sunesado| - ULI2}-1I0YS J0J PAdU YL 89°€ 0SS°6b 000666 00TSE0'T SOk - SO[qEAIDOAI IDYIQ| "PIT 0D Judwa) ueBueny DL “00 Juawa) pIUIX DOL | 8
Suueuy sanaed pajejar (z210N) "Y1 0D JudUR)
208017191 POBS09°08 - R - [endes Sunesado)| - WL10}-110Ys 10J PaoU YL R - 000°666 007°S€0°T oA - SO[qEAID0RI 1DYI0) Py “0D) Wwawa)) apBuIA DDL| urennopy uodeiq opSuix | £
Suoueuyy sonued pajejar (T 290N)
808°01T° 191 $0F$09°08 - - - [endes Sunenndg)| - WLID)-1IOYS 10J PadU Y[, - - 00666 0T§'€01 SOA - SO[QRAIDORIIDYIQ|  “PIT “0)) AJ2IDUOY) NOYZN] SMIDS
Suoueuyy soned porejor (2 210N)
808012191 ¥0¥509°08 - - - [endeo Sunesado| - ULI2}-110YS 10J Padu AL - - 00S°661 009°L1S S0k - S9[qEAI20A1 1YIO “PYT “0D Wawa) ApFUIA DL
Suueuy sanaed pajefar (Z210N)
808°01T'191 P0b'509°08 - - - [ended Suneado)| - ULI}-HI0YS 10 PadU A, - B 005661 009°L1S SR - SI[qEAI2021 Y10 P 70D JUAWI)) IXEN SIS
Suoueuyy sonued pajejar (T 290N)
808°01T'191 POP'S09°08 - - - [ended Sunesado| - ULIAI-OYS J0J PadUt A, - - 009°86€°1 08T6YH'1 59K - SAUAROADYIO|  PKT “0D) JUSLIA)) NOYZN'T SO
Supoueuy soned pojejor (2 210N) ponuir
808012191 ¥0¥509°08 - - - [ende Sunesado| - ULI2}-110Ys 10J Padu YL $8'c 0S€°6v9 0ST6VL 00¥°9LL s9K - so[qeataoar 1YlO|  Aurdwo) juawa)) noyzBurr D1
Sunueuy sanaed pajejar (z 20N) panwry
808°01T'191 P0b'S09°08 - - - [ended Suneado| - ULI}-}I0YS 10§ PadU A, $8°c LTITUS 000°666 00T°S€0°T SOK - 53]quA0A1 IYIO|  Auedwio)) Juawd)) enyreng HOL
Suroueuyy sanued pajejor (Z 210N) paywry paywry
808°01Z°191 $0¥'509°08 - - - [endeo Supeidp)| - WHI9}-HOYS 10J PAAU Y|, 89°¢ GLL'SEY' L 095°8€P' 889°061° L SK - s9[qeAor 1oYIO|  Auedwio) yuswa) Fuikeny DOL| LW (Suednn) 0L | 9
Suroueury sonaed pajefor
PPITITIT PPI'TITIT - - - [ended Sunesado| - ULI2}-HOYS 10) PadU Y| 6L 0S§°8€6°€ 055°8€6°€ 8€6'91T8 SO - S[qEAID0A1 1DYIO (2 210N) HIDDL 1001 ¢
Suroueury sonaed pajefar (Z210N) "pr1 0D PrT
£65'89 £65°89 - - - [ended Sunesado| - ULI}-}IOYS J0J PadU A, 6L 0000t 00008 000°001 SOA - SAqUAIDOAI JDYIQ|  JURWIUONAUT VHSYH XAUQ OH-BL| 0D Sumn Suays opf | ¢
uoneiodio)
Surouruy sanaed pajejar (Z210N) "pr1 0D Suueouruy
Y6S'LT oS HLT - - - fended Sunesado| - UWID}-H0YS 10§ PadU Ay 6L 000°05T 00005 000052 sax - SAIQRAIOAI Q| JUDILOIIAUS VEHSY XAUQ OH-EL wowa) uemrey | ¢
Suroueuy soned pojejor (Z910N) ‘PYT=0D | “pr1 0D juowuoauz
POCLIT POCLIT - - - [endeo Sunesadp| - WIA)-1I0YS 10J PAdU Y | 6L'1 000°0L 000°0L 000°0L SOA - SI[QRAIIAI 1310 JUAWUOIIAUT VASY XAUQ OH-B] Sumiep xAug oj-eL | T
Suroueury sanued pajefor (z210N) Pr1
€PE0I8 £PE018 - - L6V'T [endeo Sunesdp| - WIA)-HOYS 10J PAAU Y| 00°€ L6V'T L6V'T 0009T SOA - SAIQBAIDIAL IYIO | “0)) [BLIDIBJN UOHONISUO)) UIMS O
Suroueuy sanaed pajejar (Z2100N) pr1 0D uonelodio) afeiolg
CHE0I8 £PE018 - - - [endeo Sunendp| - ULI2}-1I0YS 10J PIAU Y|, 6L1 000°0F€ 000°0FE 000°0S€ BN - SO[qBAID221 1210 JUDWUONAUY YHSY XAUQ OH-B ] % podsuei] uemiel | |
Sutoueuy soned pojejor (Z 910N) Y1 0D voneiodio))
YOI'LITEY $ | L6§'809°TT S | - $ - - § | rended Sunesndo| - § |wuor-pi0ys 1oy paou oy 95°1 000°5LT 00000 $ | 00000€ S s9K - SO[qEAID0AI IDYIQ|  JUIWUONAU VESY XAUQ OH-®L AW UEMIEL| ()
(1 90N) (120N) $S0'] Bupueury junowy junowry pouag
A 1oMoLI0Og anpep woyy ousut, (%) 5 SopEg | JUN0RIY JUIWAEIS 3
MON ] Supueury 0 10 Juousaredury wa-0yS uopoesuea), | BupueugjosameN | 0 Buimortog | oouvleg Burpug | oy doj duepeg | eue aamoLi0g aapuar] N
apusssy tord o) 105 1y | a0y uoseay ssoutsng PeR sl [emoy 1SUSIH P fepuenld
] Supueugg [ZELT
(SIE[I0Q UEMIEL MON JO SpuEsnoy 1, uy)
S10T ‘1€ YIGWADIA AAANT YVAA THL O
SYAHLO OL AIAIAOUd SONIDNVNIA
SHRIVIAISANS ANV NOILVIOJUOD INAIWID NVAIVL
TAT4VL




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-¢8-

(panunuop)
Suroueury sanaed pajefar (z210N) Pr1
808°01T'191 P0¥'S09°08 - - [ended Sunesado)| - ULI}-HOYS J0J PadU A, P71 859'hS 859°ShS T68°€09 S0 - SO[qEAI20A1 IYIO| “0D) 1BD) URI[ UY MY [IEY nOYZInD, ‘PrT sSurploH AIKem | of
Suueuy sanaed pajejor (Z20N)
808°01T'191 P0¥'S09°08 - - [ended Sunesado)| - ULII-HOYS J0J PadU Y|, ot €1€01Y £1E€°017 SLYO0LY S0 - S9[qEAI2921 11O “PIT 0D Wwawa) D)L, Suoany OIH) 100L] st
Sutoueuy soned pojejor (7 910N)
808°01T'191 POF'S09°08 - [ended Suneado| - ULI2}-HOYS 10 PadU Y. - - 058611 010°TS 1 SOk - SO[QEAIDRALIYIO|  PIT “0D) WAWA) NOYZN'] SO
Suroueury sanaed pajejar panwry Auedwo)) sjeLRIR pY1 0D
1%T°S16 15T'S16 - - [endes Sunesadp| - WIA)-1I0YS 10J PAJU Y | - €TL°9T €TL°9T T69°LT SOA - SI[QRAIIAI 1310 uondNNSU0)) e Y ury ueduenn waw)) uesueny) DOL| |
Suroueury sanaed pajejar (z210N)
808°01T'191 POP'S09°08 - - [ended Suneado| - ULI}-HOYS J0J Padu A, - - 0S8°6¥1 08T'sS1 SOA - SAqUAIIALIYIO|  “PYT 0D JRIDUO) NOYZA'T SO
Suoueury soned pajejor (T2a0N) P11
808012191 70¥509°08 - - [ende Sunesado| - ULI2}-1I0Ys 1) Padu YL - - 088°6t1 08T'SS1 s9K - S[qEAIDDA1 IAYIQ| “0D) 1D URIF UY I I[IEY nOYZIND,
Suroueury sanaed pajefar (Z210N)
808°01T'191 P0b'S09°08 - - [ended Suneado)| - WLI}-}I0YS 10§ PadU A - - 0SL'6YT 008°85T SOA - SA[qUAII0A1 IO | “PIT “0D) JudWA) UQ Suoy noyzing
(z210N)
Suroueuy sanuaed pajejor panwiry Auedwo)) sjeLRA Y1
808°01Z°191 PO¥'S09°08 - - [ended Sunesadg)| - ULID)-}OYS 10 PIOU YL, 80-88°€ 88Y°Tl 006°66 0TS'€01 A - SS[qBAIRAI 110 UORINISUOD [B], ULY UNYsUY| “00) JUIWA) unysuy J0L| g1
Suoueuyy soned pajejor (T 210N) "1 0D s[eLe
TIT8PLY 1IT8PLY - - [endes Sunenndo)| - ULI2}-1I0YS 10) paau Ay [, - - - 0T8°€01 SIA - SA[qEAIRAT 1BYIO)| uononnsuo) noyzni 5L
Buroueury sanaed pajefar (z210N)
808°01Z°191 PO¥'S09°08 - - [endeo Suneiad)| - UL91-10Ys J0J P3oU dY [, - - 005°661 009°LIS SOX - SOqEAIRIOL DYIQ)| PYT 0D JudwR) uesuenD HOL
Sunueuy saned pajepar (Z2100N)
808°01Z°191 PO¥'S09°08 - - [endes Sunesndo)| - WIS)-HOYS 10 PAAU YL | - - 005661 009°L1S SR - SO[qEALRAL IS0 YT 0D JudWR) PFWA DDL
Sunoueury sonaed pajefar (z20N)
808012191 ¥0¥509°08 - - [endeo Sunesado| - ULI2}-110Ys 10J Padu AL - - 000°666 00T°S£0°T S9K - S9[qEAIR2A1 1YIO "PYT 70D AW UNYsUY DL
Buroueuyy sanaed pajefar (z20N)
808°01T'191 PO¥'S09°08 - - [ended Sunesado| - ULII-HOYS J0J Padu A, - - 000666 00TSE0'T EI% - SO[quAIRRAL IYIO|  “PIT 0D JudwR) FubFuoy) DO
Suoueuyy sonued pajejar (z 210N) panwr|
808°01Z°191 PO¥'S09°08 - - [endeo Suneiad)| - WIS)-HOYS 10 PAAU YL | /b€ 01668 088'6v1 08T'sS1 SOA - SA[QEAPOAL Y| Aurdwio) 2321000 BYIENH D)L
Suoueury sonaed pajefar (T 20N) PI1 0D
808017191 $01°509°08 - - Tendes Sunesado)| - WI2}-}0YS 10] PAIU Y, or'e 088°6F1 08861 808°0LT SOA - S9[qeA12031 JOYIQ | JuowAFEURI (noyZBUEH) MON DL
Suroueury sanaed pajefar (z210N)
808°01Z°191 PO¥'S09°08 - - [endeo Suneied)| - ULIS)-HO0YS 10J p3du Y] 88°¢ STVLL 0ST6rL 00¥'9LL SOX - SO[qEAL301 ISYIQ)| “PIT 0D JUAWD)) NOYZNT SMIdS
Bunueuy saned pajepar (Z210N)
808°01Z°191 PO¥'S09°08 - - [endeo Suneiado)| - Wua1-30s 10 paou oY, /b€ 0SL6VT 0SL6rT 008°8§T SOA - SO[qEALRAL 13O PYT 00 Judwd) Futuoery DL
Suroueury sonaed pajefar paywry
1ITSPLY 11TSPLY - - [endes Sunesado)| - WR}-J0YS 10] PAIU Y, 9 SLETS SLEPTS 08t°€FS SoA - so[qeAtP0ar PYIO|  Aueduwio) Judwa) fuif uensguo(y
Suoueuy saned pajejr (¢ 210N) panuiry Pr
808°01Z°191 PO¥'S09°08 - - [endeo Supeiadp)| - ULI9)-HOYS 10j p3ou Y| b€ 0SL'8YT'1 0SL'8YT'1 000'76T°1 N - SOqEAIRIAI DYIQ)| Auedwo) yuowa) enyeny HOL| <0 W) DI Suomf| 7y
Suoueuyy sonued pajejor (T 20N)
808012191 Y0¥509'08 - - [ended Sunesado| - ULI2}-1I0YS J0j PAdU YL - $86'S1T S86°S1T 162°91C S04 - SO[qUAIDOAIIYIQ|  panwI JuounsoAu] anfeA saddp PYTOA duLg| ||
Sutoueuy soned porejor (2 910N)
ITHTTE WITHTTE - - [ended Suneado)| - LI}-}I0YS 10§ PadU A - - - £THl SR - SO[qEAIR031 1AYI0) “prT SBUIp[OH Judwa)) U Suoy|
Suroueury sanaed pajejar (z210N)
WITHTTE WITHTTE - - [ended Sunesado)| - ULI}-}I0YS 10 PadU Y, - TE'19T THE19C £18°0LT SOA - S9[qEAI20A1 11O "PYT "0 wawa) 3pFWA DOL HIOOL| o1
Suueuyy soned pajejar (T 290N)
808017191 P0VS09°08 - - [endeo Sunesndo)| - ULI9}-OYS 10] PAAU Y - - 0SL'6VT 008°85T SR - SO[QEALIAL YO “PrT “0D 1Wawa) dpFUIA DOL
Suoueuyy soned porejor (Z910N) PY1
808°01Z°191 $0¥'509°08 - - [endes Sunesadg)| - LI2}-1I0YS 10) paau Ay [, - - 0SL'6¥T 008°8ST SIA - SARAI2OI IO 0D 1)) UBIf UV 1Y I[IE] Noyzing
Sutoueuyy sanaed pajefar (z210N)
808017191 $OS09°08 - - [endes Suneodo| - WLIR)-HOYS 10J PadU YL $8°c STSPLL 089°6F€ 07€°79¢ SOA - SA[QRAI203T JAYIO “PIT 0D Juawa)) Suruoer] D)L
Suueuy sanaed pajejor (T20N) P11 0D Pl
808°0IT'191 $ | ¥OF'S09'08 $ $ - - $ [rendeo Supesado)| - ¢ |uuar-poys oy paau oy | 8¢ 00L'66T $ | 00s‘661 $ | 009°LIS S Sox - SA[qRAIDOAL IOYIO | udWRFRURIA (OYZSURH) MAN DDLL| “0D WAWA) noyzng DL | 6
(1 910N)
(1 210N) 1amoLiog anfep way 301 supoueuty Junowy (%) Junowy poriad sopaEg | JuUNoddy JuawarEls
NON |y Supueury Juauriedury wa)-pIoys uondEsuEL |, Bupuruly jo ameN Bummouriog ddueyeg Suipuy | dy) 10j duUEEg Jamoarog Japuar| ON
yoegy 10y apey Isaa0pu] parepy [eueury
edaisdy a0y 1\% J10J uosey ssauisng ey SYBIH
ywry Supueury [EIREI




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

- g -

(papnjouo))
uodn u00q 2ABY IV 9N
“Auedwiod yaea Jo aneA 19U Y JO %0 219M satuedwod Jaylo Yy 10j syw| Supueuly Ae32IF3e pue [enpialpul YL D
“joAnoadsas uoneiodio)) aWNLEIN OH-E, PUB HIDOL JO A1mba 19U 31 JO %4007 PUE %001 210 UONEI0dI0)) SWNLEN OH-EL PUE HIDDL Aq PAUMO A[J031IpUL 10 A[191IP %00 | 1B SIYFL SUIOA ASOUM SILEIPISQNS UFI210) A1 JO SHwl| Fuioueuy aeFaiBFe pue [enpiatpui 2y, °q
“JOMOLI0Q AU} YA JUNOWE UOHOBSUEL 9y} JO 10 A)inba 10U §31 Jo ‘A[9A10adSaI ‘40t PUB %07 1om UoHEIdIo)) JUSWd)) UemIE], 10§ sy Suroueuy 2e3ai38e pue [enplatput oy '8
- SHwry Suueur] A1eBoISRY,, pUE JoMoLIOg YorE 0] ST SuduRLL,, [ JION
Suroueury sonued pajejor (Z0N) P11 0D
0SS'SPT 0SS'8P1 - - [edeo Supeiado)| - LLLID}-1I0YS 10j PIIU Y, - - - 000°00T SOA - S3[qRAIDII 1BYIO JUAWUOIAUE VESY XAUQ OH-BL|*0U] SI9PRIL JUdW) uotun | ;7
Sutoueuy soned porejor (2 910N)
0TS'861 07S'86t - - [endes Suneradp| - WIA)-1IO0YS 10J PAdU Y | SL'l 000°L 000°L 000°L SOA - SI[QRAIIAI 1310 uoneiodio) sjelaurpy Suey) uip
Suroueury sanued pajefor (ZA0N) Pr1 0D uoneiodio)
05861 0T5'861 - - [ended Sunesado)| - ULI}-}I0YS 10 PadU Y, 9Ll 000°0% 000°0% 000°09C SO - SAqUAIOAI IYIQ|  JudIUOIIAUT VHSYH XAUQ OH-BL uawsaAU] ODL| 9z
Suoueuyy sonued pajejar (z 210N) panwr| panwiry Auedwo)y
808°01T° 191 $0F'$09°08 - - [endeo Suneiado)| - ULID)-HOYS 10 PAOU AL, - - - 01686 SOA - SO[qEAIRIAI JBYIQ)| Auedwo) yuowa)) unysuy DO L[ 1wdwe) uQ Fuoy noyzmn| ¢z
Sutoueuy soned pojejor (z910N) “pr1 <o) 18
808012191 ¥0¥509°08 - - [endeo Sunesado| - ULI2}-1I0YS J0J Padu YL - - 088°6t1 08T'Ss1 s9K - S[qEAI2021 1YIO ‘YT 0D AW IXEN SMIDS| UBIf UV Y [[IEY NOYZIND| 7
Suroueuyy sanaed pajefar (z210N)
808017191 $0509°08 - - [endes Supeado| - LI)-HOYS 10J PAdU YL 0sT 8€L°16€ 8€L°16€ £67°T6€ SoA - SA[qEAIIAI 1Y “PIT 0D WAWR) noyzNg snyidg| “piy sBUIPOH AT U0SexaH| ¢z
Suroueury sanaed pajefa1 (z210N)
808°01Z°191 $0¥°€09°08 - - [endes Suneiadg| - WLIS)-HOYS 10J PAAU Y[ | 0S'T 6EE'P0T 6E€P0T 829'10CT SIA - SS[qBAIRAI IS0 “PYT 00 USW) IXBN SMIDS| “PYT SBUIPIOH [1] UOBEXOH | 77
Pr1UoC
Suroueuy soned pojejor (zowN) | sonsiSo] euonewsoiuy
PLISSLO 18S°LLES R - [endes Suneado)| - WWL10}-10Ys 10J PaoU AL B - 058611 087551 sx - sojqeAtp0a1 1YI0|  “PrT <00 Burddiys ofj-eq] Suedinn (Buesino) Suor val |z
Suroueury sanaed pajefar (z 210N) P11 “0D sonsiSo
PLI'SSL'9 L8S'LLE'E - - [endes Sunesadp| - WID)-1IOYS 10J PAAU Y | - - - STSIPT SOA - SI[QRAI0AI 1210 Teuonewu] (Suesinn) Suoj eq: V'S [euonewdu] DHL| g
Suueuy sanaed pajejor (Z2100N) pr1 0D pr (euny))
808°01Z°191 +0°S09°08 - - [endes Suneradp| - WLIS)-1I0YS 10) PAdU Y | - 019°861 0by86€ LTIV SOA - SO[qBAI901 1010 | JuswdFeuR N (noyzSuer]) MON DL sjesouly Ajuadsoxd| g1
Sutoueuy sonued pojejor (2 910N)
808°01T'191 P0b'509°08 - - [ended Sunesado)| - ULI}-}I0YS 10§ PadU A, - - 096'6€ S0V Tt S9K - SA[qUAIDOAI IYIQ|  "PYT 0D AI2IDUO)) NOYZN'T SO
Sunueuy sanaed pajejar (z20N)
808°01T'191 PO¥'S09°08 - - [endeo Suneado| - ULI}-HOYS 10 PadU A, 38°¢ 08L°61C STLPLT 089°'8T S0 - S9[qEAI2021 11O “PIT 0D AW IXBN SIS
Supueuy sanued pajejor (z210N) “PIT 00 JuSWOTRUR
80801191 | 0¥'509°08 - - fendes Sunesado| - WLI-HOYS 1] PAUAL|  gpp-gge | 069'60€ 069°60€ 216'0zE sax - SAQRAIROIIO|  PIT 0D WAW) noyzn smiog|  (noyzduep) mON ODL| g1
Sutoueuy soned porejor (z910N)
808012191 70¥509°08 - - [ended Sunesado| - ULI2}-110YS 1) Padu YL - - 0SL'65T 008°85T S9K - SO[QEAID0I IAYIO| PV “0D) JUAWA) NOYZN'T SO,
Suueuy sanaed pajejar (2 210N)
808°01T'191 P0¥'S09°08 - - [ended Suneado)| - ULI}-}I0YS 10§ PadU A, - - 005661 009°L1S s9K - SAqUAIRA IYO| PIT 0D Judw)) ueBueny D)L
Suroueuy sanuaed pajejor (T 210N) panwry
808°01Z°191 $0¥'509°08 - - [ended Sunesado)| - WLIR)-HIOYS 10) AU Y[, 88°€¢ ¥8T6L SLYYTI 070°L0T SOk - so[qeApdI Y| Aurdwo) Juswa) Suikeny D)L
Sutoueuy soned porejor (2 210N) panuiry
808012191 70¥509°08 - - [endeo Sunesado| - ULI2}-110Ys J0J Padu AL $h's 19€°6€1 005661 00S°66% s9K - so[qeAta0a1 dYIO|  Auedwio) Juowa) enyrenH DL
Suueuy sanaed pajejar (Z210N)
808°01T'191 PO¥'S09°08 - - [ended Sunesado)| - ULI}-HOYS 10§ PadU A, 89°¢ 0S8°61 1 058671 08T'sS1 S9K - SI[qEAI2021 Y10 ‘P 70D AW IXEN SIS
Suoueuyy sonued pajejar (Z2a100N) P11 PYT 0D
S080IZ°I91 § | POF'S09°08 § s - - $ [rendeo Sunwiado| - g |uuor-oys 10 poau ay 38°¢ 0ss'6vl S | osLerz | 00s'8sT S | sox - SO[qRAIR0R1 OYIO| 00 18D UBIf Uy Iy 1wy noyzmp| justa) SurbSuoyd 01| 1|
(1 210N) (1210N) sso] Supueury Junowry Junowy pouag
A 1oMoLIOg anfep way tousul (%) A sopaEg | JuUNoddy JuawarEls
NON |y Supueury Juauriedury wa)-pIoys uondesue |, Bupuruly jo ameN Bummouriog ddueyeg Suipuy | dy) 10j duUEEg Jamoarog Japuar| ON
yoegy 10y apey Isaa0pu] parepy [eueury
edaisdy a0y 1\% J10J uosey ssauisng enpRy SYBIH
iy Supueury [EIREI




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-8 -

(panunuo))
“SJuaWIAIL)S [BIOURULY Jsd)E] oY) Ul A1nba jou Ay} sem Wi dd)ueIenS HuawAsIOpud AeFaIdTy 17 AJON
“SIUDLIRIE)S [RIOURUL 15[ A UL K3InDa 10U S J0 9407 P 0D Surury Sudys o 104  °q
“S)UAWIAIR)S [RIOURUL 1S1R] AY) Ul A1Nba 10U Ay JO 940§ ‘panwur Auedwo) wawa) noyz3uip DO I pue panwi Auedwo)) Juswa) enyreny DO L. ‘PAIWIT wew) (SueSinn) D)L “prT 0D wewa) apSurx DL ‘HIDDL ‘Uoneiodio) W) uBMIB] 104 B
:smo[[oj se a1am Kred yoed Jo J[eyaq UO USAIT 29)uRIRNT/JUSIASIOPUD UO SHWIT [ AJON
N A N T8 ILI 99°L1 - £82°0¢€ £82°0€ £82°0¢ 96T € P uoyeiodio) Juowo) uemieL | py] “0) SuIuiN BUsYS OH| 9
paywry paywr Auedwoy
A A N 1212t - - - - 926°161 190°90L P Auedwo) juowa) enyrengy HOL o) noyz3uif DOL| ¢
paywry payur Auedwo)
A N A 8EE°868°T - - - - 100781 691°671' L q Auedwo) juowa)) noyzurf DL Juowa)) eNYIEnH DOL|
paywiry
N A N TTroseel 09'S - 0ST'6hL 0ST'6YL 007'9LL 190°€69°9 P (IH) HIDOL Juowd) (Buemn) DDL| €
”1
A N N £PE°06L°91 - - - - 10v'86°€ TLI'S6E'S p) Pr1IuOWe) (Suep mo) DOL| <0 uewd) 9pSUIA DOL| T
A N A P0v°$09°08 170 - 05T'8T€ 0ST'8T€ 000°€€9 T0L°T0E0F > PYT 0D JUAWR) IXEN SMIIDS
h e}
S[BLISIBJA] UOTIONISUOD) JUIWD))
A N N $0¥°509°08 $9°0 - SLY'TS SLY'TS 0v0°'119 T0L°T0€°0F 5 yem " % SueBuny ueysoeg
P
A N X $01°509°08 L01 - 1£9°€0€ 959198 959198 T0L°20€°0F ° 0D JudWR) UQ Fuo3| NoyzIny
A N A #01°509°08 44 - 0St°€S8 00%°€06 099°190°1 T0L°T0€°0F > “PYT 0D Juewd) uesuens N,
PIT0)
A N A $0¥°509°08 v0'T - 000°€1€°1 0ST'IH9°1 00S°€F9° T0L°T0€°0F 5 16D uelf Uy Iy {[1ey noyzing
A N A $01°509°08 €T - 0S0°911°1 00€°598°1 086°€68°1 T0L°20€°0F 5 PYT 0D JudWd) SUORKT D)L,
A N A $0¥°509°08 a4 - SLYYI‘l 005°696°1 0056961 T0L°T0€°0F 5 PYT 0D JUSWR) NOYZN'] SNYI0S
A N A P0Y'S09°08 €T - 011°L19 LL8'8E0T 915°691°T T0LTOEOF 5 PYT 0D WAWD) NoYZNg DL
A N A $0¥'S09°08 1€'e - SLI'€6S'T 001°899°C 001°899°C T0L°T0E 0 5 PYT 0D JUAWR)) UNYSUY DL
A N A P0°S09°08 8t'€ - 006'75€°T ST0°808°C 090°0%9°€ T0L°T0€°0F s P 00 Juewa) Butb3uoy) DL
A N A $0¥'S09°08 9€Y - STH1T6'T SLTTIS'E 060°LIS'E T0L°T0E 0 o PYT 0D JuoW0) D)L Fuony
A N A 70150908 867 - L00'€89°T SLYSI0Y ObLYSSY T0L°T0€°0F s YT “00 Judwa) 3pUIA DDL
A N A P0¥'S09°08 61Tl - €17789'8 S9L'6T8°6 S9L'6T8°6 20L°20€°0F p) oy yuawe)) (Buesinn) HOL HIDOL| 1
N N A $86°TH0'801 900 PI8°6E PI8°6E 818°89 818°89 T6H°120°YS qQ uoneiodio) sjelouly uey) ui
uonerodio)) juawdopad
N N A $86°TH0'801 690 - 000°€€S 000°0SL 000018 T6Y120'7S q 29 UONONISUOD) OH-URNYy
N N A S86°TH0'801 0s'1 - 000°LTt 0005291 000°S8L'T T6Y120°PS Bl “OU] SIOPEBL JUDWIAY) UOTULY
N N A $86°TH0'801 17T - 000°€€S°1 000'809°T 000°066°C T6Y 1207 q uoyelodio) [eatway) DL
N N A $86°TH0'801 €9°T - 000°6TL°1 000°0+8°C 000°0+8°C T6H 1207 q uonei0dio)) JUAWISIAUL DD L
N N A $86'TH0°801 S LITE - $ | OSLLTY'ST § | OSY'SLYEE § | 0T9VTLEE § | TOKITOVS S q 1D01| uoneiodio) Juowo) uemIey|
%)
. BLELSNGN poLdg (1230N)
Buly) puguIey judaeg SaLIeIpIsqng N I3
oy’ | Tt | O |y oyt | o | Y | e | s | pSam
AON Jo Jjeyag uo saueIpIsqng Aq uo juareg £q - _wa:._am‘_o u N O mu.:a“:«: as10pU D Suimoriog LOWISIOPU D P 2s10pU D H_ Jieted n diysuoney N JA0JUBIBND/1ISI0PUT] “ON
UIALS) DJURIEND) | UIALL) INURBIENL) | UIALD) dd)jueiens) M 3 nnu..uwv q | 7_5«_:0“5 u D » pud enpy \W pug » pug UDALD dojuEIERD
AudwdsIopuy Audwdsiopuy AududsIopuy Y v lid pug yunowry WPUEISING yunowry Auswasiopuy
PRIy WNWIXE A uo sy
Jo oney 9)UB.IBNL)/AISI0pUT]
(SIe[OQ UBMIE ], MIN] JO SPURSNOY |, U])
S10Z ‘1€ ¥AGIWADAA AIANT ¥VAA THL O
AAAIAOUd STAINVIVND/SININISHOANT
SHIVIAISINS ANV NOILVIOJdIO0D INIIWAD NVAIV.L
Ta1avi




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

(papnjouo))

- 98-

“diysioumo syt 03 uontodoxd ur oY) 01 sop1aoid Iop[oyaIeys ord ‘dmnjudA jutol 0y angy
“101UIENS/10SI0PUD ) JO SaIRYS AIRUIPIO AU} JO %()S UBY) AI0W SUMO A[}02IIpUl 10 A[J021Ip 29)URIENS/29SI0PUD ],
*99)UBIENG/29SI0PUD A} JO SAIRYS ATRUIPIO A} JO 90§ UBY) dIOW UMO AUIOf SOLIBIPISNS S)I PUR JOJUBIENS/I9SIOPUD Y ],
*99)UBIENT/3ISIOPUS Y} JO SAIRYS AIRUIPIO 3Y) JO %()S ULY) 210W A[}IIP SUMO IOJURIENF/13SIOPUS Y],

“diysuonear ssouisnq e Suiaey

ERE-ISRC)

SMO[[0] SE PAYISSE[O S 92JULIRNSF/23SI0PUA A} PUB JOJUBIENS/IISIOPUD YY) UdamIdq diysuoneay

1€ 910N



INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-18-

(ponunuo))
- - 028 vt 66v°T JURLINO-UOU - 1509 & PILLIED SIASSE [RIOURUL]|  J0J02IIP SE SOAIS uoneiodio)) oy, uone1odio)) a3uryIX YO0IS UBMIE],
SaIeYS uonelodio) [eoruay) DL
$89°0t - $89°0t 0€6'T $50] 10 11jo1d ySnoiy) an[eA Ik & SI9SSE [RIOURUL] - pun, 1Ry Kouoly [ede)
SAIEIYTIE) ATBRaUag | uoneiodio)) SULIaUISUF JUSWA)) UBMIE]
- 1T +€0°9L 7199 JUDLINO-UOU - 150 J& PALLIED SIASSE [RIDURUIL] UBLLITRYD SUWIES 3], “PIT 00 JUSUNSIAU] ISTIRUIY)
€61°01 - €61°01 +T0°1 JUALIND-UOU - SJISSE [RIOURUL) d[S-10J-J]qR[IRAY - PIT 0 sotnoaar( Aodsorg
uBULIRYD
s uonerodio) ay Jo aane[a1
LYT'SHT - L¥T'SHT 19L°ST JUDLIND - SJASSE [RIOUBUL] O[LS-10J-0[qR[IBAY 92139p puZ B SI UBWLIEYD 9OIA S| uoneiodio)) Judwa) UISH eIy
Sareqs| uoneiodio) swnLe OH-B],
- - al I JUDLINO-UOU - 1509 & PILLIED SIOSSE [RIDUBUL]| 002X SE SOAIDS UoNEeiodio)) o], uoneiodio)) eIsy ueq
- €9 ShE6IT 658°S1 JUDLINO-UOU - 1500 J& PILLIED SIASSE [RIOURUL] UBTLITRYO QUWIES oY ], uonerodio) AS1aus 0N ANO-T
- IS0 8LE°9€T $88°01 JUDLINO-UOU - JS0 & PALLIED SIASSE [RIDURUL] UBLLITEYD SUWIES 3], “PIT 00 JUSUNSIAU] ISTIRUIY)
pasSpajd a1om sareys
puesnoy) 0001 Z| LTHOLT - LTFOLT PE6°1T JUDLIND-UOU - SJOSSE [BIOUBUL} 9[BS-10J-d[qR[IBAY 1019911P S $9A108 uone1odio)) Ay ueMIB] JO jueg [eLnysnpup
pagpard atom
SQIBYS pUBSNOY) $€6°[ 16€°6LT - 16€°SLT 611 JUOLINO-UOU - SJOSSE [BIOUBUL] O[ES-10J-O[qR[IBAY UBULIRYD QWS U] uonesodio)) 1oqqny onayuAS eury))|
uBwITRYD
pagpard orom s, uone1odio) ayy Jo dAneRI
soreys puesnoy) 000°L|  6£€°6L - 6£€°6L PEE'S JUDLIND - SJOSSE [BIOURULY O[BS-I0J-3[qB[IBAY|  00ISOp PUZ B SI UBLLIIEYD 1A Y], uoneI0dio)) JudWa) UISH LIy
99111 - 9111 S10°01 JULLIND - SIOSSE [RIOURUL] A[eS-10j-D[qR[IEAY| - Py 0D SUIP[OH [eoURUL] USR],
S6£706°T - S6£°706°T 000'8T JUBLIND - SOSSE [EIOUBUL] S[es-I0J-3[qE[IBAY - 2w SFUIP[OH AIMUDA YOUOY) BUIYD),
Sareqs| uoneiodio) JuaunsaAu] D)1
uBMLTRYD
s uone10dio)) oy Jo dAne[L
LT - TLIT8 €9°8 JUDLIND - SJOSSE [BIOUBUL] J[BS-I0J-[qR[IBAY 22130p pug © SI UBULITEYD 3OTA O[], uoneI0dIo)) JUdWa) UISH LIy
SareqS| uoneiodio) agei0)g 2 1odsuel] uBMIR],
- 6 - 009 JUDLINO-UOU - 1500 & PILLIED SIASSE [RIOURUL] - uonerodio)) [20xg
- 0 Y6E°L €86 JUDLINO-UOU - }S0J 1B PALLIBO SIOSSE [BIOURUL] UBWLIRYD QWES Y| uonesodio) A51oud 1O ANO-T
- 99 010°8 L9L°EY JURLINO-UOU - 1509 & PILLIED SIASSE [RIDURUL]|  I0J02IIP SE SOAIDS uoneiodio)) o], uone1odio)) a3uByIX YO0IS UBMIE],
- 'S 966'8 LE6'S JUOLINO-UOU - 1SOO 18 PILLIED $IOSSE [BIOURUL]| 10S1A10dNS SB $9A10S Uone1odio)) | uoneiodio)) eisy ued|
- L8 9ST1°T1 19¢°LT JUDLIND-UOU - 150 & PALLIED SIASSE [RIDURUL] UBLLITRYD SUWIES oY, “PIT 00 JUSUISIAUT ISNIBUIY)
- (14 006°€€ 06€°€ JUSLIND-UOU - 10O 1B PILLIED SOSSE [BIOURUL]| JI0SIAIodNS se $9A10s uone1odio)) ) ‘0D asudiayug Suon Suoy
- €8 €P8LE L€ JUDLINO-UOU - 1509 1B PILLIED SIOSSE [RIOUBUL]|  J0J02IIP SE SOAIDS uoneiodio)) o], uoneiodio)) [ende)) aIMUIA [ LEL
T56'SS - TS6'SS 01€e JUDLINI-UOU - SJISSE [BIOUBUL J[eS-I0J-O[qe[IBAY/| - Py 0D SuIp[oy [eroUBUL] JSDIRUIY))
$89°¢8 - $89°¢8 €06 JUDLINO-UOU - SIOSSE [BIDUBUL J[ES-10§-O[Q[IEAY/| - *PIT 00 UOHONISUOY) ONY ALY
61°EhT - 61°EhT €LSET JURLINO-UOU - SIASSE [RIDUBUL J[LS-10§-[qe[iEAY | Iosiatadns se saAsas uoneiodio)) oy, *pyT ‘osLdIo)UE UOISIAD[O UBMIE],
001°€€T - 001°€€T 000°0€ JUSLINO-UOU - S}OSSE [BIOURUL J[ES-10J-O[QR[IBAY/|  I0J0AIIP SB SIAIS uoneiodio)) oy, UBMIE] JO YURE [ELISIPU]
Y96 €1TT - Y96 €1TT 755°TS JUDLINO-UOU - SIASSE [RIDUBUL J[ES-10J-O[Q[IEAY/| UBLLITRYD SUIES 3Y[], uone1odio)) 10qqny SNAPUAS BuTy)
LS THOT - LS THYT 1S¥LT JUDLINO-UOU - SJISSE [RIOUBULY J[S-10§-JqR[IRAY 1019911P S $9A108 uone1odio) Ay uone1odio)) JSN-IH Bury))|
uBwTRYD
s, uone1odio) ay Jo dAneRI
€€0°19C - €€0°19C 61t°LT JUDLIND - SJOSSE [BIOUBUL] J[BS-10J-[qR[IBAY 22130p pug © ST UBWLITEYD dOTA B[], uone10dIo)) JUdWa) UISH LIy
865 VT - 865 VT ¥$0°6 JUDLIMD - SJASSE [EIOUBUL] J[LS-I0J-9[qB[IBAY - uoneiodio) [DLD)
918965 - 918°96S S TseTS JUBLIND - SJOSSE [EIOUBUL S[eS-I0J-3[qeIeAY - PV 0D BUIP[OH [BIOURUL] UIYSIEL
Sareg) uorjeiodio)) Juswa)) UBMIR],
anfeA Jreq (%) disouso Junowy Suidire) (Spussnoy up) Auedwo) .
BN : Jo aBeyudsdg N spun)/saaeys JUN0DIY JUIWA)E)S [BIUBUL] N3G AqEINILIN Jo dwey pue adA |, sweN Auedwo) Supjoy
. Suipjoy oy Y diysuonepy
S10T 1€ PPquang
(SIR[OQ UBMIE ], MIN JO SPUBSNOY |, U])
S102 ‘1€ YAIWADAA
ATAH STLLIENDES ATdVLIMRIVIA
SARVIAISINS ANV NOLLVIOJdIOD INAINID NVAIV.L
€ATdVL




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-89 -

(papnjouop)

*SAINJUAA JULO PUE SIJRIOOSSE ‘SILIBIPISANS UL SJUSUISIAUL JO UOHRULIOJUI ) 10J § PUR £ SI[qRL S 7 AON
* JUDWAINSEAA| PUE UONIUS00Y  :SIUSWNNSU] [BIOUBULL,, 6¢ SV JO 2d0dS AU} UIYIM SITLINSS PIJL[o IOYIO PUE SALOLILIAD AIRIOJAUIq ‘SPUOQ ‘SAIRYS 0] 10Ja1 A[qE) AU} UT SAILINIAS O[RINIBIN 1] QION

- T 080°€T - JUDLINO-UOU - JS0 & PALLIED SIASSE [RIDURUIL] - *PIT 0D u00TIR X

$T6'T6T01 - $T6'T6T01 895911 JUDLIND - S}OSSE [BIOUBUL] J[ES-10]-2]qRIEAY - “PIT 0D JUAWI)) YOUO) INYUY|

SamES

PLE6E - YLEGE 0€1's $50] 10 11jo1d YSnoiy) an[eA Ik & SI9SSe [RIOURUL] - pun,] 1R}y ASUON puowel(] eI
S31LON NI ATeIonauag (dno1n) 1DDL

- 9¢ 066°68 LEV'9 JUDLINO-UOU - JS0 & PALLIED SIASSE [RIDURUIL] - “2U] PUB[OAPIA

- 19 110511 €8T'ST JUILINO-UOU - SO0 18 PILLIBD S)OSSE [RIOURUL] UBTLITRYO QUWIES Oy ], uoneiodio) A3oug oW ANO-T

6v9°TET - 6v9°CE1 wL'S JUDLINO-UOU - SIASSE [BIDUBUL J[ES-10§-O[QR[IEAY/| UBULITEYD SUWIES oY, uone10dio)) 10qqny SUAPUAS BuIy)

uBwITRYD
s, uone10dio)) Ay Jo dAnRRL

8€8°0L - 8€8°0L 'L JUDLIND - SJOSSE [BIOUBUL] S[BS-10J-3[qR[IBAY 22152p puZ © ST UBWLITEYD dOTA A uonerodio)) Juswa)) UISH eIy

L61°8TT - L61°8TT S9€°9 JUDLIND - SJASSE [BIOURUL] O[LS-10J-O[qR[IBAY - uoneiodio) [D1D

LE9'€9T - L£9'€9T 9TI'€T JUSLIND - SJOSSE [EIOUBUY S[ES-10J-3[qE[IBAY| - PV 0D BUIP[OH [eoURUL] UIYSIEL,
SaIS *OUJ SIOPEI] JUAWA)) UOTUN

- - - 6 JUILINO-UOU - SO0 18 PILLIED S)ISSE [RIOURUL] - “PIT 0D UOHONNSUO)) OBJ 19

SamES

PoTE[WNOOY-pun

668°6 - 668°6 86 JUDLIND - SJOSSE [BIOUBUL] S[BS-10J-3[qR[IBAY - puog a1erodio)) 1R SuiSiowyg HNVIN

S91°¢ - 1N 61 JUDLIN - SJASSE [BIOURUL] O[LS-10J-0[qR[IBAY - pun,j 131eA] KSUOI puog Sowef VN

681 - 6871 08 JUDLIND - SJOSSE [BIOUBUL] J[BS-I0J-[qR[IBAY - JONIBJN AQUOJN UBMIE [, BINWON
SIEO TR0 ATeIoTjauag uonerodio) Juaw) ")'D'Y

- 6'¢ 118°cy TT8's JUILINO-UOU - SO0 18 PILLIBD S)OSSE [RIOURUL] UBLLITRYO QUWIES Oy ], uoneiodio) A3oug oW ANO-

- €¢ €01°021 Prr0l1 JUALIND-UOU - JSOJ & PILLIED $JISSE [RIOURUL] UBULITEYO dWIes 9y “PYT 0D JUDUWISIAUL ISNIRULYD)|
Sareys uoneiodio) 1104 [ernsnpuy Suldop!

061°0SL - 061°0SL 908°S9 JUDLMD - SJISSE [EIOUBUL] J[LS-I0J-9[qB[IBAY - “PYT 0D BUIP[OH [BIOUBUL] UIySIE
SareqS| uonelodio) [eorway) A)1adsor uemie] |

601°0€ - 601°0€ €0E°T JUDLINO-UOU - SIOSSE [BIDUBUL J[ES-10§-O[QE[IEAY/| UBLLITEYD SUWIES o[, uone10dio)) 10qqny SUAPUAS BuI)

SaIeS

L8Y°0€ - L8H°0€ 88T°T $50] 10 Jjo1d YSNOIY) ON[EA ITEJ B SIOSSE [BIOUBUT] - 10)IBN] KQUOIN 1] NO X M Y|

L95°0€ S - L95°0€ $ SLS'T $50] 10 1jo1d YSnoIy) ON[BA JTEJ B SISSE [RIOURUL] - pun,{ 13IB KQUO OBE] -0(] BIUEN &
Sa1BoNTIIa0 ATeronatay|  uonelodio) swalsAS uonewIou] D)

ST (puesTOuL Ul
anfeA ey (%) dysiuno Junowy Surliie) SpuvSNOY L ur) Auedwo)
ON N J0 a8eyuddaag N S)u/saIeys JUNOJIY JUIWIIE)S [EDUBUL] SIPLINIIG I[qEINIBIN Jo dwieN pue odA ], aureN Auedwo)) Suipjoy
107 T¢ DA SuIp[oH a4} yim diysuonepy




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

- 68 -

‘sjuounsaaut 1oy syuowikedord orom sjunowre souefeq SutuuiSoq oy g AON

‘popow A1mba atyy 1opun suoneiado uga10) SUNL[SURH UO 20U

p 95ueyoxo pue ssof 10 1yoid jo dreys oy ‘soseatout [eyideo ‘s1opjoyieys snoraaid woy sueoj jo judwdedor papnjour suounsnipe VYO 1] NON

poyow
(Z210N) pr1 0D dnoiny Aynba ayy Suisn 10y paynury Auedwo)
80T°T9€°T - (61706) - - - - 0L8°658°1 - LSL90V'T - - AeA[IEY UENYDIS|  POIUNOIIE SIUSWISIAU] | JudWA) FUeny DD L
poypw i qng pue
(z210N) Aymba ayy Sursn 1oy payury Auedwo)
18968 § | - (0Ls'v06)  § | - $ |- S |- $ |- 8TY'L80°S § | - €09°€IL $ | - - [ENPIAIPU]|  P3JUNOIIE SJUSUNSIAU]| JUSWS]) enyleny DL
Sareqs|  (dnoip) 1DOL
sunomy (spuesnoy, up) (3 33,6 Tesodsiq junowry Junowry (spuesnoy, uy) Junowry (spuesnoy, uy) Junowry (spuesnoyJ, uy) Junosy SINLINJAS J—
Spu()/saeys | judunsnlpy | uo ssoj/uien Suikie) syun/saaeys S)un)/saaeys spun/saaeys diysuonepay Kaediayuno) wowaels [eruTuL JqepnpIey (uedwo
dueeg supuy RYPO Tesodsiq uopismboy Jdue[eg suluuISog RS [EUEUL] Jo dwey pue adL ], Pauod
(SIe[[0Q UBMIE L, MAN JO SPUBSNOY ], U)
ST0Z ‘1€ YAIINADAA AIANT AVIA THL 404
TV.LIdVD TAVHS THL 10 %07 4O NOI'TTIIN 00€$IN LSVAT LV 40 SADIUd YO SLSOD LV 40 AIASOdSIA ANV AAAINOIV SALLINNDAS ATVLIMAVIN
SARVIAISINS ANV NOLLVIOJdIOD INAINID NVAIV.L
v ATdVL




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-06-

(panunuop)
uonerodio)
90N 001 ShhSS - - 10e1U00 Ag ST (LLT'8TD) safes Kuedwoo yuare uone10dio)) JudWa)) ueMIE], Ansnpuy so11010R1AY] O-UBNy|
TAON 001 SOTv9 - - 10B1U00 Ag 001 (0P €6£) saes Kuedwos yuared awes ay |, Kuedwo)) 10mo4 Suld-oH| uoneiodio)) 291A10S 10M0d DdH!|
S 001°01 - - skep 0¢ (¥) (zer'zon) saeg UPWLITRYO dwes AYL|  uoneiodio) Jaqqny MYIUAS eury)
T 90N 8 0ST1°91 - - skep ¢ (L) (S18°€LT) sores Aueduwios yuored owes oy |  uoneiodio)) 1og remsnpuy Surdopy
uonerodio))
7 Q0N €1 0LS°9T - - 10100 A (8) (891°8027) saeg Auedwod yuared awes ayJ, [eorway) Ayaadsord uemie] | uonerodio)
TAON oL 6£6°TH1 - - skep ¢ 92) (00Z°s86°1) saeg Kuedwoo juded uone10dio)) JUSWa)) ueMIE] | o8e101S 29 1odsuel], uemie]
TN (0o1) (928°s8) - - sAep ¢ Ll T16'9€€ saseyong Auedwo juoreq
T 90N 001 901vt - - skep (¢’ +2) (9pL°€6S) saeg Kuedwoo juareg uoneiodio)) JUAWA)) UBMIB], Kuedwo)) asudiayuyg Sueyg Sua |
opew
N 001) (#L9°16) - - sem KI9AT[Op Aep oy 1o5e sKep (g 001 S66S1H SaseyaINg. Kuedwoo judred uone1odio)) W) UBMIE], uonerodio)) juawa) DY
uoneiodio)
90N (1L) (0s1°91) - - sAep ¢ 69 €I8°ELT saseyoIng Kuedwoo yudred dwes dy ] o8e101g 2 podsuel], uEMIE],
TRAON 14 PSI1°T - - skep 0z (s2) (#89°08¢€) safeg Kuedwoo juareg uoreiodio)) JUAWA)) UBMIR],
[N 6 0LE'ES - - skep 07 (1L) (€88°TLOT) sofes Aueduwos yuored owres oy, Aueduwio)) 1omog Surg-opf| uonerodio) 1o jernsnpuy Surdopy
TN - - - - uonenofou Ag: T YOS LT SOSBYRING Aueduwod yuored owres oy, uone1odio)) dwnLe OH-B],
TAON (8%) (S01°49) - - 10B1U0d Ag 8 0EP°€6€ saseyaIn . Kuedwos juared awes ay |, uoneiodio)) 291A10S 10M0d DdH:|
Z 90N (op) [((VXx39] - - skep (. 1z €88°TLO°T saseyaIn . Auedwos yuared swes ay |  uoneiodio) 104 [emsnpuy Sutdopy Auedwo)) 1omog Jurg-oH
TAlN (50 (€€8°L1) - - uonenosou Ag S $66°701 asuadxa [eyuay Arerpisqng V'S WnLE O Fudys
TAN (z) (LLY'9E) - - uonenodou g 1 808°CIT osuadxo [eyuay Arepisqng V'S [euoneuIu] DHL
T 90N - - - - uonenogou g (<) (H6S°LIT) saeg Kuedwos juared owes oy | Kuedwo)) 10mo4 Suld-oH|
TO0N 001 650°LT1 - - sAep ¢ (0%) (088°€L0°T) sofes Kuedwoo Judreq uone10d10)) JUAWa)) UBMIE], uone10dio)) SWNLLN OH-P L,
pY1 0D
¥1 75689 - - skep 09 @ (TL9'¥81) sofes SoJe100ssy| - uonenodsuel ], % 95eI01S WISH YIYS
Z 90N - #S1°0) - - skep (. [ +#89°08¢€ saseyaIn . Areipisqng|  uoneiodio)) 104 [ersnpuy Sutdopy
uonerodio)
T2N (1n (Stt°ss) - - 108000 Ag T LLT'SIT saseyomg Arerpisqng Ansnpu saL0)0vLY OH-Ueny|
(2] (SS8°611) - - skep 09 9 99€°€0L saseyaIng 10J021IP SB $AIAS uoneIodio)) Ay, uone1odio)) JUSA-TH Bury)),
T3ON (50 (650°L21) - - skep ¢ 6 088°€LOT saseyoIng Arerpisqng uonerodio)) aumue|y OH-B[
uonerodio)
TRON (62 (6€6°T1) - - skep ¢ L1 00T°$86°T saseyoIng Arerpisqng oBel0)g 7y Modsuel] uemIe]
TAON 8 S08°6€ - - 10eU00 Ag () (€L€°€5E) ANUAST AITAIDS Arerpisqng HIDDL|
TAON (6) (901°t) - - skep 0¢ S 9PL'E6S seseqoIng
TAON 81 978's8 - - skepog| (@ (T16'9¢€) saes Arepisqng Auedwio) asudiojug Sueys Juag
opew
TaN 61 PLYT6 - - sem A1dArap Aep ayy soye skep g @ (S66°S1¥) sa[es Arerpisqng uoperodio) ywawa) 'Y
TN - - - - Suiddrys soye skep g9/ (1) (900°862) sofes Awipisqng TOOMH]
URULITRYD
opew s.uonesodio) Ay Jo dAnRlI
0z 82006 § - - $ e KI0AT[P Kep oy 10158 SKep 69 () (LET°06E)  $ sa[es 22130p puZ © S UBULITEYD d0TA A | uone10dIo)) JudWa) UISE 1Y) uonEI0dIo)) JUDWAY) UBMIE],
M—aou:%w doueeg Surpuy SuLId |, JudwAe g 2011 Jun SuLId L, yuswiAeg €101 JO % Junowy Saes/saseyaANg
JoN 15301 ¥ \..?ESE.—V It I Kyreg parepy Ja4ng
SAQEAIPINY SHUN0IIY/SHON UONIESURL ], [EULIOUQY S[IE)d( uonIesueL],
(sae[[0Q UBMIE] MIN JO SPUESNOY | Uu])
ST0Z ‘1€ YAAINIDAA AIANT AVIA THL 404
TVLIAVD HIVHS AHL 40 %07 40 NOI'TTIIN 00ISIN LSVAT LV OL ONILNNONWY SHILIVd AALVTIY OL SATVS YO WOUA SASVHOUNd TV.LOL
SARVIAISINS ANV NOLLVIOJdIOD INAINID NVAIV.L
SUATAVL




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-16-

(papnjouo))
uonepi| uodn WD Uddq dARY 1 Al 1V T 90N
‘saned pajejar (03 9jqeded) wWoly 9]qeAIIA1 SHUNOIIE [810) 0) dFeusoiad Ay, 1 AON
T 90N (L) #01°11) - - uonenodou g 6 STTLEL soseqoing|  Auedwod juared sjewnn swes oy |  pr7 <o) Surddiys oy-eq SueSing, PIT 0D JUAWR)) noyzng D!
(001 (€18°6) - - YIUOW 1XU JO YIS | Y} U0 JuowAed T SL6'LLL SOSBYING upwLIRYD dwes oy 1| uoneiodio)) 19qqny OHAYIUAS BUID)!
uoneiodio) uoneiodio)
TAON - - - - 1oBNU0D A I 891°80C SOSBYRING Auedwos yuored owes oy, o8e101§ 29 1odsuel], uemie] | [eorwoy) Auadsord uemie] |
T 90N (1 (508°6€) - - 10enU00 Ag - €LE€SE asuadxa 201A10§ Auedwoo yuareg uoneI0dio)) JUAW)) uEMIE] | HIDOL.
TN 001 €E8LT - - uonenofou Ag: 001) (#66°T01) ANUIADI [RIUDY Kuedwoo judred uone1odio) dwnLRA OH-B], V'S dwmnLey o Sudys
Z 0N 001 LLV9E - - uonenodau g (001) (808°C12) QNUIADI [BJUY! Kuedwoo juareg uoneiodio) swnLe OH-B], V'S [euoneuIU] DHL
7 Q0N 1 POTTT - - uonenodau Ag: 6) (sTT'Len) onuararydiar]|  Auedwoo juared ajewmnn swes Ay | PYT 0D JudWR)) noyzng DD L!
T 90N 0€ SLYPT - - uonenofou g (81) (TL¥'L9D) onuodr o[ Auedwos yuared srewnn dwes dy | | PIT 0D W) apSur A DI,
T 90N 96 LT8'F - - uonenogou g (€0) (69¥°€€€) onuaadrySar]|  Auedwos juared sjewnn Swes Y | pawr uawa) (Suedinn) O L| pr1 <o) Surddiys of-e( Suesmno)
P 0D sonsigo|
TN 001 67801 - - uonenofou g (8h) (€91°%LT) ANUOAI WS101,] Kueduwos Juared ajewn|n owes oy, pawr wowd) (Suesinn) HOL [euonewayuy (SueSmn) Suoy, eq
“pr1 0D sonsigo]
TAON (b)) (6z8°0%) - - uonenofou g b €91vLT soseyoing|  Auedwod judred ajpwnn dwes Ay L [euonewoyu (Suesinn) Suo], e,
Z 90N (z1) (LT8'vh) - - uonenodau £g: S 697°€EE soseqoing|  Auedwod yuared ayewnn swes ay |  pr7 <o) Surddiys oH-eQq Sueding, paywry juawa) (SueSmn) DO
TA0N (z8) (8LY'VT) - - uonenodou Ag 9 ULY'L9T soseyoing|  Auedwos yuared sjewnn owes oy | prT <o) Surddiyg op-e( SueSmn,
paywry
66 9E1°Er9 - - vopenosou kgl (11) (8LS°svL) so[es Aued pajerar aaueisqng| - Auedwo) yuaw) rjuif uendsuoq YT 0D W) PFUIA DD
dnoin) oy 1980
S 9L0°91 - - uonenofou g (T1) (SIE%10) So[eS|  ooudnjyul JUROLIUSIS YIIM SI0ISIAU] P11 uononnsuo) o] dog,
91 661°1S - - uonenodou &gl (07) (991°69€) safes Sajero0ssy ‘PYT "21019u0) I Uongy
T 90N - - $ - - $ Burddiys soye skep 69 fd 900867 $ SOSBYING Kuedwood yuared uone10dio)) JUSWAY) UBMIB], TDOMH
(19310N)
5oL 30 % Joueeg Surpuy SULId |, JudwAe g 2011 yun SULId [, JuswiAe g 2101 JO % junowry Sa[es/saseyIINg
AON J cﬁ_nu;mv It I Kyaed parepy JAng

I[BAIIINY SHUNOIIV/SIION.

uondEsULL], [BULIOUqY

S[1B)9(] UONIBSUBL],




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-26-

“uonepI[osu0d uodn pajeuII[d UIq IARY suondesues) Auedwodsoul [[y 910N
- 16L°01 Funod[0) LE6'E6 €T 9€1°Er9 Aued pojejor oAnuelsqng| oy Auedwo)) juswd) 1[uif uendsuoc “PYT 0D WewWd)) APFUIA DD L
- 6€6°TH1 - - el 6€6°TP1 Auedwod juored’ (a10N) uonerodio) yuowo)) uemie]| uonerodio)) a3e10)g 2 Hodsuel], uemre],
- $ $88°€TI $ - - $ 01 6S0°LT1 $ Kuedwoo juared (210N) uonerodio) JudWdY) UBMIE ], uorne1odio)) swnLeN OH-B ],

[JRE)
$$0'1 Eu-ma.mnuw ur LE A RITTEAAY junowry (%)
Juduareduy 2A1939 : : ey Juepeg surpuy diysuonepy £yaed parey JureN Auedwo)
10J UEMO[Y PoALoIY JaAouIN,
junoury NpIAQ

9dT1dVL

(sIe[[o( UBMIB], MIN JO SpuBsnoy |, uf)
ST0T ‘1€ YAGINADAA

TVLIAVD HIVHS HHL 40 %07 4O NOI'TTIN 00I$.LN LSVAT LV OL ONLLNNOWY SHILLIAVd AALVTII WOIA SHTAVAIZD AT

SARIVIAISANS ANV NOILLVHOdHOD INHINAD NVAIVL




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-¢6-

(panupuo))
20N s 6££°88T €€9 200 e 1343 e uonepodsuen auLIR\ uemie], uonelodio) awmue OH-B],
uoneiodio)
RUN (1L5°6) (2L6T98°1) yIT61 150 0081 0007 0004T [BLIOTEL [EJIWIAYD JO OES PUE FUISSA01], uemre], [eorway) Ayuiadsolg uemie],
AN 6£L°0€ 6LS'LYT'Y 8SL°6S1 050 L90°s 116'89 11689 uoneiauas 1omod [ewroy L, uemieL Auedwo) 1omoq Sutd-oH
210N 85¢°9 8¢9 L8ETLE 007001 SH6'1T 0SH617 0St612 Surpen podxs pue poduwy; uemre], *OU[ SI9PBI], JUSWAY) oI} uonerodio)) JuaUISIAU] DD ],
Pl
Q0N - - - 00°1S 020°1 00201 00201 3[es pue SuLI[I [2ARI3 pue pues uemie]| 0D [BHRJRN UONONISUO)) UIMS O
syonpoxd
(€59'01) (0€7'98) SEI'S8 vLTl €88°C1 0€8'8€1 0€8°8€1 paefai-) o a[es pue 3ur \ uemre] | uoneiodio) Juawa) Sung, uengy eryd
210N (009°€) (€11°8) S9ETIT 9E vy 190°L 816°9T1 817921 USDO JO d[ES usMIe], uoneiodio) Juaw) "y'H'd uoneiodio)
210N PIT6L 6££°88T 888°1.76 LY'LT 11€0S 6TTLYT 6TTLYT uoneyiodsuel) duLIRJA uemIe], uonelodio)) swnLR OH-8], a8e101§ 29 1odsuel], uemie] |
Q0N - - - 000 114 S0I°T S01'T UONEABOXD BUIUI sourddryiyq DAL
AN - - - o0LTL ozl 08811 08811 UONEAROXD Bty sowddiig ONL
AON. (6£) (op) 9LF 1 SH66 0z 686°1 686°1 QUOISAWI] JO J[S PUB UOHBISIION Y uemIe] | uonesodio)) [erouljy uoy) Suny,
(1D (s9%) 91101 00'ST 00L' L9E°0L L9E°0L JUSUSOAU] | SPUBIS] UIBXIA USBLIE py] oredukg
AN (601°t) €1rs) 0SL'v6 ¥9°0§ £€90'8 65EP81 6SEV81 HUDWID O d[ES uemie], uoeiodio) Juaw) "'H'd
Q10N T65°901 98G°LLL 26996 0009 9 1981 198°1 Buy|nsuoo ssautsng uemie uoneiodio)) IAIRS MO DdH
Q10N [t R) [(ataR) SI0°TTI 007001 000°T 8T0T 80T QUOsSAUIL] JO J[LS pUe UOLEISIIONY uemre], uoneiodio)) sjeidul Suey) uif|
RUN 1.5l 1LSp1 86LY11 007001 661°SL 088°6S 08865 JUAW2) JO d[es pue SUISNoY2IE A uemre], payur Auedwio) oomuny,
10N 107 €EVLY 95€902 S9¥8 8¢ S00°TL S00TL Suipjoy JuaunsaAu Buoy Suogy TOWOMNH
Pl
AN (8LT'81) (Sp'L2) YOS'PET 09'99 009°99 000999 000999 JUSUNEI} PUE UONDI[0D JISEM UEMIE[ | ©00) JUWUONAUY VHSY XAUQ OH-2L
uoneiodio)
RN 86°99 YIL'69 185°8LT 9£'66 $06'71 000°1L 000°1L UBISIp 21LAYOS UORULIONU] uemieL swayskg uoneuLou| D)L
Pr10D
Q10N S1S°801 S1S°801 01t°€6C 007001 001°LE L81°E1E L8I°E1E JUSLIERI) PUE UOND[0D JISEAN uemle]|  juswuONAug Sunie] XAUQ OH-2L
10N 156'T9 £60°67 8T8'76T 007001 SLEELT 0S€pee 05€pee [LIOJeL [EIWAYO JO A[ES put Bulssa001d uemIe], uoyeiod0)) [earway) DL
RUN 680°L €09°S1 L6E0VE 3454 197°LT 000°0ST 000°0ST 10I0U0D PAXIW-APEAI JO J[ES uemieL Auedwo) asudioyuy Fuays Suo
uonerodio)
Q10N 8LI'LS $00°09 00S°LS€E 6T°S6 SO1'81 0S0°181 0S0°181 S[eLoRW AI0J0BII1 JO J[ES PUB UOHINPOI] uemIE], Ansnpuy saL10J0B1j9Y OH-uBNy|
PYT 0D $A01AISS
S0T°99T 117°2€S $01°0¢t 000§ 000°8 000°TL 000°TL JUAUHBIL PUE UONI[0D AISEA uemieL [BJUSWIUONAUS OF-EL XANO
uonelodio) uawdopasq
10N 196'1S 0S6°SS 01S°SLY L8T6 656°S€ £96'8%C £96'8%T SIIAIDS I8BA] PUE UOLINISUOD) uemre], ¥ UOHINNSUO)) OH-UEN Y
uonerodio))
QAON 1€T°L 688°C 996°€99 S0°66 €65°6S 65P°61¢€ 6EF°61€ $901A10s Surodurug ueMIB], SurpourSuy Juowa)) uemre],
0691t 1L0°ST1 0€t°€69 X533 6¢ £86°18F £86°18F S[ELIAjeL M1 12qqny| V'S uoyeiodi0) YSN D00
Q10N (€LL°TP) (€LL°Th) €8LILTT 007001 001°0€ SSEFIP'T 8SEYIH' Supen pue Sutuy uemie “pr1 0D Buruny Suays oy
RUN 98y [raid 918°$8T°1 007001 0S1°%S 000061 000061 JuaunSIAU uemie], uoeiodio)) JuaUISAUL D)L
[oARI3 pue uonelodio)
AON POLTIT 97S el 160°00L°T $8'€8 899°C¢ 79806 798°06 pues Jo dJes pue ‘uoneriodsuesn ‘Sursnoyorep uemIe] o3e101g %9 podsuel] uemie],
uonelodio)
10N (685°1€6) (2L6°T98°T) LEO'0LS'T 0008 886'SH1 SNl €P1P8T'1 [ELIOTRWI [EIWYD JO O[S PUE SUISSA01] uemieL [eorwoy) Ajiadsolq uemie
RUN L0981 6£€°88C 0ST'881°C 6L9 679811 905°8TS 905°8TS uoneyodsuey duLey uemie] uoneiodio)) SWLEN OH-E]
Q10N 121°02L PPI°0ZL £01'69T°S 007001 066°61€ 00S°861°€ 005°861°¢ JuawaBeuew 104 [ersnpuf Suidopy uemiel|  uoneiodio) Hod [ernsnpul Surdoy
Q0N 018°L§9°€ GLS'LYT'9 1€9°€Ty'61 05°65 €L6'T09 0TL'LEO9 0TL'LEO9 uoyeIauas 1mod [euLidy |, ueMIE], Auedwo) 19m04 Suld-OH
31ON (€6€'200) 8 (€5€°L00)  § 1L6°€€0°€S § 007001 918009 SEOPPESL § SE9PPERIL $ BUIP[OY JUIWSIAU] | SPUP[S] UIBILA YSHIIY 100L uoneiodio) Juawa) UemIe ],
c (spuesnoy | uy) ¥I0T S10T
dJoN Amwm—w—v apsaAu] auy jo junowy uw=_>.-hﬂmv % Syup)/saaeys A—m JqudRq h—m REIIIERET( | $)ONpPoag pue SISSAUISng UIBJA! uonedo | h:n&:—eu J9)sdAU] %EﬂﬂEeU JA0)SdAU]
Jgoag Jo daeys | (sso) awoduy JON R
SI0T ‘T€ 19qudDQ JO sV JUROUIY JUSULSIAU] [EUISHO
(SIR[OQ UBMIE ], MIN JO SPUBSNOY |, U])
S10Z ‘1€ YAGINADAA AAANT YVIA FHL YO
SAALSTANI NO NOLLYIWHOANI
SHRIVIAISAAS ANV NOLLVIOJdI 0D INHIWID NVMIVL
Laravi




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-6 -

(papnjouo))
uoneprjosuod uodn pajeuri]d usaq aAey suonoesuer Auedwosrour [y 210N
€16°011 S01°TSE LLOTYT 0$1€ 61 168°8T 168'8T 991128 Bulssa001d Juouia)) Buoy Suoy| “PYT 0D 21010u0) 50y FUoH
syonpoxd
(€82°91) (0€F'98) 8TLYEL 8761 wrie 0zTTie 0zTTIT pajeaI-y Jo2[es pue Sur \ uemre] | uoneiodio) Juawa) Sung, Uengy ey
0TI°€ST 0pT°90€ PIT°L9E 000 001 611881 61881 BuIp|oy JudusIAU] Buoy Suogy PV 0D 9110U0D) Bull uonY (dnoxp) 'py7 feuonEwINUL DDL
RUN 901 901 6v9°8L 007001 001 €87°¢ €87°¢ uoyeyodsuey suLey deBuig| py1 -01d (p10deFuIS) QWL OH-BL
RUN 190°01 190°01 $85°06€ 007001 L 169°€1C 169°€1C uonzpodsuey dutrejy wureuEg V'S dWnLEN OH 1Y)
“powr]
RUN 0L9°8T1 0L9°8C1 979'rSH 007001 001°s 80V°L91 80v°L91 uoneyodsuey auLiey Buoy Suopy (Buo3] Suop) SWLL OH-2L
10N w0l w0l £99°98% 007001 4 8L6'S9 8L6'S9 uoneyodsuey suLey pureueq V'S WL O Sudys
AON hwwﬁ 1T hw?, 17 OowﬁwworN 00001 4 wh@rwo wh@nmo :Dtutcnm:m.: QULIBIA vweued V'S [euonewU] DHIL Pl mm—:ﬁﬁoi QuInUB OH-BL
syonpoid
(1re) (0€1'98) 1LS°T LEO Sor 050 050t pajeaI-y Jo2[es pue 3ut \ uemre] | uoneiodio) Juawa) Sung, uengy eryd
1oAIS pue uonerodio)
0N 106 9TSEL 86S°€1 L9°0 192 T19'T T19°C pues Jo a[es pue ‘uoneodsue Fuisnoyare UBMIE], BeI0)g 7y Hodsuei], uemIe]
PUEIEN] Pr10)
(679°9) (8L6L1) 9P e 69°¢ L6 106'4S 106FS Jo ajes pue ‘uoneyodsuen ‘Suisnoyare uemie] | uoneuodsuel] % o5el0)S UISH YIS *OU[ SISPEL], JUAW)) uorun)
P
Q0N - - - 006 081 008°1 0081 3[es pue SuLI[I [2ARI3 pue pues uemie] | 00 [BLI2JR\ UONONNSUOD) UIMS O Auedwo) asudivug Suays Suag
JUdWad PTIoD
(0p€'12) (18L%6L1) LISTIL L8711 1€8°S1 98L°9L1 98L°9L1 Jo d[es pue ‘uonepiodsuei ‘SuIsnoyaIe uemiel| uopenodsuel], %y 95eI0)S UISH YIYS uoneiodiod o) H"DY
uonerodio)
AON (Z85°Th) (TL6'T98°T) $0S°S8 6TT SLY9 62601 626701 [BLIOJEW [BOIUOYD JO J[S pue Sulssooolq uemIe] | [eoruay) Auadsolrd ueme] | uopeiodio) 104 [ernsnpuj Surdop]
P uonerodio)
RN 696t 696 LSty 007001 8TI'T Two'e ‘e JusunsaAuf voweg|  “a)d (POWES) UOHBWLIOU] WAdIE], SWISAS UonEWIONU] D)L,
uonerodio))
QON 10T L0T 610°8L 00001 - S6791 6791 JudUIISIAUL weessnIe( ung; uonerodio) DIDL SunaurSug juswa) uemIe],
sjonpoxd
(1L6) (0£4°98) £20'8 911 19¢°1 809°C1 809°C1 POIE[O1-)UAWIID JO J[ES pue 5 ynuB; ueare] | uoneiodio) juowa) Suny, ueni ey
BUEIIER] Pry o)
(+00°9) (1sL'6L) LS9'TE Ye'e 6bb'y 68961 689°6 Jo apes pue ‘oyenodsue ‘Fursnoyaepm uemiel | uopenodsuel] % 5LI0)S UISH YIYS
10N €T8ILL $ €T8ILl $ 06T 111y § 007001 00€°01 S66'ST€ $ S66'sT€ $ JusunsaAuf vouieg ‘PYT SBUIPIOH dWHLE OH-¥L uoyelodio)) swmLe OH-],
(spuesnoyf uy) ¥10T ST0T
AON (sso) 22S9AUL Y} JO - Junowry Burfiie) % S)u)/sdaeys ‘1€ JPquddq ‘1€ Jquadaq S)INPOIJ PUE SISSIUISNYG UIBJA] uoned’0| Aueduro)) a3)saauy Aueduro)) 10)saauy
o g Jo daeys | (SS07]) dwodu| PN o N N N
ST10T ‘1€ 19quadd| Jo sy JUNOUIY JUDUSIAU] [EUISLIQ




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-66-

(panunuop)
( 210N)
LN - £8°189 (T1T'L2) 2698 (2L6'LY) - - - - (e) 056°6 JUSWAD JO I[LS PUE SULIMORINUE panwr Auedwo) yuawa) noyzduir 5O 1,
LAON - LLO'LSL'T (190°6L) 69§ (IvT6€1) 1S0°T08°S - 8TH'L80'S €09°€1L (®) SES oY JUBWAO JO d[es pur SuLimornuRIA|(f 9I0N) payr] Auedwo) jusuwa) enyreny DO L|
LN - 698 PPET (S6S°Tr1) 69§ (156'150) LT9'99T°€ - 0L8°6S8'T LSL'90V'T (®) 1PL'P0S' Y U JO J[ES PUB BULINOBINULI papur Auedwo) yuaw) Sutkent] DOL
LAON - SS9°I8I 09T°s 7698 €676 19581 - - 19t°$81 (e) 0ST'8TE JUWIRO JO A[BS PUE BULINOBINUBI “PYT 0D Juowa) uengorys DL
LN - SL6'0EY'T (1L€°18) 7698 [Clagsa] S6TYLIT - - S6TYLI'T (®) PSEIP6'T JUIWAO JO O[BS PUB BULINOBINUBI "PYT 0D [BD UBI[ UV IMY I[Ie3] noyzmo)
LR1ON - 1zTes 950°1T 2698 SLILE 69€°8Y1 - - 69€°8Y1 (®) 009°79T yuwageuew uoneied| Py 0D uwaBeUR (0YZ3URH) MON DDL
LN - €56'LET (€99°15) 00°LE (1€9°'6€1) SSE°00€ - - SSE°00€ (2) 87999 JUW0 JO 3 pue SuLjoesNUL “PYT 70D JURWR) UQ B0 NoyZIng)
Suninsuod
LN - 089°09€¢ (19¢'D) 269§ (v £T6'0LE - - £26°0LE (®) 005959 [e21UY09) JUIWAD pue FulsnoyaIem PYT 0D Juawd) (uenn Suoq) DOL|
LN - 88€°70€° (Lgozn) 269§ (L91°12) 99T8LI‘ - - 99T8LI'T (®) L690LST JUALAD JO dJes pue SurmjogynuTy YT 0D Juowd) uesuens H) ||
LN - 6L8'8Y9°T (8p€°19) 269 (F18°201) €28'60T°T - - €28'60T°T (e) 005°T8T°€ JUSWA0 JO d[es pue FurnjogynuTy YT 70D wewa) Butbguoy) DL
LN - 0S6°19+°T (€£6°9€1) 2698 (199°1%2) 88L°€96°1 - - 88L°€96°1 (e) 607 1€€°E JUSWAD JO d[es pue FuLnjogynUTY YT 70D JudWIR)) UNysuY D)L
LN - 680°L8€E°1 ($99°¢€1) 2698 (zL9's€0) 88E°E9H' - - 88E°E9P| (e) SPIES8’l JUWRO JO 3 pue SULINOBINUL YT 0D Judwd) Futuoer D)L
LN - 970°016°S 98€°17T 2698 SET06E T88°595°E - - 788°595°¢ (e) 601'8E1°T JUWO JO 3 Pur SULINOBINULI “PYT 70D JUSWIR)) ULEIUNOIN] UOBRI(] SpBULA|
LAON - LETSIS'T (T6t°'9%) 769§ (TLL'1s) 90€°LT6 - - 90€°LT6 (®) 0STTH9°1 JuOUNSIAU] “PIT 0D JUdWNISAUL DD ], NSBueIf
LN - 8LOLIS'L POTEIT 7698 $00°8LE PSLOYO'Y - - $SLOPO'Y (&) 9LLISIL 1UAWdD JO d[es PuE FULINOBINUEY PN JUOWd) (SUBSIND) DL |
LN - POL'9SL'9 (062°L02) 269§ (165'79€) 98LSETY - - 98LSETY (®) SL6'6IE'L JUAWAD §O d[es pue FurmiogynuTy “PYT 0D Judwa) D)L Fuoiny|
LA0ON - €90°L55°6 796791 7698 6£0°88C 0206907 - - 0206907 (®) S08°10T°L JUaWAD §O dfes pue FurmiogynuTy “PYT 0D JuoWwd) APFULX DOL
LN - 176917 Seg'e 00T LL6'ST €5€°901 - - €6€°901 (e) SE1Eb [eLioIRW SUIP[ING JO O[ES|  "PYT 0D S[ELIRAIBJN UOHINNSUO) NOYZNKT DD L,
LR1ON - €L8'YLI 665°T1 269 061°TT 1€L°26 - - 1€L°T6 (e) STI91 uopepodsuL) JUAWIAO 10J 104 “prT 0D Mog nABue X noyzng DO L
LN - 201619 (969°51) 2698 (1L5°22) SLET0€E - - SLET0€ (e) 90P°€€S JUWRO JO 3[LS Pue SULINOBINULI “PYT 70D JBWR) noyzng DL
LN - $ | ssL'sLl | (8e0'LD $ 00'7€ @iros)  $ | sop'Lor  $ | - S| - $ | sor'L91 8 (e) SLET6Y S JUWRO JO 3 Pue SULINOBINULI YT 0D Judwa) a8pig Sury myuy,
9)0
(Z910N) ST07 :m _acuzv
S10z ‘1€ pquang “| Kxenuep
. .
1€ 12quadaq ,Am AJON) S10T (€210N) JuduUnsIAU] aopsonu] Jose jose (1 330N)
AON Jo st amodu] | "I 1oquiadaq (sso]) uren paupul Yy jo (ssoy) UEMIEL WOy mopur Momno ueAMIE |, Woy judunsaauy | rende) aaeys $JINPOIJ PUE SISSIUISNY UIBA] Aueduwio)) 39)saauy
JUDUSIAUL Jo se Junowy ° 10 19.a1( Jo JUDUSIAUL N N - N
JUDUSIAUT dwoduy JoN JUIUSIAUT JO poyRN
Jo uoperneday | Suikue) diysoumQ o, 10§ dduENIUIY rAv—
pajRmunddY pleminQ EuE._.O
v v (7 310N)) MO[] JUdW)SIAU] PIRMUNIY
v
(SIR[OQ UBMIE ], MIN JO SPUBSNOY |, U])
S10Z ‘1€ YAGIWADAA AIANT VAA THL O
VNIHO ANVINIVIN NI INTIWLSTANI NO NOLLVINHOANIT
SARVIAISINS ANV NOILLVIOJIO0D INFIWAD NVAIV.L
gaIavL



INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-96-

(panunuo))
(8210N) LTL'$SETHS LS8'SIL'6ES
UdUSIAU] UO Yy 1add VAOI ‘uoIssiuituo) jusunsoug |, RETIEREY %MMN«E uejuie
i ) T uo iy n £q POZLIOYINY S)UNOUIY JUIULSIAT] L€ 1q a ) ) pueuiey
UI JUIUI)SIAU] PI)JE[NWNY
aefoiide (9 90N) parwr Auedwoy)
- $00°St (81t°S) 000§ (Lgg'o1) 160°TS - 160°TS () £THLL 21215100 JO 3[ES PuE SULINIEINUE] S[BLIIEJA UOHONISUOD) 1], UTY uesuens
(9 @10N) parwry Kuedwoy)
- - (921°9€) 000€ (1zvoen) 095°18¢€ - 095°18¢ (®) 000666 Juawia2 Jo afes pue SuLnjognuey dnoip ersae i Surpyig uegore], uenyorg
(9 210N) "P¥T 0D S[BLIIRJA UOIIONISUO))
- 918°€9L 80€°8 000§ ch6'ce 987°€9L - 987°€9L (v) L€8°090°T JUOWIOO JO O[ES PUB SULINORINUBA Juowa) Yepy Y % SueSuny ueysoeg
(9 910N) "PrT 0D S[BLIIBIA UOONIISUO))
- 178°6€9°1 009°€T 000€ PSEI8 8€TILS'T - 8E€T'9LS'T (e) SLY'0TI'Y U JO 3[BS PUB BULINOBINULI JuaWR) YeA " 7 SueBuny ueuung
- 9TI'68Y'€ 9LT'LET 00°$T SOL'816 SOL'LIY'T - SOL'LIY'T (®) 001°L68°T U JO I[BS PUB BULINOBINULI (9 210N) “P¥ 0D WD) Youo) Atadsoig
LN - §55°691 9€6'901 00001 9€6'901 086°61 - 086°61 ®) 086°61 uoneodsue duLte (9. 210N) "py1 0D Suiddiys op-eq Sueding
LA0ON - 1L0%9 91T°01 007001 91T°01 SL6'YT - SL6YT (p) SL6YT uonepodsuen pue sonsiSo| (9 20N) “pr1 <o) sonsifo] (o Fux) SuoL eq
(9 210N) "P¥1
LION - 8p8'EEY TSE0ET 00001 TSE0El STIP9L - STI'P91 ®) STI'P91 uonepodsuen pue sopsigoT| 0D sonsigo jeuoneusdu] (Suesing) Fuo eq
dourudUIRW (9 2@0N)
L 0N - 179°5€ 119 007001 119 £87°¢ - £8T°¢ ©) £8C°¢ pue jonpoid PYT0D [oUy23], UONEULIOIU] DD, noyzn |
J10m Kjquiasse pue Alduryoe
LN - 610'8L L0T 00001 L0T S6T°91 - S6T°91 (@) S6T°91 JUAWD JO J[ES PUE UOHINPOIY (9 910N) "PYT 0D duIyIR (PFWIA) DAIL
Aedaiise paynwry
L 90N - 01°6E (€p8°1) 698 (6¥T°€) 026001 - 026°001 (e) ST6PL 91210U09 JO J[es pue FuLmorynueA | Auedwo)) S[BLIBIBJY UOHONNSUO)) [B] UL UNYSUy
L 90N - 05t°68 LIE61 0698 SOTpE - - - (v) SL8bTI JUAWAD JO d[S PuE SuLmdEINUE (S 90N “PIT “00) 91010U0)) NOYZN' SIS
L 0N - SL6'98 #86°11) 69§ OL1°12) - - - (®) PEIOTT JUSWAD JO J[ES PUE SULIMOBINUBJY (S 0N) “PIT “0D) Wwawa) Suelldy snog
LN - 9S1401°1 7901 2698 €LL'3T - - - (e) ST0'EL6'T U JO I[BS PUB BULINOBINUBI (5 210N) *pYT 00 1AW noyzn' smIdg
L 20N - www»wm_ Ammmromv 769¢ AMOF»mo_v - - - ANV L _wJMF JUAWIdD JO Jes pue m:tﬂuoﬂu::mz ﬁm OHOZV PrT TOU JuAWR)) IXBN SIS
panury
L 210N - 11€°T81 7650 698 00€°9¢ 6SLTY1 - 6SL YT (®) STIP9T auojsaw Jo Suruiy Auedwo) ernsnpuy Surury Suesmn 5L
L 210N - 171°€9T 1697 698 978 066967 - 066'96T (®) 88Y°LLE uojsow] jo Burutyy| panwry Auedwo) [eLsnpup Sutuiy 9pSULL DOL
L 210N - THE061 L09°€ [ LYE9 6€S°01Y - 6€5°01Y (®) 00€°1€1 auojsow] o Bururyy| paywi] Auedwo) [ernsnpuy Surury nssuelr D01
(1 210N)
L 910N - 98L°8S $ | secL 69 066°C1 $ | - - $ | - S (v) 0S6'61 S JUBWBD JO O[S pue FuLImoBynuBiy poyury Auedwioy) 0010U0)) ENYIEN ] D)L
@20N) S10T (@a0N) s10T
S10T ‘1€ JPquIdRQ ‘1 Arenuep
L€ JOqUIY 20, du1)S9, 0§ 0 s
Jomw oot | 15 maussng | sopum | wempar | 00 8y | wopur | oumo | weaep oy | (190N
230N . : 3y Jo (s3ss0) . N Juounsoauy | [ende) ddeys | SIONPOIJ PUB SISSIUISNG UIBIA! Auedwo)) 3)saauy
JUdUISIAUY J0 se junowy JUdUSIAUY 10 3231 JO JUdUISIAUY JUAUSIAUL
uoduy PN JO POy
jo uonerneday|  Buikiie) diysaoumQ o, 10J dduENIUIY 10j duERIWRY
PajeMUNDY piemnQ piemInQ
pajeWnIIY (T 930N) SMO[ JUdUSIAUT pajeWNIIY




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-16-

(papnjouo))
“eare pay) € ySnoyy APoasiput 1o APOS1Ip OIS ‘BUIYD) PUBJUIRLI SY) UL SINSIAUL A SUOHOBSUR) JUROLIIUTIS JNOQE UONBULIOJUL ) 10J 6 PUB 9 ‘G ‘b 7 | SI[QR, 99§
“RUIYD PUB[UIRW UI JUIUWISIAUL JO JUNOWE 10 dF8IU2010d PIJR[NIWNIL AU} UO UONOLISAI ) Aq pajtw] jou st uoneiodio)) ayy ey Sunels €10z 190100 Ul VIO 2y Jo neamng juawdo[oAd [BLISNPU] oY) Wolj Jouenbpedf] uoneiad() Jo 19119] UOHBWILUOD & PIAIDAI uoneiodio) AL g 9ON
“UONEPI[OSUOD Uodn pajeuII]o usaq dARY suondesuen Auedwodmul [[y £ AON
*S1S219)U1 SUI[]ONUOI-UOU 0] J[qRINQLINE SIUNOWe Ay} SUIPN[OU] 9 AJON
“VAOQI ‘UOISSIUWO)) JUAWISIAU] ) Aq passaooid Furaq AUaLIND a1k UMBIPYIIM 3q 0] PIZLIOYINE SIUNOWE JUSWISIAUT AL "€ [T YOIBA Ul JO pasodsip a1om satuedurod 1ay10 ay) ““pyy o)) 21210U0)) NOYZN snIdg pue "pr <o) uawd) Suetloy smiog “pr <o)

JUAUWD)) NOYZN'T SNIIOS “PIT <00 JUdWo)) IXeN SIS 1dooxg  “paywr| Auedwo) Sunerad( (noyzinn) juswwo) SN pue "pi o)) 921010 NOYZN] SMIAS P 00 9a10u0)) dilig SNIdS “PIT “00) AJIOUO)) UQ UIY IAUNZ NOYZInD “py <00 juowo) SuelldH smIog “pr <o) 1uswo)
IgSTY SIS “PY 0D JUIWSY) NOYZN'T SIIOS “PYT 0D JUIW)) IXBN SIS “PIT 00 Juawia)) Alfigf SIS “PyT 00 JUSIA) SIOS ILunZ Surpnjour ‘sorueduioo ([ WOl Puesnoy) 9§ 0$6°C$ Jo 2103 & sem 1 10§ IIax presuno pajey ‘ST0C ‘€ 10quIada JO Sy 1 0N

paywr| Auedwo)) 210107 enyrenyy DD I, pue paywi Auedwo)) juswa) noyz3uip DY, ‘parwr Auedwo)) yuswa)) enyreny DO ], WO 30y JO [210) & sem ur 10y | pIemIno p

[ A 'ST0T ‘1€ 10quI0A JOSY i AON
*PaYIpNE 3 0] 2IaM SJUSWIAIE)S [RIOURUL} ONS JT sjuaunsnlpe jueoyiusis
0U 2q P[NOM IAY) JBY) SIAPISUOD dNoIn Y] "PIT “0) S[ELAIBJY UONONNSUOD) JUAWA)) YeAy ") % SueSuny] ueysoeq pue "pyT <0 S[ELAIEJ UOHONISUO)) JUIWA)) YeAy ") 29 SueSuny ueuunx 1deoxa s)udwale)s [BIOUBUL] PAYIPNE SAIBIOOSSE AY) UO Paseq Sem (SSO[) UIeS JUIUNSIAU] ¢ AJON

*SOLIRIPISNS IOYSEFO WOIJ SOUBHIWAI PIeMIN0 uIpnjou] i 0N

‘paywry (Suoy Suoy) swnLRI OH-B], 43N0y} jusunsaAuf
PIT “91d (BOWES) UONBULIOJU] WODIR ], YSNOIY) JUSUNSIAU]
“(1ounig) uonerodio) gL Y3no1y) Juaunsasup

“TDOL ySnoyy Jusunsaaug

LIRS

ISMO[[Of SE 219M SJUSWISIAUL JO PO Y],
‘uoISal1 pAIY) B Ul PaYsI|qeIso pue pasoaur Kuedwiod B ySnody) 91om sor BUIYD) pUB[UIRW U LIV 1 910N




INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

-86-

(panunuo))

10 uonenoSou Ag| S7TLET onuaaal uneradQ € PIT 0D Juawe)) noyzng DD
€0 uonenoSou Ag| 7.H°L9T onuoaal uneradQ ¢ PIT 0D JWAWa)) OpSUIL DD,
0 uonenodou Ag| 69H°€EE anuaaal Funerado ¢ paywIy JudwR) (Suesmn) DO L. ‘pr1 0D Suiddiys oy-eQq Suedinn
€0 uonenogou Ag| €914LT anuaaal Funerado € pawIy Judwd) (Suedmn) DO L[ pr1 <0 sonsido [euoneurdnu (Suesmn) Suo], eq
70 skep 0¢| €I8°CLI anuaaal Sunered ¢ uonerodio)) 1od retsnpuy Surdopy
70 skep 0g| 891°80C anuaaal Suneredo ¢ uonelodio)) jesrway)) Aredsord uemre], uonerodio)) a5e10)g 2 odsuel] uemre],
10 uonenosau Ag| 66701 anuaaal Sunerad z uornerodio)) swnueN OH-BL V'S sumueA oH Suays
70 uonenoSou Ag| 808°71C onuoaal uneradQ T uonerodio)) sWNLIEIA OH-2], V'S [eUOnBUION] DH L
10 jpenuod Ag|  000°0ST sonaed pajejar 03 sajqeded 1py10 € uonerodio) SuULIAUISUF JUSW)) UBMIE ]
10 jenuod Ag|  000°SLT sonaed pajejar 03 sajqeked 12410 I3 uone10dio)) Juswa)) uemre],
10 1rNU00 G| 000°0VE sanaed pajeal 03 sajqeded 1oy10 € uoneodio)) a3e101§ 29 Modsuel ], uemIe |, PIT ©0D JudWUONAUY VHSY XAUuQ OH-B],
10 1enuoo Ag|  0LS‘SET QWOooUl 1SAIANU] €
L0 1enuod 9| 098°801°C SO[QBAID0AI ISBI] doURUL WLIA)-FUOT €
1’0 1enuod Ag|  0L0°LET SI[QBAIOOQI dSBI[ QOUBUL] ¢ uonerodio)) jearway)) Ajredsord uemre], uonerodio)) fesrway) DO L
10 uonenodou Ag| 65 L11T sasuadxa pue $)s0o Sunerado € uonerodio)) swLIRAl OH-B ],
0 1enuoo Ag|  0¢H'€6€ sasuadxa pue s)s00 SuneradQ € uonerodio)) 901A19S 19M0d DdH
11 skep 07|  €88°TLO°T sasuadxa pue s)s0o SuneradQ € uonerodio)) uod [emmsnpuy Surdopy Auedwo)) 1amog Surd-oH
0 1enuoo Ag|  €L€°€SE onuaaal uneradQ I HIDOL
70 enuod Ag|  LL1°91C sasuadxa pue $1s00 FuneradQ 1 uonerodio) Ansnpuj saLI010BIJOY OH-Ueny]
0 skep 0z|  $89°08¢ sasuadxa pue $)s09 SuneradQ 1 uonerodio)) uod [ewmsnpuy Surdopy

- skep 0¢|  6S0°LT1 sonted pajejal 03 sajqeded 1
11 skep 0g| 088°€LO°T sasuadxa pue §)s00 FuneradQ 1 uonerodio) swLRA OH-B ],

- skep 0¢| 6£6°THI soned pajejal 0) sajqeled 1
1T skep 0g| 007°S86°T sasuadxa pue §1s00 Funerado 1 uonelodio)) o3e101g 79 1odsuel ], uemIe ],
90 sKep 0| 9pL€6S sasuadxa pue $)s00 FuneradQ
+0 skep 0¢| 716°9€¢€ anuaaal Funerado 1 Auedwo) asuidinuyg Suayg Sudg
€0 Surddiys soye skep 69| 900°86T onuaAdr Sunerod I TOOMH
+0 opew sem AIOAIRP Aep oy 1oye sAep 05| S66°S1Y anuaAdl FuneadQ I uonelodio) JuowR) ‘H'HY uoneiodio)) JUdW)) UBMIB],

BEET
sIes suLd I, yudwikeg junowry JUNOIY JUIWIDIE)S [BIOUBUL] (1 30N) faudroyuno) Lusdwo;) saysaaug
1830 J0 % diysuonepy
S[IB)9( SUondBSuLl],

6 d'1dV.L

(SAB[[O(] UBMIE ], MIN JO SPUESnOY |, uj)
S10Z ‘1€ HAIINADAA AAANT AVAA HHL JOA
SNOILDVSNVYUL ANVdINODUALNI INVIIAINODIS ANV SAIHSNOILLVTHY ANVdINODUHTLNI

SARIVIAISANS ANV NOILLVHOdHOD INHINAD NVAIVL



INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

APPENDIX X

(papnjouo))

- 66-

:s[erownu Surmof[oy ay) Aq pajussaidar s1 dIysUOIIE]OT JUSWISIAUT A} JO MO [EUOTIOIIP YL,

“UOI[[IWI ()T $ JOAO SJUNOWIE 10J SUOTOBSULI) SOPN[OUT A[qe) SIY ],
€ ISOLIBIPISQNS U0oMIg

7 uared 0) Arerpisqns woij

1 :Arerpisqns 0 juared woiy

“UONEPI[OSUOd uodn PAJBUILI[O UdIQ dARY SuOndEsuL Auedwoolopur [[y

17 910N

RN



